
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

City Council 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Date: 4/4/2023 
Time: 6:00 p.m. 
Locations: Zoom.us/join – ID# 814 7839 7160 and 

Belle Haven Branch Library 
413 Ivy Drive, Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Members of the public can listen to the meeting and participate using the following methods. If you have 
issues viewing the meeting, please email the city clerk at jaherren@menlopark.gov.  

How to participate in the meeting 
• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time:

city.council@menlopark.gov
Please include the agenda item number you are commenting on.

• Access the meeting real-time online at:
Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 814 7839 7160

• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at:
(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID 814 7839 7160
Press *9 to raise hand to speak

• Watch meeting:
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto:

Channel 26
• Belle Haven Branch Library

Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   

Subject to Change: The format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be cancelled. You may 
check on the status of the meeting by visiting the city website menlopark.gov. The instructions for logging 
on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty accessing the webinar, 
please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.gov/agendas). 

According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

Regular Session 

A. Call To Order

B. Roll Call

C. Agenda Review

https://zoom.us/join
mailto:jaherren@menlopark.gov
mailto:city.council@menlopark.gov
https://zoom.us/join
https://menlopark.gov/
https://menlopark.gov/
https://menlopark.gov/agendas


City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
April 4, 2023 
Page 2 
D. Public Comment

Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the City Council on any subject not listed on the
agenda. Each speaker may address the City Council once under public comment for a limit of three
minutes. You are not required to provide your name or City of residence, but it is helpful. The City
Council cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the City Council cannot respond
to non-agenda issues brought up under public comment other than to provide general information.

E. Presentations and Proclamations

E1. Proclamation: Recognizing April 2023 as National Poetry Month (Attachment) 
Not a California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) project. 

E2. Proclamation: Recognizing April 22, 2023 as Earth Day (Attachment) 
Not a CEQA project. 

F. Consent Calendar

F1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for March 18, 2023 (Attachment) 
Not a CEQA project. 

F2. Award a construction contract to G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc., for the 2023 Street Resurfacing 
project (Staff Report #23-085-CC) 
This action is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines §15301 and §15304 exemption for 
existing facilities. 

F3. Authorize the city manager to execute a service agreement with Caltrain to advance the Middle 
Avenue Caltrain crossing project (Staff Report #23-086-CC) 
Not a CEQA project. 

G. Public Hearing

G1. Consider an appeal of the Planning Commission approval of a use permit to demolish an existing 
single-story, single-family residence and construct a new two-story residence with an attached 
garage on a substandard lot at 440 University Drive (Staff Report #23-097-CC) 
Determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines §15303’s Class 3 exemption 
for new construction or conversion of small structures. 

H. Regular Business

H1. Provide direction on the proposed programming plan elements for the Menlo Park Community 
Campus (Staff Report #23-087-CC) 
Not a CEQA project. 

H2. Receive and file report on labor relations and receive public input on upcoming labor negotiations 
with Service Employees International Union Local 521 and American Federation of State, County 
and Municipal Employees Local 829 (Staff Report #23-070-CC) 
Not a CEQA project. 



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
April 4, 2023 
Page 3 

 

I. City Council Initiated Items 
 
I1. Direction on advisory body and commissioner stipends (Staff Report #23-088-CC) 

Not a CEQA project. 
 
J. Informational Items 
 
J1. City Council agenda topics: April 18 – May 9, 2023 (Staff Report #23-092-CC) 
 Not a CEQA project. 
 
J2. Update on Belle Haven traffic calming plan implementation (Staff Report #23-089-CC) 
 Not a CEQA project. 
 
J3. Belle Haven School redesign update – Ravenswood City School District (Staff Report #23-090-CC) 
 Not a CEQA project. 
 
J4. Update on Kelly Park athletic field synthetic turf and track renovation project  

(Staff Report #23-093-CC) 
 Not a CEQA project. 
 
J5. Update on West Bay encroachment agreement for work near Bedwell Bayfront Park  

(Staff Report #23-094-CC) 
 Not a CEQA project. 
 
K. City Manager's Report 
 
L. City Councilmember Reports 
 
M. Adjournment 

 
At every regular meeting of the City Council, in addition to the public comment period where the public shall have the right 
to address the City Council on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right 
to directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or 
during the City Council’s consideration of the item.  
 
At every special meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on 
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during consideration of the item.  
For appeal hearings, appellant and applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.  
 
If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of 
Menlo Park at, or before, the public hearing. 
 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public 
record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available by request by emailing the city clerk at 
jaherren@menlopark.gov. Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in 
City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620.  
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Cal. Gov. Code §54954.2(a) or §54956. Members of the public can view electronic 
agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at menlopark.gov/agendas and can receive email notification of 
agenda postings by subscribing at menlopark.gov/subscribe. Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by 
contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 3/30/2023) 

mailto:jaherren@menlopark.gov
https://menlopark.gov/agendas
https://menlopark.gov/subscribe


Proclamation
RECOGNIZING APRIL 2023 AS NATIONAL POETRY MONTH 

WHEREAS, the Academy of American Poets established the month of April as National Poetry 
Month in 1996; and 

WHEREAS, National Poetry Month seeks to highlight the extraordinary legacy and ongoing 
achievement of American poets; introduce Americans to the pleasures and benefits of reading 
poetry; bring poets and poetry to the public in immediate and innovative ways; make poetry an 
important part of our children's education; and 

WHEREAS, as National Poetry Month, under the leadership and direction of the Academy of 
American Poets, is now the largest literary celebration in the world; and 

WHEREAS, poetry enhances and enriches the lives of all Americans; and 

WHEREAS, poetry, as an essential part of the arts and humanities, affects every aspect of life 
in America today, including education, the economy, and community pride and development; 
and 

WHEREAS, poetry has produced some of the nation's leading creative artists and has inspired 
other artists in fields such as music, theatre, film, dance, and the visual arts; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, Jen Wolosin, 
Mayor of the City of Menlo Park, on behalf of the City Council and 
City, do hereby proclaim April 2023 as National Poetry Month. I 
call upon public officials, educators, librarians, and all the people 
of Menlo Park to observe this month, to celebrate the cultural 
riches our community has to offer, and to recognize the important 
role poetry in creating and sustaining this great nation with 
appropriate ceremonies, activities, and programs. 

Jen Wolosin, Mayor 
April 4, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM E-1

Page E-1.1



RECOGNIZING APRIL 22, 2023 AS EARTH DAY 

WHEREAS, Earth Day has been celebrated globally since 1970 to unite around protecting our common 
environment to ensure future generations will have a safe and sustainable future; and 

WHEREAS, all people of this Earth, no matter their country, gender, income, race, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, or abilities, have a right to live in a healthy environment; and 

WHEREAS, in 2019, the Menlo Park City Council adopted a resolution recognizing the threat of climate change 
and the urgent need to combat it; and 

WHEREAS, in 2020, the Menlo Park City Council adopted its climate action plan with the goal of net zero carbon 
emissions by 2030; and 

WHEREAS, the 2022 United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change reported that nations are far 
off track from meeting commitments to reduce catastrophic climate change; and 

WHEREAS, Menlo Park’s location on the shore of the San Francisco Bay places residents and approximately 
$1.3 billion of property in our Belle Haven neighborhood at risk of flooding from climate change by as early as 
2070; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park is a co-sponsor of the upcoming “Love Our Earth Festival,” to be held on Earth 
Day, April 22 at Menlo-Atherton High School; and 

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council declared a “state of emergency” with respect to climate change, yet is 
not on track to meet its “Zero Carbon by 2030” goal in its Climate Action Plan; and 

WHEREAS, local cities, including Menlo Park, helped create Peninsula Clean Energy, which supplies 100% 
carbon-free electricity for all customers in Menlo Park; and 

WHEREAS, Menlo Park has notable accomplishments in making progress in protecting the environment, such 
as: 
 adopting all-electric Reach Codes for new construction;
 implementing a sustainable green fleet policy;
 purchasing a solar-battery microgrid that will provide clean emergency power for the new community center

in Belle Haven; and

WHEREAS, Menlo Park’s successful experience and presence in Silicon Valley gives it a unique opportunity to 
demonstrate leadership and set an example for other cities to reduce greenhouse gases with innovative, 
comprehensive, and expeditious approaches; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Jen Wolosin, Mayor of the City of 
Menlo Park, on behalf of the City Council and City, encourage all residents and 
businesses to celebrate the Earth and deepen their understanding of environmental 
protection, the urgency of climate change, and the need to create a healthier, safer, 
more equitable future for all people. 

Jen Wolosin, Mayor 
April 4, 2022 

Proclamation
AGENDA ITEM E-2

Page E-2.1



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

City Council 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 

Date:  3/18/2023 
Time:  10:00 a.m. 
Locations: Teleconference and  

City Council Chambers 
751 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Special Session 

A. Call To Order

Mayor Wolosin called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m.

B. Roll Call

Present: Combs, Doerr, Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: City Manager Justin I. C. Murphy, Assistant City Manager Stephen Stolte, City 

Attorney Nira F. Doherty, Assistant to the City Manager/City Clerk Judi A. Herren 

C. Regular Business

C1. Annual City Council priority and goal setting workshop (Staff Report #23-069-CC) 

 Lynne Bramlett spoke in support of prioritizing disaster preparedness, discussing the structure of
the government, and utilizing residents.

 Karen Grove spoke in support of prioritizing housing and housing protections.
 Patti Fry spoke in support of prioritizing more guardrails and guidance for rapid development and

additional attention on financial and physical infrastructure that supports a higher quality of life.
 Edward Schlesinger spoke in support of prioritizing smoke free multi-unit housing.
 Linh Dan Do spoke in support of prioritizing REACH code updates to include electrification.
 John McKenna spoke in support of prioritizing all climate action plan (CAP) goals and

electrification.
 Gregory Faris spoke in support of prioritizing the annexation of the West Menlo triangle.
 Tricia Barr spoke in support of prioritizing smoke free multi-unit housing.
 Adina Levin spoke in support of prioritizing the implementation of the housing element and

environmental justice element.
 Katherine Dumont spoke in support of prioritizing diverse equitable representation across the

Districts on City advisory bodies and a stipend for Planning and Housing Commissioners.
 Jenny Michele spoke in support of prioritizing stabilized labor and housing for all income levels.
 Angela Evans spoke in support of prioritizing a new ordinance requiring electric pump water

heaters and HVAC (heating, ventilation and air conditioning) systems.
 Leah Elkins spoke in support of prioritizing a safe storage of firearms ordinance.
 Ryan Essenburg spoke in support of prioritizing Nealon Park playground and tennis courts.
 Erika D. spoke in support of prioritizing smoke free multi-unit housing.
 Alheli spoke in support of prioritizing smoke free multi-unit housing.

AGENDA ITEM F-1

Page F-1.1



   

 

 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 Thomas Prussing spoke in support of prioritizing disaster preparedness and staffing. 
 Marcy Abramowitz spoke in support of prioritizing quite zones. 
 Steve Walter spoke in support of prioritizing quiet zones. 
 Fran Dehn spoke in support of prioritizing economic development considerations in all City 

Council decisions. 
 Sally Cole spoke in support of prioritizing safe streets.  
 
City Manager Justin Murphy introduced the item. 

 
Facilitator Steve Mermell guided the City Council through the presentation and opened City Council 
discussion on each section (Attachment). 

 
The City Council discussed the ILG article on “Attributes of Exceptional Councils”:  
 Teamwork  
 Good foundation for this meeting 

 
The City Council discussed “Typical Council Norms”: 
 Struggle with manual and policies conflicts 
 Excited about the norms 
 Good governance into practice guidance 
 Communications between staff, public, and City Council 
 Norm enforcers   
 Adding norms to mission/vision statement or creating a separate policy 

  
The City Council discussed City Council comments 
 How to manage priorities when natural disaster, pandemics, etc. occur 

 
The City Council discussed accomplishments  
 Reestablishing programs and public engagement coming out of the pandemic 

 
The City Council discussed the financial outlook 
 Sales tax decrease due to retired and transitioning businesses out of Menlo Park 
 Budgeting role in priorities and work plan  
 Considering programs and projects with and without cost recovery  

 
The City Council discussed key challenges  
 Viewing some challenges as opportunities  
 Bifurcating forging a vision for the City and setting priorities 
 Clarifying the what City Council has “control” compared to what City Council has a “role” 
 Focusing on what impacts Menlo Park and macro level impacts  
 Add “meeting fatigue” to the challenge list 
 Creating “enabling conditions” through ordinances 
 Embracing different ways to view an issue 
 City Council and staff’s role in policy initiatives, goals, and objectives 

  
 The City Council took a recess at 11:52 a.m. 
 

Page F-1.2



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2023 
Page 3 

The City Council reconvened at 11:58 a.m. 

The City Council discussed  
 The status of items not identified as a “priority”
 Priorities setting the tone for the City
 Menlopark.gov/priorities – communication page that is continually updated

The City Council took a recess at 12:08 p.m. 

The City Council reconvened at 12:40 p.m. 

The City Council discussed community input on priorities 
 Ways to direct staff to work on items not listed as a “priority”
 Communicating to the public about item statuses

The City Council discussed priority issues 
 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

 Leveraging the San Mateo County Office of Emergency Preparedness
 Best practices
 Including volunteer groups already in existence
 Scale of resident impacts from local emergencies
 Incorporating in the local hazard mitigation plan
 Number of disasters in Menlo Park

 The City Council added ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT to ACTIVATING DOWNTOWN
 Investing in Downtown
 Revitalizing businesses in all Districts
 Updating Downtown aesthetics
 Need of an economic development director
 Assisting businesses city-wide with a focus on Downtown
 Look at storefront vacancy rates and how to incentivize rental of vacant businesses
 Revisiting the downtown specific plan zoning

 SAFE STREETS
 Need to update the transportation master plan

 ADVANCING EQUITY
 Seek additional funds through grants, etc. for additional resources city-wide
 A tool to be utilized in all priorities

 ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS
 A tool to be utilized in all priorities

 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
 A tool to be utilized in all priorities
 Improve how to communicate with residents and the dissemination of information, especially to

those without internet/phone/cell service

The City Council discussed 
 Items not listed as a top priority
 Agenda management
 Setting public expectations for public priority requests

Page F-1.3



   

 

 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2023 
Page 4 

 

 The City Council engaged in the selection of priorities exercise selecting the top five priorities: 
 Emergency Preparedness 
 Climate Action 
 Activating Downtown and Economic Development 
 Safe Streets 
 Housing 

  
The City Council took a recess at 2:02 p.m. 
 
The City Council reconvened at 2:06 p.m. 

 
City Manager Justin Murphy provided information on next steps. 
 
The City Council provided closing statements. 

 
D. Adjournment 
 

Mayor Wolosin adjourned the meeting at 2:19 p.m. 
 
Judi A. Herren, Assistant to the City Manager/ City Clerk 
 

Page F-1.4



Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-085-CC

Consent Calendar: Award a construction contract to G. Bortolotto & 
Company, Inc., for the 2023 Street Resurfacing 
project and determine this action is categorically 
exempt under California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines Section 15301 and 15304 exemption for 
existing facilities  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council award a $2,263,558 construction contract, with bid alternates A 
through D, to G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc. (Attachment A), approve a contingency in the amount of 
$230,000 (held by the city), approve construction administration fees in the amount of $350,000, and 
determine that this action is categorically exempt under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines Section 15301 and 15304 for the 2023 street resurfacing project. 

Policy Issues 
This project is consistent with the City’s goal of maintaining its municipal infrastructure and extending the life 
and safety of its roadway network. The project is also included in the fiscal year 2022-23 capital 
improvement program (CIP). 

Background 
The City is responsible for maintaining approximately 96 miles of streets and asphalt resurfacing is typically 
performed every two years to keep roadways at an appropriate level of service. To assist this effort, Menlo 
Park uses StreetSaver, a pavement management software that is approved by the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC.) MTC assigns grants for roadway projects through its Pavement 
Management Technical Assistance Program (P-TAP), which the City applies for every two or three years. 
For each application cycle, the P-TAP issues a report that assigns a pavement condition index (PCI) for City 
streets, and a five-year budget for project funding. The PCI evaluates existing pavement conditions on a 
scale from 0 (failed) to 100 (excellent) per Table 1.  

Table 1: PCI classification 

PCI rating Street condition 

0 to 25 Failed to very poor 

25 to 50 Poor 

50 to 70 At risk to fair 

    70 to 100 Good to excellent 

AGENDA ITEM F-2

Page F-2.1



Staff Report #: 23-085-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

The goal of the P-TAP and the street resurfacing program is to maintain the City’s PCI, and keep its streets 
at an appropriate level of service, through surface treatments. The City’s overall PCI is currently 76 which is 
classified as “Good to Excellent.”  In general, streets with higher PCIs are more cost effective to preserve 
and may be candidates for lower cost surface treatment options (e.g., asphalt overlays or slurry seals). 
Alternatively, streets with lower PCIs may require more intensive repairs such as full street section 
reconstruction.  
 
On-call pavement contract 
While the street resurfacing program is an effective tool for managing the City’s overall roadway network, 
pavement damage is also reported throughout the year by public users and staff. These reports are often 
isolated areas of failure which are not captured in the street resurfacing program and need more immediate 
attention to prevent further deterioration. To address these areas, some repairs can be patched or repaired 
in-house by maintenance staff. For larger, more extensive repairs, staff also manages a separate on-call 
pavement repair contract. Examples of scheduled on-call work this fiscal year include asphalt base repairs 
and speed hump reconstruction along Bay Road (between Van Buren Road and Ringwood Avenue) and 
asphalt overlays along Marsh Road (at the Dumbarton railroad crossing.) 

 
Analysis 
The 2023 street resurfacing project generally consists of asphalt milling and overlays (from two to six inches 
deep), replacement of striping and markings, tree root damage repairs, and installation of curb and gutter, 
curb ramps compliant with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and minor sidewalk repair or gap 
closure. Staff utilized StreetSaver to identify a draft list of potential street segments for the resurfacing 
project. This assessment is based on factors such as existing pavement condition, potential to optimize the 
City’s overall PCI, and available budget. Staff also evaluated areas of pavement failure for project 
consideration.  
 
Sixteen street segments (comprised of a base bid and four bid alternates) were selected for resurfacing. 
The 16 segments represent 2.2 miles of roadway (or 2.3 percent of the City’s total street network). This 
project will increase the City’s overall PCI from 76 to 78. Table 2 summarizes the project’s proposed 
resurfacing limits and a map of the proposed locations is included herein as Attachment B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page F-2.2



Staff Report #: 23-085-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Table 2: Project street segments 

Number Base bid location Begin End 

1 Hill Avenue Terminal Avenue Hamilton Avenue 

2 Windermere Avenue Pierce Road Newbridge Street 

3 Central Avenue Pope Street Walnut Street 

4 East O’Keefe Street Menalto Avenue City Limits 

5 Windermere Avenue Bay Road Van Buren Road 

6 Van Buren Road Hollyburne Avenue Menlo Oaks Drive 

7 Burgess Drive Laurel Street Street End 

8 Windsor Drive Santa Cruz Avenue Middle Avenue 

9 Windsor Way Windsor Drive Street End 

10 Johnson Street Santa Cruz Avenue Valparaiso Avenue 

11 Blueridge Avenue Sharon Park Drive Monte Rosa Drive 

12 Garland Drive Cotton Street Olive Street 

Number Base bid location Begin End 

A Chilco Street Terminal Avenue Railroad Crossing 

B Hidden Oaks Drive Santa Cruz Avenue Street End 

C Clayton Drive Alameda de las 
Pulgas Street End 

D Eastridge Avenue Sharon Road Monte Rosa Drive 

Coordination with other agencies and CIP projects 
Staff coordinated with external agencies during the project’s design phase. West Bay Sanitary District and 
California Water Service reviewed the proposed resurfacing locations and confirmed that their upcoming 
sewer and water main improvement projects were not in conflict.  

Two additional street resurfacing projects will be delivered this calendar year, which are funded as separate 
CIPs given the size and complexity of traffic impacts. These stand-alone projects include work along 
Ravenswood Avenue (from El Camino Real to Laurel Street) and Haven Avenue (from Marsh Road to 
Atherton Channel). Construction along Ravenswood Avenue is anticipated from April to July of this year 
while work at Haven Avenue is expected to begin this summer, contingent upon bids received.  

Construction bidding 
On February 8, 2023, the City solicited bids from prospective contractors for the project. The project was 
advertised on Planet Bids, a procurement platform utilized by the City, and posted twice in a local 
newspaper. Construction bids were opened March 1, 2023, with results listed in Table 3.  

Of the six bids received, G, Bortolotto & Company Inc. was identified as the apparent low bidder with a 
combined base bid and bid alternate price of $2,263,558, which was 44 percent lower than the engineer’s 
estimate of $4,010,000. Upon review, staff confirmed that the engineer’s estimate utilized a higher unit price 

Page F-2.3



Staff Report #: 23-085-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

for asphalt, based on recently completed projects, and given the current economic climate, the engineer’s 
estimate was adjusted for anticipated inflation. Moving forward, staff will analyze the bids received for this 
project and will use the analysis to guide the creation of future cost estimates involving similar scopes of 
work.  
 

Table 3: Bid results 

Bidder Base bid 
subtotal 

Bid alternate 
A, B, C, D 

subtotal 
Bid total 

Engineer’s estimate $3,450,000  $560,000  $4,010,000  

G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc.  $1,936,488  $327,070  $2,263,558  

Granite Rock Company $2,216,228  $315,540  $2,531,768  

Radius Earthwork Inc. $2,144,500  $401,700  $2,546,200  

O'Grady Paving, Inc. $2,467,500  $343,740  $2,811,240  

Ghilotti Bros., Inc. $2,906,968  $395,880  $3,302,848  

Catos Paving $2,969,100  $515,020  $3,484,120  
 
City staff has found the low bidder to be experienced with projects involving similar scopes of work for 
asphalt and concrete improvements. Staff also determined the low bidder to be both responsive and 
responsible per public contracting code requirements. Subject to the City Council’s award of contract, the 
project is tentatively scheduled from May 2023 to September 2023. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
The project is included in the fiscal year 2022-23 CIP with $5,200,000 in available funding from the 
construction impact fee and highway user (gas) tax funds. The estimated budget, including the base bid and 
all bid alternates, is summarized in Table 4 and totals $2,843,558, including a 10 percent construction 
contingency and construction administration fees. Construction administration is estimated at $350,000 and 
includes construction management and consultant support for inspections.  
 

Table 4: Construction budget 

Item Cost 
Construction subtotal (combined 
base bid and bid alternates) $2,263,558  

Contingency (10%) $230,000  

Construction administration $350,000  

Total budget $2,843,558  

Available funding  $5,200,000  
 
The project has sufficient funding to construct all 16 of the project’s proposed resurfacing locations. 
Therefore, staff is recommending that the City Council award a $2,263,558 construction contract, with bid 
alternates A through D, to G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc., approve a contingency in the amount of $230,000, 

Page F-2.4



Staff Report #: 23-085-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

and approve construction administration fees in the amount of $350,000 for the 2023 street resurfacing 
project.  

Environmental Review 
The project is categorically exempt under §15301 – Class 1 and §15304 – Class 4 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
Both sections allow for minor alternations of existing facilities, including existing highways and streets, 
sidewalks, gutters, bicycle and pedestrian access, and similar facilities, as long as there is negligible or no 
expansion of use. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Sewer lateral notices were delivered to residents in early January 2023. 

Attachments 
A. Construction contract
B. 2023 Street resurfacing project location map

Report prepared by: 
Mike Owyang, Associate Engineer 
Michael Fu, Senior Civil Engineer 

Report reviewed by:  
Tanisha Werner, Assistant Director of Public Works - Engineering 

Page F-2.5



CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
City Manager’s Office 
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 
tel 650-330-6620  

 Agreement #:  

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF MENLO PARK AND FIRST PARTY 

THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (“Contract”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
__________, ______ (“Execution Date”) by and between the CITY OF MENLO PARK, a California 
municipal corporation, (“City”) and G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc. (“Contractor”). 

RECITALS 

A. Contractor is a California Corporation duly organized and in good standing in the State of California,
License Number 397341.  Contractor represents and warrants that it has the background and experience
set forth in the Contractor’s responses to the notice inviting bids.

B. Contractor represents that it is duly licensed by the State of California and has the background,
knowledge, experience and expertise to perform the obligations set forth in this Contract.

C. On February 8, 2023, the City issued a Notice to Contractors inviting bids for the Project.  A copy of the
Contractor’s Bid proposal and List of Subcontractors is attached herein and incorporated by this reference.

D. The City desires to retain Contractor as an independent contractor to provide the construction and
other services identified in this Contract for the Project upon the terms and conditions contained herein.

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of performance by the parties of the promises, covenants and 
conditions contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS.  Capitalized terms used throughout the Contract Documents shall have the
meanings set forth in this Contract and/or the Special Provisions.  If there is a conflict between the
definitions in this Contract and the Special Provisions, the definitions in this Contract shall prevail.

2. PROJECT. The project is the construction of 2023 Street Resurfacing Project, No. CPS014
(“Project”).  The work includes all labor, materials, equipment, services, permits, licenses and taxes, and
all other things necessary for Contractor to perform its obligations and complete the Project, including,
without limitation, any Change Orders executed by City and Contractor in
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents (“Work”).

3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

3.1 List of Documents. The Contract Documents (sometimes collectively referred to as “Agreement” or 
“Bid Documents”) consist of the following documents which are on file with the Public Works 

Page F-2.6

ATTACHMENT A



Department and are hereby incorporated by reference. 
1) Change Orders
2) Field Orders
3) Contract
4) Bidding Addenda
5) Special Provisions
6) Project Plans and Drawings
7) Technical Specifications
8) City Standard Details
9) State of California Department of Transportation Specifications, 2006 Edition (Cal Trans
specifications)
10) Notice to Contractors
11) Contractor's Bid
12 Bidder Certifications, Questionnaire and Statements
13) Reports listed in the Contract Documents
14) City of Menlo Park Waste Management Form, Waste Management Daily Transport Report
15) City of Menlo Park Truck Route Map and Regulations
16) Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bonds

3.2 Order of Precedence. For the purposes of construing, interpreting and resolving inconsistencies 
between and among the provisions of this Contract, the Contract Documents shall have the order of 
precedence as set forth in the preceding section. If a claimed inconsistency cannot be resolved through 
the order of precedence, the City shall have the sole power to decide which document or provision shall 
govern as may be in the best interests of the City. 

4. PERMITS.  Contractor, at its sole expense, shall obtain and maintain during the term of this
Contract, all appropriate permits, licenses and certificates that may be required in connection with the
performance of the Work, including, but not limited to, a City business license.

5. DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS. Contractor and any subcontractor performing Work
on this Project shall be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) pursuant to Labor
Code Section 1725.5.  No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works
project unless registered with the DIR pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5, with limited exceptions
from this requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code Section 1771.1(a).  This Project is
subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.  It is the responsibility of the Contractor
to ensure all DIR requirements and regulations are met and stay current.  For more information, see
http://dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/SB854.html.

6. TERM.  This Contract is effective on the Execution Date set forth in the initial paragraph of this
Contract and shall remain in effect until the Project has been satisfactorily completed by Contractor,
unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

7. TIME OF COMPLETION. Time is of the essence with respect to all time limits set forth in the
Contract Documents.  Contractor shall commence the Work on the date specified in the City’s Notice to
Proceed.  Contractor shall diligently prosecute the Work to Substantial Completion within the working
days specified per the contract documents and the City’s Notice to Proceed (“Contract Time”).  The
Contract Time may only be adjusted for extensions of time approved by the City and agreed to by
Change Order executed by City and Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the Contract
Documents.

Page F-2.7



8. COMPENSATION.  The City agrees to compensate Contractor for its satisfactory completion of the 
Work in compliance with the Contract Documents for the not to exceed amount of two million and two 
hundred and sixty-three thousand five hundred fifty-eight dollars ($2,263,558.00) (“Contract Sum”). 
Payment shall be as set forth in the Plans, Special Provisions and/or Technical Specifications.  The 
Contract Sum may only be adjusted by Change Orders issued, executed and satisfactorily performed by 
Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.  The Contract Sum shall be 
adjusted (upward or downward) only to account for Change Orders.  The Contract Sum is and shall be 
full compensation for all Work performed by Contractor.  The Contract Sum shall cover all losses arising 
out of the nature of the Work or from the elements or any unforeseen difficulties or obstructions which 
may arise or be encountered in performance of the Work until its Acceptance by the City, all risks 
connected with the Work and any and all expenses incurred due to the suspension or discontinuance of 
the Work.     
 
9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  As a material inducement to the City to enter into this Contract, 
Contractor hereby represents and warrants that it has the qualifications and experience necessary to 
undertake the Work to be provided and the Project to be completed pursuant to this Contract.  
Contractor agrees that the Work shall be performed by qualified, experienced and well-supervised 
personnel.  The Work performed pursuant to this Contract shall be performed in a manner consistent 
with the standard of care under California law applicable to those who specialize in providing such 
services for projects of the type, scope and complexity of the Project.  
 
10. COMPLAINCE WITH LAW.  This Project constitutes a public work within the meaning of California 
Labor Code Section 1720 et. seq. and is subject to prevailing wage laws.  The Work performed by 
Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall be provided in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, 
statutes, rules and regulations of the City, and any federal, state or local governmental agency having 
jurisdiction in effect at the time the work is rendered. 
 
11. REPRESENTATIVE.  Robert Bortolotto is hereby designated as the project 
manager/superintendent/foreman of Contractor authorized to act on its behalf with respect to the Work 
specified in this Contract.  It is expressly understood that the experience, knowledge, capability and 
reputation of G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc. were a substantial inducement for City to enter into this 
Contract. Therefore, Robert Bortolotto shall be responsible during the term of this Contract for directing 
all activities of Contractor and devoting sufficient time to personally supervise the services hereunder.  
The representative may not be changed by Contractor without the express written approval of the City.   
 
12. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. 
 
12.1 Entitlement. City and Contractor acknowledge and agree that if Contractor fails to fully and 
satisfactorily complete the Work within the Contract Time, the City will suffer, as a result of Contractor’s 
failure, substantial damages which are both extremely difficult and impracticable to ascertain.  Such 
damages may include, but are not limited to: (a) loss of public confidence in the City and its contractors; 
(b) loss of public use of public facilities; and (c) extended disruption to public. 
 
12.2 Daily Amount. City and Contractor have reasonably endeavored, but failed, to ascertain the actual 
damage that the City will incur if the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work 
within the Contract Time.  Therefore, the parties agree that in addition to all other damages to which the 
City may be entitled other than delay damages, in the event the Contractor shall fail to achieve 
Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, Contractor shall pay City as liquidated 
damages the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) per day for each calendar day after the expiration 
of the Contract Time until Contractor achieves Substantial Completion of the Work. The liquidated 
damages amount is not a penalty, but a reasonable estimate of the amount of damages the City will 

Page F-2.8



suffer. 

12.3 Apportionment. Such liquidated damages shall be subject to reduction for delays for which 
Contractor is entitled to receive an extension of time under the Contract Documents (“Apportionment”).  
Such Apportionment shall not be affected by the fact that liquidated damages may not be applied for 
periods of time during which delays have occurred that are caused by both City and Contractor.  It is 
agreed that the liquidated damages shall not be applied for portions of the Work completed prior to the 
expiration of the Contract Time. 

12.4 Exclusive Remedy. City and Contractor acknowledge and agree that this Section 11, Liquidated 
Damages, shall be the City’s only remedy for delay damages caused by the Contractor’s failure to 
achieve Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time.  

12.5 Damages upon Abandonment.  In the event that the Contractor either abandons the Work or is 
terminated for default in accordance with the provisions of this Contract, City shall have the right, in its 
sole discretion exercised by written notice issued either before or after Substantial Completion, to elect 
to either assert or waive its right to liquidated damages. If City elects to assert its right to liquidated 
damages, then the liquidated damages shall be calculated from expiration of the Contract Time to the 
date that Substantial Completion of the Work is achieved by the City or its replacement contractor 
employed to complete Contractor’s performance. If City elects to waive its right to liquidated damages, 
then Contractor shall be liable to the City, in lieu of the liquidated damages, for all actual Losses (as 
defined in the General Conditions) proximately resulting from Contractor’s failure to complete the Work 
within the Contract Time.  

12.6 Other Remedies.  The parties further acknowledge and agree that the City is entitled to any and all 
available legal and equitable remedies City may have where City’s Losses are caused by any reason 
other than Contractor’s failure to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time. 

13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  Contractor is, and shall at all times remain as to the City, a wholly
independent contractor and not an agent or employee of the City.  Contractor shall receive no premium
or enhanced pay for work normally understood as overtime, nor shall Contractor receive holiday pay,
sick leave, administrative leave, or pay for any other time not actually worked.  The intention of the
parties is that Contractor shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the
City except as expressly set forth in this Contract.  Contractor shall have no power to incur any debt,
obligation, or liability on behalf of the City or otherwise act on behalf of the City as an agent.  Neither the
City, nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct of Contractor, any of Contractor’s
employees, or any subcontractors, except as set forth in this Contract.  Contractor shall at no time, or in
any manner, represent that it or any of its agents or employees or subcontractors are in any manner
employees of the City.  Contractor agrees to pay all required taxes on amounts paid to Contractor under
this Contract, and to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all taxes, assessments,
penalties, and interest asserted against the City by reason of the independent contractor relationship
created by this Contract.  Contractor shall fully comply with the worker’s compensation law regarding
Contractor, Contractor’s employees and subconsultants.  Contractor further agrees to indemnify and
hold the City harmless from any failure of Contractor and any subconsultants to comply with applicable
worker’s compensation laws.

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which may be affected by the work to be performed by Consultant
under this Contract, or which would conflict in any manner with the performance of its services
hereunder.  Contractor further covenants that, in performance of this Contract, no person having any
such interest shall be employed by it.  Furthermore, Contractor shall avoid the appearance of having

Page F-2.9



any interest which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the work pursuant to this 
Contract. Contractor agrees not to accept any employment during the term of this Contract which is or 
may make Contractor financially interested, as provided in California Government Code Sections 1090 
and 87100, in any decision made by the City on any matter in connection with which Contractor has 
been retained pursuant to this Contract. However, nothing herein shall preclude Contractor from 
accepting other engagements with the City. 
 
15. INDEMNIFICATION.   
 
15.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, with independent 
counsel approved by the City, and hold harmless the City, and its elective or appointive boards, officers, 
employees agents and volunteers (“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, or liability 
that may arise out of or result from damages to property or personal injury received by reason of, or in 
the course of work performed under this Contract due to the acts or omissions of Contractor or 
Contractor’s officers, employees, agents or subcontractors.  The indemnification provisions survive 
completion of the Work or the termination of this Contract.  The acceptance of such services shall not 
operate as a waiver of such right of indemnification.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained 
herein shall be construed as obligating Contractor to indemnify any Indemnitee for any claims, losses or 
liability resulting from the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnitee.  Contractor 
shall pay City for any costs incurred in enforcing this provision.  
  
15.2 The City does not and shall not waive any rights that they may possess against Contractor 
because of the acceptance by the City or the deposit with the City of any insurance policy or certificate 
required pursuant to this Contract.  This hold harmless and indemnification provision shall apply 
regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, 
demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense.   
 
15.3 Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9201, the City shall timely notify Contractor upon receipt 
of any third-party claim relating to the Contract. 
 
16. ASSIGNABILITY.  The parties agree that the experience and qualifications of Contractor as set forth 
in the Contractor’s Bid are material considerations for the City entering into this Contract. Consultant 
shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Contract, without the prior written consent of the City, and 
any attempt by Contractor to do so shall be void and of no effect and a breach of this Contract.  For 
purposes of this section, the sale, assignment, transfer or other disposition of any of the issued and 
outstanding capital stock of Contractor or of any general partner or joint venturer or syndicate member 
of Contractor, if a partnership or joint venture or syndicate or co-tenancy exists, which shall result in 
changing the control of Contractor, shall be construed as an assignment of this Construction Contract. 
Control means more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of the corporation or other entity. 
 
17. INSURANCE AND BOND REQUIREMENTS.  
  
17.1 Prior to the commencement of any Work, the Contractor shall provide the City with evidence that it 
has obtained the insurance required by this Section and all bonds, including, but not limited to, payment 
and performance bonds, required in the Special Provisions.  Failure to obtain and maintain the required 
insurance and bonds to so shall be deemed a material breach of this Contract. 
  
17.2 Insurance Requirements.  Contractor shall obtain the following insurance. 
 
A. Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance: The CONTRACTOR shall have in effect 
during the entire life of this Contract workers' compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance providing 

Page F-2.10



full statutory coverage. In signing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR makes the following certification, 
required by Section 18161 of the California Labor Code:  "I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 
of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Code, and I will 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Contract."  

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: The CONTRACTOR shall take out and maintain during the
life of this Contract such Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability Insurance (Commercial
General Liability Insurance) on an occurrence basis as shall protect it while performing work covered by
this Contract from any and all claims for damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, as well as
claims for property damage which may arise from the CONTRACTOR's operations under this Contract,
whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by any sub-consultant or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either of them. The amounts of such insurance shall be not less than two million
dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and four million dollars ($4,000,000) in aggregate, or four million
dollars ($4,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence.
CONTRACTOR shall provide the City with acceptable evidence of coverage, including a copy of all
declarations of coverage exclusions.

C. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONTRACTOR shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance
pursuant to this Contract in an amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) for each
accident combined single limit or not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) for any one (1) person,
and one million dollars ($1,000,000) for any one (1) accident, and Three Hundred Thousand Dollars,
($300,000) property damage.

17.3 CITY and its subsidiary agencies, and their officers, agents, employees and servants shall be 
named as additional insured on any such policies of Commercial General Liability and Automobile 
Liability Insurance, (but not for the workers' compensation), which shall also contain a provision that the 
insurance afforded thereby to the CITY, its subsidiary agencies, and their officers, agents, employees, 
and servants shall be primary insurance to the full limits of liability of the policy, and that if the CITY, its 
subsidiary agencies and their officers and employees have other insurance against a loss covered by a 
policy, such other insurance shall be excess insurance only. 

17.4 In the event of the breach of any provision of this Section, or in the event any notice is received 
which indicates any required insurance coverage will be diminished or canceled, CITY, at its option, 
may, notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract to the contrary, immediately declare a material 
breach of this Contract and suspend all further work pursuant to this Contract. 

17.5. Before the execution of this Contract, any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by CITY. 

18. SUSPENSION.  The City may, at any time and from time to time, without cause, order Contractor, in
writing (“Suspension Order”), to suspend, delay, or interrupt the Work in whole or in part for such period
of time, up to an aggregate of fifty percent (50%) of the Contract Time, as City may determine, with such
period of suspension to be computed from the date of the Suspension Order.  Upon receipt of a
Suspension Order, Contractor shall, at City’s expense, comply with its terms and take all reasonable
steps to minimize costs allocable to the Work covered by the Suspension Order during the period of
work stoppage. Within the period of the above noted aggregate time, or such extension to that period as
is agreed upon by Contractor and City, City shall either cancel the Suspension Order or delete the work
covered by the Suspension Order by issuing a Change Order.  If a Suspension Order is canceled or
expires, Contractor shall resume and continue with the Work.  A Change Order will be issued to cover
any adjustments of the Contract Sum or the Contract Time necessarily caused by such suspension.

Page F-2.11



19. BOOKS AND RECORDS.  Contractor shall keep full and detailed accounts and exercise such 
controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and practices consistently applied. City and City's accountants 
shall be afforded access at all times during normal business hours, to inspect, audit and copy 
Contractor's records, books, estimates, take-offs, cost reports, ledgers, schedules, correspondence, 
instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data 
relating to this Project, and Contractor shall preserve these for a period of three years after the later of 
(i) final payment or (ii) final resolution of all Contract Disputes and other disputes or for such longer 
period as may be required by law. Contractor’s compliance with any request by City pursuant to this 
Section18 shall be a condition precedent to filing or maintenance of any legal action or proceeding by 
Contractor against City and to Contractor's right to receive further payments under the Contract 
Documents.  Any failure by Contractor to provide access to its business records for inspection or 
copying by City shall be specifically enforceable by issuance of a writ or a provisional or permanent 
mandatory injunction by a court of competent jurisdiction based on affidavits submitted to such court, 
without the necessity of oral testimony. 
 
20. WAIVER.  Waiver by either party of any breach or violation of any one or more terms or conditions 
of this Contract shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other term or condition contained herein or a 
waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of the same or any other term or condition.  Acceptance by 
the City of the performance of any work by the Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
term or condition of this Contract.  In no event shall the City’s making of any payment to Contractor 
constitute or be construed as a waiver by the City of any breach of this Contract, or any default which 
may then exist on the part of Contractor, and the making of any such payment by the City shall in no 
way impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the City with regard to such breach or default. 
 
21. DEFAULT.  In the event the City determines, in its sole discretion, that Contractor has failed or 
refused to perform any of the obligations set forth in the Contract Documents, or is in breach of any 
provision of the Contract Documents, the City may give written notice of default to Contractor in the 
manner specified for this giving of notices in this Contract.  Except for emergencies, Contractor shall 
cure any default in performance of its obligations under the Contract Documents within two (2) business 
days after receipt of written notice.  However, if the breach cannot be reasonably cured within such 
time, Contractor will commence to cure the breach within two (2) days and will diligently and 
continuously prosecute such cure to completion within a reasonable time, which shall in no event be 
later than ten (10) days after receipt of such written notice.  
 
22. CITY RIGHTS AND REMEDIES. 
 
22.1 Remedies Upon Default.  In the event that Contractor fails to cure any default of this Contract 
within the time period set forth in Section 20, then City may pursue any remedies available under law or 
equity, including, without limitation, the following: (1) the City may, without terminating the Contract, 
delete certain portions of the Work, reserving to itself all rights to losses related thereto; (2) the City 
may, without terminating the Contract, engage others to perform the Work or portion of the Work that 
has not been performed by the Contractor and withhold the cost thereof to City from future payments to 
the Contractor, reserving to itself all rights to Losses related thereto; or (3) the City may, without 
terminating the Contract and reserving to itself all rights to Losses related thereto, suspend all or any 
portion of this Construction Contract for as long a period of time as City determines, in its sole 
discretion, appropriate, in which event City shall have no obligation to adjust the Contract Sum or 
Contract Time, and shall have no liability to Contractor for damages if City directs Contractor to resume 
Work; (4) the City may terminate all or any part of this Contract for default, reserving to itself all rights of 
Losses related thereto; or (5) the City may, without terminating the Contract and reserving to itself all 
rights to Losses related thereto, exercise its rights under the Performance Bond. 

Page F-2.12



22.2 Additional Provisions.  All of City’s rights and remedies under this Contract are cumulative, and 
shall be in addition to those rights and remedies available in law or in equity.  Designation in the 
Contract Documents of certain breaches as material shall not be construed as implying that other 
breaches not so designated are not material nor shall such designations be construed as limiting City’s 
right to terminate the Contract, or the exercise of its other rights or remedies for default, to only material 
breaches.  City’s determination of whether there has been noncompliance with the Contract so as to 
warrant exercise by City of its rights and remedies for default under the Contract, shall be binding on all 
parties.  No termination or action taken by City after such termination shall prejudice any other rights or 
remedies of City provided by law or equity or by the Contract Documents upon such termination; and 
City may proceed against Contractor to recover all liquidated damages and Losses suffered by City. 

22.3 Delays by Sureties.  Without limitation to any of City’s other rights or remedies under the law, City 
has the right to suspend the performance by Contractor’s sureties in the event of any of the following: 
(1) failure of the sureties to begin Work within a reasonable time in such manner as to insure full
compliance with the Contract within the Contract Time; (2) abandonment of the Work; (3) if at any time
City is of the opinion the Work is unnecessarily or unreasonably delayed; (4) willful violation of any
terms of the Contract; (5) failure to perform according to the Contract Documents; or (6) failure to follow
instructions of City for its completion within the Contract Time.  City will serve notice of such failure upon
the sureties and in the event the sureties neglect or refuse to cure the breach within the time specified in
such notice, City shall have the power to suspend the performance or any part thereof of the sureties.

22.4 Damages to the City.  The City will be entitled to recovery of all Losses under law or equity in the 
event of Contract’s default under the Contract Documents.  In the event that City's Losses arise from 
Contractor’s default under the Contract Documents, City shall be entitled to withhold monies otherwise 
payable to Contractor until Final Completion, as defined in the General Conditions, of the Project.  If City 
incurs Losses due to Contractor’s default, then the amount of Losses shall be deducted from the 
amounts withheld.  Should the amount withheld exceed the amount deducted, the balance will be paid 
to Contractor or its designee upon Final Completion of the Project.  If the Losses incurred by City 
exceed the amount withheld, Contractor shall be liable to City for the difference and shall promptly remit 
same to City.  

22.5 Termination of the Contract for Default.  Without limitation to any of City’s other rights or remedies 
at law or in equity, and reserving to itself all rights to Losses related thereto, City shall have the right to 
terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, upon the failure of Contractor to promptly cure any default.  
City’s election to terminate the Contract for default shall be communicated by giving Contractor a written 
notice of termination in the manner specified for the giving of notices in the Contract.  Any notice of 
termination given to Contractor by City shall be effective immediately, unless otherwise provided 
therein. 

22.6 Termination Without Cause.  City shall have the option, at its sole discretion and without cause, of 
terminating this Contract in part or in whole by giving thirty (30) days written notice to Contractor.  
Contractor agrees to accept such sums as allowed under this Section as its sole and exclusive 
compensation and waives any claim for other compensation or Losses, including, but not limited to, loss 
of anticipated profits, loss of revenue, lost opportunity, or other consequential, direct, indirect or 
incidental damages of any kind.   

22.7 Compensation.  Following termination without cause and within forty-five (45) days after receipt of 
a billing from Contractor seeking payment of sums authorized by this Section, City shall pay to 
Contractor as its sole compensation for performance of the Work the following: (1) the amount of the 
Contract Sum allocable to the portion of the Work properly performed by Contractor as of the date of 
termination, less sums previously paid to Contractor; (2) reasonable costs of Contractor and its 

Page F-2.13



Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors for demobilizing and administering the close-out of its 
participation in the Project (including, without limitation, all billing and accounting functions, not including 
attorney or expert fees) for a period of no longer than thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice of 
termination in an amount not to exceed the daily sum payable to Contractor for Compensable Delays; 
(3) previously unpaid cost of any items delivered to the Project Site which were fabricated for
subsequent incorporation in the Work.

22.8 Subcontractors.  Contractor shall include provisions in all of its subcontracts, purchase orders and 
other contracts permitting termination for convenience by Contractor on terms that are consistent with 
this Contract and that afford no greater rights of recovery against Contractor than are afforded to 
Contractor under this Section. 

22.9 Contractor’s Duties Upon Termination.  Upon receipt of a notice of termination for default or for 
convenience, Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, do the following: (1) immediately 
discontinue the Work to the extent specified in the notice; (2) place no further orders or subcontracts for 
materials, equipment, services or facilities, except as may be necessary for completion of such portion 
of the Work as is not discontinued; (3) provide to City a description, in writing no later than fifteen (15) 
days after receipt of the notice of termination, of all subcontracts, purchase orders and contracts that 
are outstanding, including, without limitation, the terms of the original price, any changes, payments, 
balance owing, the status of the portion of the Work covered and a copy of the subcontract, purchase 
order or contract and any written changes, amendments or modifications thereto, together with such 
other information as City may determine necessary in order to decide whether to accept assignment of 
or request Contractor to terminate the subcontract, purchase order or contract; (4) promptly assign to 
City those subcontracts, purchase orders or contracts, or portions thereof, that City elects to accept by 
assignment and cancel, on the most favorable terms reasonably possible, all subcontracts, purchase 
orders or contracts, or portions thereof, that City does not elect to accept by assignment; and (5) 
hereafter do only such Work as may be necessary to preserve and protect Work already in progress 
and to protect materials, plants, and equipment on the Project Site or in transit thereto. 

23. CONTRACTOR’S RIGHTS AND REMEDIES.  Contractor may terminate this Construction Contract
for cause only upon the occurrence of one of the following: (1) the Work is stopped for sixty (60)
consecutive days, through no act or fault of Contractor, any subcontractor or any employee or agent of
Contractor or any subcontractor, due to issuance of an order of a court or other public authority other
than City having jurisdiction or due to an act of government, such as a declaration of a national
emergency making material unavailable; or (2) if the City does not make payment of sums that are not
in good faith disputed by the City and does not cure such default within ninety (90) days after receipt of
notice from Contractor, then upon an additional thirty (30) days’ notice to City, Contractor may terminate
the Contract.

23.1 Damages to Contractor. In the event of termination for cause by Contractor, City shall pay 
Contractor the sums provided for in Section 21 above.  Contractor agrees to accept such sums as its 
sole and exclusive compensation and agrees to waive any claim for other compensation or Losses, 
including, but not limited to, loss of anticipated profits, loss of revenue, lost opportunity, or other 
consequential, direct, indirect and incidental damages, of any kind. 

24. NOTICES.  Any notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Contract shall be given in writing by personal delivery, by a recognized courier service, or by U.S. mail,
postage prepaid, and return receipt requested, addressed to the respective parties as follows:

Page F-2.14



To City:  To Contractor: 

Assistant Public Works Director - Engineering      G. Bortolotto & Company, Inc.
City of Menlo Park       582 Bragato Road
City Hall, 701 Laurel St.      San Carlos, CA 94070-6227

     Menlo Park, CA 94025         

25. Notice shall be deemed communicated on the earlier of actual receipt or 48 hours after deposit in
the U.S. mail, or the date of delivery shown on deliverer’s receipt. In the event of any change of
address, the moving party is obligated to notify the other party of the change of address in writing within
a reasonable period of time.

In addition, copies of all Claims by Contractor under this contract shall be provided to the City Attorney 
as follows: 

To City Attorney: 

City Attorney 
Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP 
181 Third Street, Suite 200 
San Rafael, CA 94901 

All claims shall be delivered personally or sent by certified mail.  

26. NON-DISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.  In the performance of this
Contract, Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor or applicant for
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national
origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental handicap, or medical condition.  Contractor will take affirmative
action to ensure that employees are treated without regard to race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental handicap, or medical
condition.

27. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND PRECEDENCE. The Contract Documents shall consist of the
following documents. In case of inconsistencies between Contract Documents, the documents are listed
in order of precedence.

28. PUBLIC WORKS CLAIMS. This Contract is subject to Public Contracts Code Section 9204
governing contractor claims.

29. ATTORNEYS’ FEES; VENUE.  In the event that any party to this Contract commences any legal
action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Contract, the prevailing party in such
action or proceeding shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs incurred in
that action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which the successful party may be entitled.
The venue for any litigation shall be San Mateo County.

30. COOPERATION.  In the event any claim or action is brought against the City relating to Contractor’s
performance or services under this Agreement, Contractor shall render any reasonable assistance and
cooperation which City might require.

31. NUISANCE.  Contractor shall not maintain, commit, nor permit the maintenance or commission of
any nuisance in connection with the performance of services under this Contract.

Page F-2.15



32. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws
of the State of California.

33. COMPLETE AGREEMENT; SEVERABILITY.  This Contract, and any other documents incorporated
herein by reference, represent the entire and integrated agreement between the City and Contractor.
This Contract supersedes all prior oral and written negotiations, representations or agreements. No prior
oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered
hereunder.  This Contract may only be modified by a written amendment duly executed by the parties to
this Contract.  In case a provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the
validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected.

34. COUNTERPARTS. This Contract may be signed in multiple counterparts, which shall, when
executed by all the parties constitute a single binding contract.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE. 

Page F-2.16



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year first 
above written. 

FOR FIRST PARTY: 

Signature Date 

Printed name Title 

Tax ID# 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Nira F. Doherty, City Attorney  Date 

FOR CITY OF MENLO PARK: 

Justin I. C. Murphy, City Manager Date 

ATTEST: 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk Date 

Page F-2.17



Page F-2.18

ATTACHMENT B



Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  
Staff Report Number: 

Consent Calendar: 

4/4/2023 
23-086-CC

Authorize the city manager to execute a service 
agreement with Caltrain to advance the Middle 
Avenue Caltrain crossing project  

Recommendation 
Staff requests that the City Council authorize the city manager to execute a service agreement with Caltrain 
for $571,940.60 to conduct critical project development tasks for the Middle Avenue Caltrain crossing 
project, including selecting the contract delivery method for construction, developing requests for proposals 
(RFP) for final design and potentially construction, and development of a memorandum of understanding 
(MOU) for the design and pre-construction services (Attachment A). 

Policy Issues 
The Middle Avenue Caltrain crossing project (project) is consistent with policies stated in the 2016 general 
plan circulation element, the El Camino Real and Downtown specific plan and is included in the City’s 
capital improvement program (CIP.) These policies seek to maintain a safe, efficient, attractive, user-friendly 
circulation system that promotes a healthy, safe and active community and quality of life throughout Menlo 
Park.  

Background 
On July 20, 2016, the San Mateo County Transportation Authority programmed funds from the Measure A 
Grade Pedestrian and Bicycle Program in the amount of $490,000 for the preliminary engineering and 
environmental clearance phases of the project. The City hired AECOM Technical Services, Inc. (AECOM) to 
prepare 30 percent design documents, complete required environmental analysis, and conduct community 
engagement. Staff also coordinated with Caltrain on design criteria and the ongoing electrification of the 
corridor.  

On August 27, 2019, the City Council unanimously passed a motion to select Concept 3 (Attachment B) as 
the preferred alternative for the crossing. The project will construct an undercrossing approximately 10-12 
feet below the street/plaza elevation that generally aligns with a proposed raised crosswalk on Alma Street 
and is slightly offset from the plaza at 500 El Camino Real (Stanford’s Middle Plaza development.)  

On January 28, 2020, the City Council certified the project environmental document, an addendum to the El 
Camino Real and Downtown specific plan environmental impact report (EIR), and approved the 30 percent 
project plans. 

On January 11, 2022, the City Council adopted resolution 6690 authorizing the city manager to execute a 
purchase and sale agreement (PSA) with Menlo Station Development, LLC, for a portion of 700-800 El 
Camino Real (APN 071-333-200) to support implementation of the Middle Avenue pedestrian and bicycle 
rail crossing. The property being purchased by the City is the location of the ramps that connect the tunnel 

AGENDA ITEM F-3

Page F-3.1



Staff Report #: 23-086-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

to Middle Plaza. The city manager executed the agreement May 5, 2022. The City has provided the 
required $100,000 deposit into escrow and conducted due diligence activities specified in the PSA. The 
escrow period is for a maximum of two years, but could conclude earlier if final agreements are received 
earlier from Caltrain and the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). 

Analysis 
Staff are pursuing a number of work activities to advance the project, including: 
• Adjustment of the 700-800 El Camino Real Planned Development Permit. This is required to reduce the

parking provided at 700-800 El Camino Real as a result of removing the parking spaces on the property
being purchased by the City. Staff currently anticipate bringing this item to the Planning Commission
April 24, with final action by the City Council to follow.

• Approval by the CPUC of the new crossing. This item is on track for completion before the close of
escrow for the property purchase.

• Design coordination with Caltrain. Staff have been meeting regularly with Caltrain to discuss design
details, construction methods, and the impact of Caltrain electrification on the project. Staff will bring an
update to City Council with substantive project updates later this year.

The service agreement (Attachment A) funds three activities to advance project development, including 
establishing the contract delivery method, developing one or two RFPs for design and construction (in 
accordance with the selected contract delivery method), and developing a MOU to guide the design and 
pre-construction services. As a locally sponsored project, Caltrain requires the City to provide all funding for 
the undercrossing. However, the crossing itself will be constructed by Caltrain. This agreement will help with 
the transition from City-led activities (planning, environmental clearance and preliminary 
engineering/design) into Caltrain-led activities (final design and construction).  

Selecting a contract delivery method is important for projects that deal with complex systems like an 
operating railroad. Traditionally, public works projects are contracted using a design-bid-build process. More 
recently, public agencies have advanced capital projects using alternate contract delivery methods that 
include: design-build (a single contractor designs and builds the project), contract manager/general 
contractor (design and construction contracts remain separate, but the construction manager/general 
contractor (CMGC) is hired early in the process to better coordinate the two phases), and others. These 
methods can help shift risk and/or provide greater construction cost certainty. In the first task, Caltrain and 
City staff will participate in a workshop to select the appropriate contract delivery method to move the 
project forward.  

Development of a RFP for final design (or for design and CMGC) is a necessary step to move from the 
adopted design into full final design and construction. Depending on the selected contract delivery method, 
there may be one (design) or two (design and CMGC) RFPs developed through the execution of the service 
agreement.  

Impact on City Resources 
The cost of the current service agreement with Caltrain is estimated up to $571,940.60. The service 
agreement includes the maximum resources that Caltrain has identified are needed to complete the tasks, 
including contingency. There may be cost efficiencies at each phase that will be recaptured by the City to 
fund future phases of work.  

The project has received over $20 million in City and grant funding to support the design and construction of 

Page F-3.2



Staff Report #: 23-086-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

the undercrossing (Table 1), including federal funding from a member designated project nominated by 
Representative Eshoo in December 2022 and a third cycle One Bay Area Grant (OBAG-3) in January 2023. 

Table 1 – Middle Undercrossing funding plan 

Funding Source Amount Phase 

Measure A/W Pedestrian/Bicycle Program San Mateo County Transportation 
Authority $1,130,000 Design 

Middle Plaza development agreement 
contribution Private, Stanford University $5,000,000 Construction 

Transportation impact fees City of Menlo Park $5,658,334 Design and 
construction 

Stanford recreational mitigation grant Santa Clara County $1,000,000 Construction 

One Bay Area Grant – Third Cycle (OBAG-3) Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission $5,000,000 Construction 

Federal omnibus budget bill USDOT $4,000,000 Construction 

Total $21,788,334 

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as it will not 
directly result in a change to the physical environment.  

The overall construction of the Middle Avenue pedestrian and bicycle undercrossing project is within the 
scope of the El Camino Real and Downtown specific plan EIR, State Clearinghouse No. 2009122048 
(Specific Plan EIR), certified by City Council June 5, 2012, consistent with CEQA Guidelines §15168. The 
City prepared an addendum to the Specific Plan EIR because changes and additions to the document were 
necessary, but none of the conditions described in §15162 of the CEQA Guidelines calling for the 
preparation of a subsequent EIR occurred. On January 28, 2020, the City Council certified an addendum to 
the Specific Plan EIR, which analyzed potential impacts from the implementation of the Middle Avenue 
pedestrian and bicycle rail crossing project as provided for under §15164 of the CEQA Guidelines. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

Attachments 
A. Agreement
B. Adopted preferred concept

Report prepared by: 
Hugh Louch, Assistant Public Works Director – Transportation 

Page F-3.3



SERVICE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

PENINSULA CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD 

AND THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 

FOR 

THE MIDDLE AVENUE UNDERCROSSING PROJECT 

THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the 
Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board, hereinafter referred to as “PCJPB” or “Caltrain,” and the City 
of Menlo Park, hereinafter referred to as “City,” as of the last date of signature set forth in the 
signature blocks. 

I. RECITALS

1. Project Description

The City of Menlo Park is the project sponsor for a proposed new bicycle and pedestrian undercrossing 
of the Caltrain right-of-way (“ROW”) near Middle Avenue in Menlo Park.  The project would be 
located near Caltrain mile post 29.15, north of the intersection of El Camino Real and Ravenswood 
Avenue.  The City of Menlo Park is entering into this Agreement with Caltrain.   

The City proposes the installation of a pedestrian and bicycle undercrossing near Burgess Drive and 
Alma Street to facilitate access between the eastern and western sides of the Caltrain ROW, as well as 
to and from Alma Street and El Camino Real, both of which run parallel to Caltrain tracks in the project 
area.  

2. Project Background

On August 27, 2019, the Menlo Park City Council unanimously passed a motion to select Concept 3 as 
the preferred alternative for the Middle Avenue pedestrian and bicycle rail crossing. Upon selection of 
Concept 3 as the preferred alternative by the City Council, City staff proceeded, in coordination with 
Caltrain, with finalizing the environmental studies and the design plans. The environmental study 
prepared is in the form of an Addendum to the Menlo Park El Camino Real and Downtown Specific 
Plan Environmental Impact Report. The City Council recertified the environmental document on 
January 28, 2020. Between approximately March 2020 and November 2021, the City worked to 
negotiate and purchase a portion of the property at 700-800 El Camino needed for this project, but there 
was little design advancement due in part to the pandemic. 

3. Caltrain Processes Background

In February 2020, Caltrain notified the City that the project would not be subject to the then new Rail 
Corridor Use Policy (RCUP), since Caltrain and the City had already been engaged in significant project 
development and advancement activities. In a letter sent to the City in May 2020, Caltrain staff 
documented concerns regarding project delivery and schedule details described in a City staff report, 
dated January 28, 2020. In this document published by City staff to certify project environmental 
documents, approve the 30% project plans and authorize the city manager to enter into all necessary 

Page F-3.4

ATTACHMENT A



Service Agreement 

pg. 2 

  

agreements with the PCJPB, staff provided details on the project that had not been agreed to by Caltrain 
staff, including design-build as the preferred delivery method for the project. Caltrain provided 
comments on the initial 30% design and identified several resolution items, including relocation of the 
east side access ramp out of Caltrain ROW.   

In June/July 2022, Caltrain again reviewed the City’s 30% design and provided additional comments 
to the City. Issues requiring resolution upon review of the 30% design include relocation of the under-
crossing east side access ramp outside of Caltrain ROW, increase of culvert depth, consideration of less-
disruptive construction methods than cut and cover to avoid disruption of Caltrain service from 
removal of electrification cables.  

In September 2022, Caltrain and City staff held a meeting to discuss the RCUP and process to request 
use of Caltrain ROW. At this time, Caltrain shared with the City the interpretation that the February 
2020 letter exempting the project from the RCUP process was applicable to the tunnel portion of the 
project only, and the access ramps would need to be considered under the RCUP process if they were 
to be located partially within Caltrain ROW.  

In November 2022, Caltrain shared educational material on the recommended non-disruptive 
construction methods (Jack and Bore, Mining, or other methods) and participated in a design workshop 
with City staff and conceptual design consultant to resolve the remaining design issues mentioned 
above.  

4. Third Party Service Agreement During Post Conceptual Design

The initial Service Agreement between the City and Caltrain was executed on March 09, 2022 and 
included coordination with Caltrain staff pertaining to the project’s preliminary engineering phase 
(30% design).  

As the third-party project sponsor, the City is required to coordinate with Caltrain staff as the City 
advances the project from preliminary engineering to final design. The initial Agreement outlined 
necessary Caltrain participation and technical review of one preferred design (Concept 3).  

Discussions between Caltrain and the City regarding contract(s) ownership during the Final Design 
and Construction phase occurred during the timeframe of the initial Agreement execution. Caltrain 
explained that serving as lead implementing agency for all grade separation projects between San 
Francisco and San Jose will leverage Caltrain’s existing expertise in these kinds of railroad projects. 

Therefore, it is understood, by this Service Agreement, that the City elects to advance the project 
beyond the Preliminary Engineering/Environmental Clearance phase to develop the design for 
construction, and that Caltrain will assume the project delivery lead when the Preliminary 
Engineering/Environmental Clearance phase and its deliverables are completed by the City, and a 
Memorandum Of Understanding (MOU) will be established that addresses funding, roles and 
responsibilities, budgets, and schedule for the subsequent phases. 

The purpose of this Agreement is for Caltrain to: 

- Perform an analysis for Alternative Contract Delivery,

- Provide for the development and execution an MOU, and

Page F-3.5



Service Agreement  

 

   pg. 3 

     

    

- Prepare (a) Request(s) for Proposals (RFPs) for advancing the project beyond the Preliminary 
Engineering (PE)/Environmental Clearance phase into final design and construction in 
accordance with the consensus alternative delivery method recommendation. 

This Agreement assumes that Caltrain and the City will work to ascertain the most efficient means of 
completing the project’s NEPA Environmental Clearance and CEQA Determination and that the 
decision will be further defined as part of the scope described in the MOU. 

 

II.  TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

 

1. Scope of Work 

To support the review and coordination of the City’s post conceptual design and to develop and 
execute the Alternative Contract Delivery Analysis, MOU, and the RFPs, the tasks described in this 
Scope of Work will be completed by Caltrain under this Agreement. It is assumed that regular 
coordination and document review meetings will be held between participating parties on an as-
needed basis, with up to eight (8) meetings among staff for the City, PCJPB, and SMCTA.  

Caltrain will provide a Project Manager who is knowledgeable about the project and Caltrain 
processes, and will lead the coordination efforts among Caltrain, City and SMCTA staff. The City will 
provide a Project Manager who is knowledgeable about the project and the City’s processes, and will 
be the main point of contact for PCJPB and the SMCTA. 

All tasks include supporting coordination activities for their development, including the preparation 
of board documents (board resolutions, staff reports, presentations and other administrative tasks 
required to adopt the recommendation on the optimal delivery method and to finalize the MOU and 
RFP. This scope of work does not include performing the CEQA/NEPA environmental review 
processes, procuring environmental permits, or performing 30% to 100% engineering design. These 
tasks will be performed under the MOU developed through this Agreement. 

1.1. Alternative Contract Delivery Analysis 
This analysis will recommend the optimal contract delivery method based on the selected local 
preferred alternative’s unique characteristics and complexities.  

o Caltrain, the City, and SMCTA to work collaboratively to evaluate alternative contract 
delivery methods (Design – Bid – Build, Construction Manager/General Contractor, 
Progressive Design Build, other) to reach a consensus recommendation on the optimal 
method based on the selected local preferred alternative’s unique characteristics and 
complexities. 

o This Agreement assumes that Caltrain will prepare for and conduct one (1) one-day 
Project Delivery Assessment Workshop with two (2) analysis focuses: a qualitative 
analysis and a quantitative analysis. 

▪ Caltrain will prepare background materials with support of the City, and create 
the workshop agenda and handout materials necessary to conduct the qualitative 
and quantitative parts of the workshop. Caltrain, SMCTA and the City to 

Page F-3.6



Service Agreement 

pg. 4 

  

provide input to various qualitative and quantitative factors involved in the 
Project Delivery Method analysis. 

▪ Caltrain staff will facilitate the workshop.

▪ This Agreement assumes that Caltrain will use the Transportation Research
Board’s TCRP Report 131 “Project Delivery Method Selection Tool for Transit
Projects” and Caltrans Modified Quantitative Project Delivery Method Selection,
as base template for its evaluation. If the parties agree on proposed delivery
method, Caltrain to document the consensus recommendation in an Alternative
Project Delivery Decision Report.

1.2.  Development of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

o Caltrain staff will coordinate with the City and SMCTA for development of standard

MOU outline.

o The MOU will define all parties’ roles and responsibilities and overall scope of work to
be contained in the MOU among the City, SMCTA, and Caltrain.

o Caltrain staff will develop MOU Exhibit A-Work Plan and budget.

o Caltrain will provide on-going coordination activities for MOU Development (ongoing
coordination among City, SMCTA, and Caltrain staff; support of staff reports,
presentations, budgets, etc.) and supporting materials to facilitate the execution of the
MOU.

o Caltrain will facilitate up to three (3) meetings among the City, funding partners, and
Caltrain staff to agree on MOU final terms.

1.3  Development of Request(s) For Proposals (RFPs) 

o Caltrain will develop one or more RFPs for advancing the project beyond the
PE/Environmental Clearance phase into final design and construction in accordance
with the consensus alternative delivery method recommendation. The scope of work for
the draft RFP will vary as necessary based on the selected contract delivery model.
Environmental review-related tasks such as CEQA/NEPA environmental review
processes, and procuring environmental permits, will be advanced through a separate
contract by Caltrain’s Environmental On-Call consultants.

o Caltrain will provide draft RFP(s) to the City for its review and will incorporate up to
two (2) rounds of the City’s comments.

o Caltrain will conduct any additional research required to ensure that advanced design
criteria comply with Caltrain’s standards.

o Caltrain staff will develop f board documents such as board resolutions, staff reports,
Power Point presentations, and other supporting materials to seek authorization of the
issuance of the RFP(s) by the PCJPB.

o The RFP(s) will be subject to legal review by Caltrain and City legal counsel.

Page F-3.7



Service Agreement  

 

   pg. 5 

     

    

 

 

2. Project Delivery Process & Schedules 

2.1 Capital Projects Delivery  

Caltrain has an internal capital projects delivery process that defines distinct phases and periodic 
check-ins after each project phase. (See Appendix D).  This methodology is used as quality control 
oversight by Caltrain leadership to ensure that projects proceed in alignment with scope, budget, and 
schedule as approved in the capital budget.  The span of this Agreement is included as part of Phase 
Gate 3. 

2.2 Estimated Milestones  

This information is offered for reference. As project-specific schedules are developed, these check-in 
points will be identified as milestones in accordance with this process. For this project, initial 
estimated milestone dates are: 

Gate 1 - Project Initiation Jan 27, 2022 

Gate 2 - 15% Development Complete NA 

Gate 3 - 35% Development Complete June, 2023 

Gate 4 - 65% Development Complete TBD 

Gate 5 - 100% Development Complete TBD 

Gate 6 - Substantial Completion TBD 

Gate 7 - Start-Up / Turnover Complete TBD 

Gate 8 - Project Closeout Complete TBD 

 

As relates to Agreement tasks, the estimated timelines and milestones are included below. These 
timelines assume concurrence from both Caltrain and City staff for the project’s design revisions, any 
related supplemental environmental clearance and adoption of the design revisions by Menlo Park 
City Council. These timelines may be adjusted as circumstances require upon the written agreement 
of the parties, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

Expected durations of tasks: 

 

 

 

A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J

Task 1 - Alternative Contract Delivery Analysis

Task 2 - Development of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

Task 3 - Development of the RFPs

Service Agreement Estimated Timeline

2023 2024

Caltrain FY23 FY24

Page F-3.8



Service Agreement 

pg. 6 

  

3. Work Product Review Periods

The estimated timeline above includes Caltrain and City review periods. 

It is anticipated that the City will require up to three (3) weeks to review documents produced by 
Caltrain. Caltrain will require up to three (3) weeks to incorporate the City’s comments into the 
deliverables.  

4. Budget, Reporting, and Payment

As consideration for the services provided by Caltrain under this Agreement, the City will pay the 
costs for Caltrain’s services, as estimated herein. Costs associated with activities described within this 
Agreement have been estimated based on Caltrain’s current understanding of the project to date and 
information provided by the City. This estimate is not intended to represent final project costs or bid 
cost. Every effort will be made by all parties to keep the overall project’s cost as low as possible while 
delivering the intended scope and objectives within schedule. 

4.1 Progress Reports 

Caltrain will provide the City with quarterly progress reports on expenditures and the City will 
provide Caltrain with quarterly progress reports on related activities and funding updates. 

4.2 Estimated Budget 

The overall estimated budget for this Agreement is $571,940.60, of which $89,278.60 is included as 
contingency funds. (See Appendix B). 

The estimated budget for Alternative Contract Delivery Analysis is estimated at $200,172.00. This 
conservative estimate assumes this task will be completed by an outside consultant from Caltrain’s on-
call consultant bench, with oversight by Caltrain staff. Prior to initiating this task, should Caltrain 
determine there is available in-house staff with the appropriate expertise and availability to complete 
this task, a revised estimate for this task will be provided to the City.  

The estimated budget for MOU development is $32,944.00. 

The estimated budget for RFP(s) development assumes that the project will be delivered through the 
Construction Manager/General Contractor (CMGC) method. The estimated budget for RFP(s) 
development includes development of an RFP for CMGC ($156,000) as well as development of an RFP 
for final design ($93,546.00).  Should CMGC be selected for the contract delivery method, both RFPs 
would be required.  If another delivery method is selected through the Alternative Contract Delivery 
Analysis, then the estimated budget for RFP(s) development would suffice and a revised estimate for 
this task would be provided to the City, upon written request.  

Page F-3.9



Service Agreement  

 

   pg. 7 

     

    

4.3 Caltrain Fully Burdened Unit Cost Rates and Contingency Funds  

Caltrain’s billing rates are designed to ensure reimbursement of actual costs to Caltrain for provided 
services on third-party projects.  

Caltrain’s billing rates include actual salaries and fringe benefit costs, which are billed as direct labor 
costs. Additionally, Caltrain rates also include indirect labor costs in the form of Internal Cost 
Allocation Plan (ICAP) rates, which reflect actual overhead costs that are not efficient to charge directly 
to the project, such as financial services.  

Both fringe benefit costs and estimated ICAP rate are updated on a fiscal year (FY) basis. More details 
on the current rates applied to San Mateo County Transit District (“District”) labor including Caltrain, 
Consultants and Non-labor, in Appendix C. 

Contingency provides funds for additional hours. Contingency funds will not be utilized without prior 
written (via email) authorization from the City. However, the City’s authorization for the release of 
contingency funds will not be unreasonably withheld.  See Appendix B for budget details.  

It is understood that Caltrain may submit a written request to the City for annual labor rate update, no 
later than 30 days before the start of the succeeding fiscal year, to be effective the first day of the 
subsequent fiscal year, or the date of Caltrain’s request, whichever date is later. Caltrain may also 
submit a written request to City for labor rate changes upon staff changes. Increases in future 
negotiated fully burden billing rates, if requested, shall be limited to an annually negotiated, not-to-
exceed percentage, according to the Construction Cost Index from the Engineering News Record for 
the San Francisco Bay Area. Caltrain’s requests for new rates shall be subject to approval by the City, 
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

4.4 Invoices 

The PCJPB will invoice the City for work performed under this Agreement quarterly in arrears.  
Payment by the City is due 30 days following the date of each invoice.  

The City may elect to apply any remaining, un-used budget from previous agreements related to 
Middle Avenue Undercrossing Project, to the balance due for this SA budget. 

5. Term of Agreement  

It is understood by all parties that this Agreement will terminate on June 30, 2024, unless it is mutually 
agreed upon by both Caltrain (e.g. Capital Delivery PM) and the City (e.g. Public Works Director) to 
extend the duration of this Agreement.  

6. Governing Law   

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of California. 

7. Amendments 

This Agreement may be amended at any time and from time to time, provided such amendments are 
in writing and executed by the Parties.  

Page F-3.10



Service Agreement 

pg. 8 

  

8. Entire Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to its subject matter and 
supersedes any prior oral or written understanding on the same subject. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, PCJPB and the City execute this Agreement as follows with the intent to be 
legally bound: 

PENINSULA CORRIDOR CITY OF MENLO PARK 
JOINT POWERS BOARD 

By: By: 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Michelle Bouchard  Justin Murphy 
Executive Director  City Manager 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Date  Date 

Approved as to Form: Approved as to Form: 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 

James C. Harrison Nira Doherty 
General Counsel City Attorney 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Date  Date 

Page F-3.11



Service Agreement  

 

   pg. 9 

     

    

 

Appendix A - Middle Avenue Undercrossing – Project Drawings 

 
 

Page F-3.12



Appendix B – Middle Avenue Undercrossing Service Agreement Tasks Budget 

1. These FB Unit Cost Rates are offered as placeholders. They may or may not be updated prior to this Agreement getting executed.

Caltrain Fully 

Burdened Unit 

Cost Rates

(FY23)

Position Staff Name Hours  Fee Hours  Fee Hours  Fee Hours  Fee 

211.00$   Deputy Chief, Design and Construction Robert Barnard 0  $  - 0  $  - 4  $  844 4  $  844 

297.00$   Director, Capital Program Delivery Andy Robbins 12  $  3,564 16  $  4,752 40  $  11,880 68  $  20,196 

139.00$   Senior Project Manager Arul Edwin 16  $  2,224 44  $  6,116 248  $  34,472 308  $  42,812 

1 158.00$   Senior Structural Engineer TBD 0  $  - 6  $  948 8  $  1,264 14  $  2,212 

198.00$   Engineering Director Zouheir Farah 16  $  3,168 22  $  4,356 40  $  7,920 78  $  15,444 

174.00$   Engineering Infrastructure Manager Bin Zhang 14  $  2,436 18  $  3,132 36  $  6,264 68  $  11,832 

127.00$   Senior Track Engineer TBD 0  $  - 0  $  - 0  $  - 0  $  - 
1 185.00$   Resident Engineer N/A 0  $  - 0  $  - 0  $  - 0  $  - 

1 200.00$   District Temp/Annuitant Patrick May 0  $  - 0  $  - 70  $  14,000 70  $  14,000 
1 169.00$   Procurement Manager Alice Cho 0  $  - 0  $  - 16  $  2,704 16  $  2,704 

169.00$   Dir. Contracts and Procurement Kevin Yin 0  $  - 0  $  - 8  $  1,352 8  $  1,352 

203.00$   Deputy Chief, Planning Dahlia Chazan 0  $  - 2  $  406 2  $  406 4  $  812 

135.00$   Deputy Director, Capital Planning Nicole Soultanov 4  $  540 16  $  2,160 10  $  1,350 30  $  4,050 

260.00$   Capital Planning Support Dennis Kearney 4  $  1,040 16  $  4,160 10  $  2,600 30  $  7,800 

122.00$   Principal Planner, Access Planning Dan Provence 0  $  - 2  $  244 6  $  732 8  $  976 

159.00$   Dep Director, Prg Management & Env Comp Hilda Lafebre 0  $  - 8  $  1,272 6  $  954 14  $  2,226 

123.00$   Cap Projects & Env. Pl, Manager Bonny Oconnor 0  $  - 8  $  984 6  $  738 14  $  1,722 

189.00$   Environmental Planning Support Jonathan Carey 0  $  - 4  $  756 4  $  756 8  $  1,512 

1 413.00$   Legal Counsel TBD 0  $  - 6  $  2,478 10  $  4,130 16  $  6,608 

100.00$   Government Affairs Acting Manager Lori Low 0  $  - 8  $  800 8  $  800 16  $  1,600 

95.00$   Government Affairs Officer TBD 0  $  - 4  $  380 4  $  380 8  $  760 

66  $  12,972 180  $ 32,944.00 536  $   93,546.00 782  $  139,462.00 

30%  $  3,891.60  $  9,883.20  $   28,063.80 41,838.60$   

 $  -  $  -  $   47,440.00 47,440.00$   

 $  187,200  $  -  $ 156,000.00 343,200.00$  

 $  204,063.60  $ 42,827.20  $ 325,049.80 768  $  432,478.60 

571,940.60$   

*Estimated consultant costs include 4% Caltrain mark-up

Legal Counsel

G&CA

Subtotal

Contingency/Additional Costs

Contingency

Consultant Costs*

Subtotal adjusted

Total Including Contingencies

RFP Contingency

Environmental Planning

Infrastructure Engineering 

Procurement and Contracts

Task 3    

RFPs Development

Planning 

Totals

Project Delivery

Task 1 Alternative 

Contract Delivery 

Analysis 

Task 2

MOU Development

Page F-3.13



 

Appendix C – Caltrain Fully Burdened Unit Cost Rates, 2023 
 
 

Caltrain Fully Burdened Unit Cost Rates – 2023  
 
Effective July 1, 2022 these rates should be applied to District labor, Consultants and Non-Labor for purposes of external 
agreements with the District.  Rates will be updated annually, and the District reserves the right to update rates a 
maximum of one time during the year, if warranted.  The District will communicate all such changes in writing.  
 

 
 
 

 The San Mateo County Transit District (District) provides motorbus, paratransit and shuttle service in San Mateo 
County. The District also administers and manages the day-to-day operations of the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers 
Board (PCJPB)/Caltrain; San Mateo County Transportation Authority (TA); and San Mateo County Express Lane Joint 
Powers Authority (JPA). The District uses cost allocation and rate setting methodologies to assign and recover costs 
incurred by providing services shared by all agencies.  
 
Fully Burdened Rate for Onsite Consultants and Non-Labor Items:  Unit Cost + ICAP   
 
Agency Indirect Costs (AIA): Onsite consultants and non-labor items are “grossed up” to add in Agency Indirect Costs 
(AIA) and Capital Overhead.  Taken together, these components are referred to as the Internal Cost Allocation Plan Rate, 
which is supported by an audited Internal Cost Allocation Plan (ICAP) using statistics appropriate to the costs allocated.  
AIA costs benefit all agencies and include staff in support departments such as Human Resources, Information 
Technology and Telecommunications, Treasury, Accounting and Budgets, Security, Facilities Maintenance and Contracts 
& Procurement.  All staff time devoted to shared service activities are recorded to the AIA project category within the 
accounting system. Annually, AIA costs are allocated to the appropriate benefiting agencies through the ICAP.  
Capital Overhead:  Capital costs associated with pooled support costs that cannot be directly attributed to a specific 
capital project, including labor and non-labor costs specific to each agency’s capital projects, are recorded to the Capital 
Overhead project within the accounting system. A rate is used to charge for the three categories of costs.  The rates are 
calculated and updated on an annual basis.  
 
Fully Burdened Rate for Employees: Unit Cost + ICAP + Fringe Benefits 
 
The fully burdened rate for employee includes the ICAP rate shown above, and also includes Employee Fringe Benefits.  
Fringe benefits cover costs associated with payroll taxes, pension plan contributions, group insurance premiums 
(medical, dental, vision coverages), life insurance, long-term disability, unemployment insurance, and paid time off 
(PTO). These costs are initially paid by the District and charged to benefitting agencies through the application of a fringe 
benefit rate.  
   

Page F-3.14



Appendix D – Caltrain Phase/Gate Process 

Page F-3.15



Service Agreement 

pg. 13 Page F-3.16



ATTACHMENT B

Page F-3.17



Community Development 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-097-CC

Public Hearing: Consider an appeal of the Planning Commission 
approval of a use permit to demolish an existing 
single-story, single-family residence and construct 
a new two-story residence with an attached garage 
on a substandard lot at 440 University Drive and 
determine this action is categorically exempt under 
CEQA Guidelines §15303’s Class 3 exemption for 
new construction or conversion of small structures 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution denying the appeal and upholding the Planning 
Commission’s approval of a use permit to demolish an existing one-story, single-family residence and 
construct a new two-story residence with an attached garage on a substandard lot with regard to minimum 
lot width and area in the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning district located at 440 University 
Drive. The draft resolution is included as Attachment A. 

Policy Issues 
Each use permit request is considered individually. The City Council should consider whether the required 
use permit findings can be made for the proposal. 

Background 
Project description 
The subject property is located on the northeastern side of University Drive, between Middle Avenue and 
College Avenue in the Allied Arts neighborhood. The subject lot and all neighboring properties are located in 
the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning district. A location map is included as Attachment B. 
This block of University Drive features many one-story homes in the ranch and Spanish architectural styles, 
but several properties have been redeveloped with newer two-story homes with primarily craftsman 
architectural styles. 

The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing one-story, single-family residence and construct a new 
two-story, single-family residence with an attached accessory dwelling unit (ADU). The ADU is not subject 
to discretionary review. A data table summarizing parcel and project characteristics is included in 
Attachment C. The project plans and project description letter are included in Attachment A as Exhibits A 
and B, respectively. 

The proposed residence would be a three-bedroom, three-and-one-half bathroom home. The attached ADU 
would also be located on the first floor. The required parking for the primary dwelling would be provided by 
an attached, front-loading, two-car garage. The proposed residence would meet all Zoning Ordinance 

AGENDA ITEM G-1

Page G-1.1



Staff Report #: 23-097-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

requirements for setbacks, lot coverage, floor area limit (FAL), daylight plane, parking and height. 

The proposed residence would exceed the setback requirements on all sides as shown in the data table 
(Attachment C). The proposed second story would be stepped back from the first story on the front and right 
side, and a portion of the left side. The second story would be stepped back to 26 feet, two inches on the 
front, approximately nine feet, three inches on the right side, and to approximately 12 feet, two inches along 
the front two-thirds of the left side.  

Planning Commission review 
On February 6, 2023, the Planning Commission reviewed the project. There was one public commenter 
(appellant) who expressed her opposition to the project. The Planning Commission discussed whether a 
shade study had been conducted for the project and if the applicant was willing to include obscured glass in 
the stairwell window to increase privacy. After considering public comments on the proposal, the Planning 
Commission approved the project with a condition to include obscured glass in the stairwell window, 4-0-2, 
with two commissioners abstaining. A hyperlink to the staff report from the February 6, 2023 Planning 
Commission meeting is included as Attachment C. The Planning Commission Resolution, including 
conditions of approval, is included as Attachment D, and draft minutes from the February 6, 2023 meeting 
are included as Attachment E.  

Analysis 
Appeal of the Planning Commission action 
On February 17, 2023, the City received an appeal of the Planning Commission’s approval of the use 
permit. The appeal was submitted by Elizabeth Houck, a resident of Menlo Park. A portion of Ms. Houck’s 
side property line (883 Middle Avenue) abuts the subject property’s rear property line. The appellant 
provided written comments prior to the hearing and verbal testimony that was considered by the Planning 
Commission at the public hearing. The appeal letter (Attachment F) outlines several points which are 
discussed below. The concerns outlined in the letter are similar to the concerns raised at the Planning 
Commission hearing. The points included in the appeal letter (in italics) and staff’s response are 
summarized below: 

a. Information presented by both staff and the builder were factually incorrect.
The area plan (Sheet AP1 of the plans), which shows the subject lot and the surrounding properties for
context, appears to have an error and does not show an accessory building in the rear of the appellant’s
house. The location of the building appears to be directly behind the main residence and not in the
southeast corner of the appellant’s property (nearest to the subject property). The applicant has updated the
area plan in the plan set (Attachment A, Exhibit A) to include the accessory building, which is located
approximately 64 feet away from the proposed residence. Aside from this correction, staff believes that the
information presented in the staff report and in the plan set is accurate.

b. The residence will block current and future solar access.
The proposed residence complies with all height limits, setbacks, and daylight plane requirements intended
to maintain solar access. The location of the proposed second story would not cause any unique impacts to
solar access.

c. There is an opportunity to move the house two feet closer to the street.
While the living space of the proposed residence is proposed approximately one foot, eight inches from the
required 20-foot front setback line, there is a covered porch in the front of the residence which is proposed
only two inches from the front setback line. Moving the residence forward two feet would render the porch

Page G-1.2



Staff Report #: 23-097-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

nonconforming, and the residence would need to be redesigned to comply with the required front setback. 
 
d. The Planning Commission should have required the applicant to provide taller landscaping than their 

current plans to screen the proposed residence. 
The proposed project includes a planting plan which indicates one crape myrtle tree to be planted in the 
northwest corner of the property to screen the proposed house from the appellant’s property. Other 
existing trees are proposed to remain on the subject property. Screening hedges are limited to seven 
feet in height, and additional tree plantings may conflict with existing trees. 
 

e. The second story should be moved five to eight feet further from the rear property line. 
The second story is located 10 inches from the minimum 20-foot rear setback line and toward the right side 
of the subject property (away from the appellant’s residence). There does not appear to be any buildings in 
the southeast corner of the appellant’s property, and therefore, the location of the proposed second story 
would not cause any unique impacts to privacy. 
 
f. The approval was not unanimous. 
Two Planning Commissioners abstained from voting, however, the project received unanimous approval 
from the voting Commissioners. Furthermore, project approval does not need to be unanimous, but they 
require a majority of the Commissioners present and voting, in this case four votes. 
 
g. Thomas James Homes is in financial peril and there needs to be accountability for the construction 
timeline and not let the property go fallow. 
The City does not speculate on the financial situation of private businesses. Should the use permit be 
granted, the permit is valid for a period of one year, unless an extension is approved or a complete building 
permit application has been submitted. Once a building permit has been filed and/or issued, progress is 
needed in order to remain active and valid.  

 
h. The ADU is a square footage grab and a separate entrance is required. 
ADUs are allowed to exceed the maximum floor area limit by up to 800 square feet per the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance and required by State Law. The ADU has a separate exterior entrance shown on the floor plans 
(Sheet A.4). ADUs are allowed to have interior access to the main residence, provided the door has a 
double-locking mechanism, which is also noted on the floor plan. 
 
City Council options on the appeal 
Per §16.86.040 of the zoning ordinance, the City Council may affirm, reverse, or modify the decision of the 
Planning Commission. To reverse or modify the Planning Commission’s decision shall require the 
affirmative vote of three-fifths of the City Council (or three City Councilmembers.) If the City Council does 
not take any action on the appeal, the Planning Commission’s action shall be deemed affirmed. The City 
Council’s action would be considered final and the decision may not be appealed.  
 
Correspondence  
Staff has not received any additional items of correspondence on this item as of publication of the staff 
report.  
 
Conclusion 
Staff believes that the design, scale, and materials of the proposed residence are generally compatible with 
the surrounding neighborhood. Staff believes the proposed residence would not create an undue burden on 
the appellant’s property and would not be detrimental to the health, safety, morals, comfort, and general 
welfare of the neighborhood. Staff recommends that the City Council deny the appeal and uphold the 

Page G-1.3



Staff Report #: 23-097-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Planning Commission’s approval of the proposed project. 

Impact on City Resources 
Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on someone else’s project by Menlo Park residents are subject 
to a flat-rate fee of $110 and are not subject to cost recovery fees.  

Environmental Review 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (§15303, “New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures”) of the current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 

Public Notice 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Public notification also consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper 
and notification by mail of owners and occupants within a 300-foot radius of the subject property.  

Attachments 
A. Draft City Council resolution denying the appeal and upholding the Planning Commission’s approval of

the project Use Permit
Exhibits to Attachment A:
A. Project plans
B. Project description letter
C. Conditions of approval

B. Location map
C. Hyperlink – February 6, 2023 Planning Commission staff report:

menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/planning-commission/2023-
meetings/agendas/20230206-planning-commission-agenda-packet-compressed-1.pdf#page=250

D. Planning Commission resolution
E. Draft February 6, 2023 Planning Commission meeting minutes
F. Appeal letter – February 17, 2023

Report prepared by: 
Chris Turner, Associate Planner 

Report reviewed by: 
Corinna Sandmeier, Principal Planner 
Deanna Chow, Assistant Community Development Director 

Page G-1.4

https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/planning-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230206-planning-commission-agenda-packet-compressed-1.pdf#page=250
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/planning-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230206-planning-commission-agenda-packet-compressed-1.pdf#page=250


RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
DENYING AN APPEAL AND UPHOLDING THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
APPROVAL OF A USE PERMIT FOR THE DEMOLITION OF AN EXISITNG 
ONE-STORY, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE AND CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 
TWO-STORY, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE ON A SUBSTANDARD LOT WITH 
REGARD TO MINIMUM LOT WIDTH AND AREA IN THE R-1-U (SINGLE 
FAMILY URBAN RESIDENTIAL) ZONING DISTRICT LOCATED AT 440 
UNIVERSITY DRIVE 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received an application requesting to demolish an 
existing one-story, single-family residence, and construct a new two-story residence on a 
substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width and area in the Single Family Urban Residential 
(R-1-U) zoning district (the “Project”) from Thomas James Homes (“Owner” and “Applicant”) 
located at 440 University Drive (APN 071-403-280) (“Property”). The Project use permit is depicted 
in and subject to the development plans and project description letter which are attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively, and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the Single Family Urban Residential (R-1-U) district. The R-
1-U district supports single-family residential uses; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Project complies with all objective standards of the R-1-U district; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project was reviewed by the Engineering Division and found to be in 
compliance with City standards; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted an arborist report prepared by California Tree and 
Landscaping Consulting, Inc. which was reviewed by the City Arborist and found to be in 
compliance with the Heritage Tree Ordinance and proposes mitigation measures to adequately 
protect heritage trees in the vicinity of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Project, requires discretionary actions by the City as summarized above, and 
therefore the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Public Resources Code Section 
§21000 et seq.) and CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15000 et seq.) require
analysis and a determination regarding the Project’s environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, the City is the lead agency, as defined by CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, and is 
therefore responsible for the preparation, consideration, certification, and approval of 
environmental documents for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Project is categorically except from environmental review pursuant to Cal. Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, §15303 et seq. (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures); and 

WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held according to 
law; and 

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on February 6, 2023, the Planning 
Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of the record including all public 

ATTACHMENT A

Page G-1.5



and written comments, pertinent information, documents and plans, prior to taking action regarding 
the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission made use permit findings and approved the use permit for 
the proposed residence and conditioned the project to include obscured glass in the stair well 
window to increase privacy; and  

WHEREAS, the project was appealed to the City Council by the owner of 883 Middle Avenue with 
the 15-day appeal period; and  

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on April 4, 2023, the City Council 
fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of the record including all public and written 
comments, pertinent information, documents and plans, prior to taking action regarding the Project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MENLO PARK CITY COUNCIL HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Recitals.  The City Council has considered the full record before it, which may include 
but is not limited to such things as the staff report, public testimony, and other materials and 
evidence submitted or provided, and the City Council finds the foregoing recitals are true and 
correct, and they are hereby incorporated by reference into this Resolution. 

Section 2. Denial of Appeal. The City Council hereby denies Appeal No.________ (appeal of 
Elizabeth Houck), upholds the Planning Commission Actions, and approves the use permit, for the 
440 University Avenue development project based on the following findings: 
1. The grounds upon which the appellant has submitted its appeal of the Planning Commission

Actions are not a basis to reverse the Planning Commission Actions and deny the project:

a. Information presented by both staff and the builder were factually incorrect.
The area plan(Sheet AP1 of the plans), which shows the subject lot and the surrounding properties
for context, appears to have an error and does not show an accessory building in the rear of the
appellant’s house. The location of the building appears to be directly behind the main residence
and not in the southeast corner of the appellant’s property (nearest to the subject property). The
applicant has updated the area plan in the plan set (Attachment A Exhibit A) to include the
accessory building, which is located approximately 64 feet away from the proposed residence.
Aside from this correction, staff believes that the information presented in the staff report and in the
plan set is accurate.

b. The residence will block current and future solar access.
The proposed residence complies with all height limits, setbacks, and daylight plane requirements
intended to maintain solar access. The location of the proposed second story would not cause any
unique impacts to solar access.

c. There is an opportunity to move the house two feet closer to the street.
While the living space of the proposed residence is proposed approximately one foot, eight inches
from the required 20-foot front setback line, there is a covered porch in the front of the residence
which is proposed only two inches from the front setback line. Moving the residence forward two
feet would render the porch nonconforming, and the residence would need to be redesigned to
comply with the required front setback.

d. The Planning Commission should have required the applicant to provide taller landscaping
than their current plans to screen the proposed residence.

Page G-1.6



 

The proposed project includes a planting plan which indicates one crape myrtle tree to be planted 
in the northwest corner of the property to screen the proposed house from the appellant’s property. 
Other existing trees are proposed to remain on the subject property. Screening hedges are limited 
to seven feet in height, and additional tree plantings may conflict with existing trees. 
 
e. The second story should be moved five to eight feet further from the rear property line. 
The second story is located 10 inches from the minimum 20-foot rear setback line and towards the 
right side of the subject property (away from the appellant’s residence). There does not appear to 
be any buildings in the southeast corner of the appellant’s property, and therefore, the location of 
the proposed second story would not cause any unique impacts to privacy. 
 
f. The approval was not unanimous. 
Two Planning Commissioners abstained from voting, however, the project received unanimous 
approval from the voting Commissioners. Furthermore, project approval does not need to be 
unanimous, but they require a majority of the Commissioners present and voting, in this case four 
votes. 
 
g.  Thomas James Homes is in financial peril and there needs to be accountability for the 

construction timeline and not let the property go fallow. 
The City does not speculate on the financial situation of private businesses. Should the use permit 
be granted, the permit is valid for a period of one year, unless an extension is approved or a 
complete building permit application has been submitted. Once a building permit has been filed 
and/or issued, progress is needed in order to remain active and valid. 
 
 
h. The ADU is a square footage grab and a separate entrance is required. 
ADUs are allowed to exceed the maximum floor area limit by up to 800 square feet per the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance and required by State Law. The ADU has a separate exterior entrance shown on 
the floor plans (Sheet A.4). ADUs are allowed to have interior access to the main residence, 
provided the door has a double-locking mechanism, which is also noted on the floor plan. 
 
Section 3.  Conditional Use Permit Findings.  The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does 
hereby make the following Findings:   
The denial of the appeal and approval of the use permit for the construction of new two-story residence 
on a substandard lot is granted based on the following findings which are made pursuant to Menlo Park 
Municipal Code Section 16.82.030: 
1. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will, under the 

circumstance of the particular case, not be detrimental to the health, safety, morals, comfort and 
general welfare of the persons residing in the neighborhood of such proposed use, or injurious or 
detrimental to property and improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the city 
because: 
 

a. Consideration and due regard were given to the nature and condition of all adjacent uses and 
structures, and to general plans for the area in question and surrounding areas, and impact of 
the application hereon; in that, the proposed use permit is consistent with the R-1-U zoning 
district and the General Plan because two-story residences are allowed to be constructed on 
substandard lots subject to granting of a use permit provided that the proposed residence 
conforms to applicable zoning standards, including, but not limited to, minimum setbacks, 
maximum floor area limit, and maximum building coverage.  

 
b. The proposed residence would include the required number of off-street parking spaces 

because one covered and one uncovered parking space would be required at a minimum, 

Page G-1.7



and two covered parking spaces are provided. 

Section 4.  Conditional Use Permit.  The City Council denies the appeal and upholds the 
Planning Commission approval of Use Permit No. PLN2022-00050, which use permit is depicted in 
and subject to the development plans and project description letter, which are attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively.  The Use Permit is 
conditioned in conformance with the conditions attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as Exhibit C.   

Section 5.  Environmental review.  The City Council makes the following findings, based on its 
independent judgment after considering the Project, and having reviewed and taken into consideration 
all written and oral information submitted in this matter: 

A. The Project is categorically except from environmental review pursuant to Cal. Code of
Regulations, Title 14, §15303 et seq. (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures)

Section 6.  Severability  
If any term, provision, or portion of these findings or the application of these findings to a particular 
situation is held by a court to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of these 
findings, or their application to other actions related to the Project, shall continue in full force and 
effect unless amended or modified by the City. 

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the fourth day of April, 2023, by the following votes:  

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City on 
this __ day of April, 2023. 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Exhibits: 
A. Project plans
B. Project description letter
C. Conditions of approval

Page G-1.8



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.0

COVER SHEET

4 4 0  U n i v e r s i t y  D r .   MENLO PARK, CA

PLANNING SUBMITTAL FOR:

VICINITY MAP:

N

NOT TO SCALE

Developer
Thomas James Homes
255 Shoreline Dr Suite 428
Redwood City, CA 94065
Tel:  (408) 402-3024

Architect

Dahlin Group 
5865 Owens Drive 
Pleasanton, CA  94588
Tel: (925) 251-7200 
Contact: Jaime Matheron
jaime.matheron@dahlingroup.com

Landscape
Van Dorn Abed Landscape 
Architects, Inc.
81 14th Street,
San Francisco, CA 94103
Tel:  (415) 864-1921
Contact: Hoanglan Nguyen
hoanglan@valainc.com 

PROJECT TEAM INFO: ARCHITECTURAL:
A.0 TITLE SHEET
A.1 SITE AERIAL & PHOTOS
AP1         AREA PLAN
A.3 SITE PLAN
A.4 FLOOR PLANS
A.5 ROOF PLAN
A.6 FLOOR AREA DIAGRAMS
A.7 ELEVATIONS
A.8 ELEVATIONS 
A.9 SECTIONS
A.10 COLORS & MATERIALS

RENDERING & COLOR BOARD

AS-BUILTS:
1 FLOOR PLAN
2  ROOF PLAN
3  EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

CIVIL:
TO1   TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

LANDSCAPE:
L1.1   CALLOUT/ LAYOUT PLAN
L1.2  CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
L2.1  IRRIGATION NOTES & WELO CHECKLIST
L3.1  PLANTING PLAN & LEGEND
L3.2  PLANTING DETAILS
L3.3  TREE PROTECTION PLAN & NOTES

SHEET INDEX:

LOCATION 440 UNIVERSITY DR.
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER 071-403-280
PARCEL AREA - GROSS 5,200 SQ. FT. 0.12 AC 
ZONING DESIGNATION  R-1-U
OCCUPANCY GROUP R-3
CONSTRUCTION TYPE  V-B

MAX. FLOOR AREA LIMIT 2,800.00 SQ. FT. PROPOSED FLOOR AREA LIMIT 2755.84  SQ. FT.

FAL (INCLUDING ADU 
EXCEEDANCE)          3033.12  SQ. FT.

MAX. BUILDING COVERAGE 1,820.00 SQ. FT. PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE 1,778.84 SQ. FT.
(5,200)(.35)

PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE
(INCLUDING ADU EXCEEDANCE) 2056.12 SQ. FT.

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 28’ PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT 26’-3 1/2” 
FROM ANG

REQUIRED SETBACKS
FRONT - STREET (FT) 20’

           FRONT - STREET- 
                            AT GARAGE (FT)       20’

SIDE (FT) 5’-3”
REAR (FT)  20’

PARKING REQUIRED:
2 TOTAL SPACES 

           MIN. GARAGE DIMENSIONS: 10’ X 20’ PER SPACE

EXISTING USE: ONE SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENCE OF TO BE DEMOLISHED.

PROPOSED USE: ONE NEW SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED RESIDENCE OF 3033.12  SQ. FT.

CODES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE PROJECT: CURRENT 2022 CALIFORNIA CODES

PROPOSED SETBACKS
FRONT - STREET (FT) 21’-8”

           FRONT - STREET- 
                            AT GARAGE (FT)       24’-8”

SIDE - RIGHT (FT)  5’-4 1/2”
SIDE - LEFT (FT) 8’-1 1/2”
REAR (FT)  20’-10”

ALL EXISTING CRACKED OR DAMAGED FEATURES ALONG THE PROPERTY FRONTAGE 
MUST BE REPAIRED IN KIND. ADDITIONALLY, ANY FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH ARE 
DAMAGED AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION WILL BE REQUIRED TO BE REPLACED. ALL 
FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENT WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST VERSION 
OF THE CITY STANDARD DETAILS.

ANY ENCROACHMENT PERMIT FROM THE ENGINEERING DIVISION IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO 
ANY CONSTUCTION ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING UTILITY LATERALS, IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF 
WAY.

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS

440 UNIVERSITY DR.

 FIRST FLOOR 1031.59 SQ. FT.

  SECOND FLOOR 1287.00 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL LIVING 2318.59 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

  ADU 277.28 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 54.50 SQ. FT.

  LANAI 247.50 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL: (LIVING + GARAGE) 2755.84 SQ. FT.

  FAL: (LIVING + GARAGE + ADU) 3033.12 SQ. FT.

  MAX. FAL: 2800.00 SQ. FT.

THOMAS JAMES HOMES
STANDARD S.F.(LIVING+ ADU + 24)

2619.87 SQ. FT.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

)

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

3 BEDROOMS  / 3.5 BATH +
1 BEDROOM / 1 BATH ADU

BUILDING COVERAGE

  FIRST FLOOR 1039.59 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 54.50 SQ. FT.

  LANAI 247.50 SQ. FT.

  ADU 54.50 SQ. FT.

  FIREPLACE 8.00 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL (W/O ADU): 1778.84 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL (WITH ADU): 2056.12 SQ. FT.

  MAX. BLDG. COVERAGE 1820.00 SQ.FT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

PROJECT LOCATION

UNIV
ERSITY DR.M

IDDLE AVE.  

EXHIBIT A

Page G-1.9



SITE

440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.1

SITE AERIAL & PHOTOS

1
2 3

4

NOT TO SCALE

UNIVERSITY DR.

1

2

4

3

M
ID

D
LE

 A
V

E
.

Page G-1.10



Feet
0 20 40

Co
lle

ge
 A

ve

Sa
nt

a 
Cr

uz
 A

ve

University Drive

M
idd

le 
Av

e

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

: 87
7-

38
1-

40
92

R
ED

W
O

O
D

 C
IT

Y,
 C

A
 9

40
65

25
5 

SH
O

R
EL

IN
E 

D
R

IV
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

42
8

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

•
•

Page G-1.11



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.3

SITE PLAN

REFER TO LANDSCAPE 
SHEETS FOR TREE DETAILS

This Site Plan contains information beyond the scope of work of the 

Architect. Information provided by Civil Engineer, Landscape Architect, 

440 UNIVERSITY DR.

 FIRST FLOOR 1031.59 SQ. FT.

  SECOND FLOOR 1287.00 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL LIVING 2318.59 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

  ADU 277.28 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 54.50 SQ. FT.

  LANAI 247.50 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL: (LIVING + GARAGE) 2755.84 SQ. FT.

  FAL: (LIVING + GARAGE + ADU) 3033.12 SQ. FT.

  MAX. FAL: 2800.00 SQ. FT.

THOMAS JAMES HOMES
STANDARD S.F.(LIVING+ ADU + 24)

2619.87 SQ. FT.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

)

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

3 BEDROOMS  / 3.5 BATH +
1 BEDROOM / 1 BATH ADU

BUILDING COVERAGE

  FIRST FLOOR 1039.59 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 54.50 SQ. FT.

  LANAI 247.50 SQ. FT.

  ADU 54.50 SQ. FT.

  FIREPLACE 8.00 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL (W/O ADU): 1778.84 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL (WITH ADU): 2056.12 SQ. FT.

  MAX. BLDG. COVERAGE 1820.00 SQ.FT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

4

S.C.D.

DUAL
LOCKING
DOOR

MIN. SETBACK

5'-3"

M
IN

. SETBAC
K

5'-3"

M
IN

. SETBAC
K

MIN. SETBACK

20
'-0

"

24
'-8

"

UNIVERSITY AVENUE

440 UNIVERSITY DR.
FFE = 74.06
SEE CIVIL SHEET GP-1
FOR MORE INFORMATION

LANAI

GARAGE

73.56

73.72

73.72

ELEC..LL
METERRTT

GAG
MEM

1 1/2"28'-1

21
'-8

"

22
'-2

"

T

20
'-2

"

20
'-1

0"

9'-2 1/2"2

5'-4 1/2"

7'-8 1/2"77' 8 1/27
EXISTING BUILDING
TO BE DEMOLISHED

EXISTING WOOD DECK
TO BE DEMOLISHED

EXISTING
NEIGHBORING
BUILDING

EXISTING
NEIGHBORING

BUILDING

DRIVEWAY

EXISTING
NEIGHBORING

BUILDING

52'-0"

10
0'

-0
"

16'-3"

12'-1 1/2""-1
R. SETBACK)BR(2ND FLR. R(2

12'-4 1/2//2"/
(2ND FLR. SESETBACK)EEE20

'-1
"

20'-1"

00

N

M
INN

SETBAC
K

22

EE
E

//

4

(2

8-88

111

E
E

R. R
1

SE
N

. 
M

I

333

00
20

'--1
00

2

2

Y 

44

AILANA

5 4 1/2

GGGA

NG

E

7

4

E

4

GG
M

S

/2"/

AAA

M N. SETBAC

AAMMMIN. SETBT

3

7' 8 1/27

NON-PROTECTED
TREE TO REMAIN, TYP.

TECTED TREES
VE, TYP.

NON-PROTECTED TREEO C
TO REMOVE, TYP.O

NEW 36" WOOD FENCEOOO FE6

NEW WOOD FENCE,OOOW
SEE LANDSCAPE DWGSSSA

NEW 36" WOOD FENCE666 E

NEW WOOD FENCE,WWW
SEE LANDSCAPE DWGAA

HIGHEST POINT NEAR RIGHT SETBACK FOR
AVERAGE GRADE AT RIGHT SETBACK TO
DETERMINE DAYLIGHT PLANE = 72.58

HIGHEST POINT NEAR LEFT SETBACK FORT TTS ET
AVERAGE GRADE AT LEFT SETBACK TOGEGG EEEEE

DETERMINE DAYLIGHT PLANE= 72.52MMRM A

LOWEST POINT NEAR LEFT SETBACK FOR
AVERAGE GRADE AT LEFT SETBACK TO

DETERMINE DAYLIGHT PLANE= 72.402.40NE  

LOWEST POINT NEAR RIGHT SETBACK FORF
AVERAGE GRADE AT RIGHT SETBACK TOTO
DETERMINE DAYLIGHT PLANE = 72.24

HIGHEST POINT UNDER BUILDING FORSSS U
AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE TO DETERMINEAAA AL
BUILDING HEIGHT = 72.63

GAGGG

PROPERTY LINEPP YP

NEW AC EQUIPMENT NOT TO EXCEED 60 dBA000E
DURING THE DAY AND 50 dBA AT NIGHTG

NEW AC EQUIPMENT NOT TO EXCEED 60 dBA
DURING THE DAY AND 50 dBA AT NIGHT

LOWEST POINT UNDER BUILDING FOR
AVERAGE NATURAL GRADE TO

TERMINE BUILDING HEIGHT = 72.59

B

20
'-0

"

VV
TT

8'-6"

16
'-6

"

RKINGRKINGGGADU PARADU PARRR
PACEESPP

LANDING AT GRADE - FORNNN
HANDSCAPE, S.L.D.NNN

NON-PROTECTED TREE
TO REMOVE, TYP.NON-PROTECTED TREE

TO REMOVE, TYP.

NON-PROTECTED TREE
TO REMOVE, TYP.

NON-PROTECTED TREES
TO REMOVE, TYP.

NON-PROTECTED TREE
TO REMOVE, TYP.

NON-PROTECTED TREE
TO REMOVE, TYP.

Page G-1.12



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.4

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

WHWWHH

AC
UP

D
R

O
P 

ZO
N

EE
N

E
O

N
Z

O
P

R
O

D
R

D

20'-0"6'-4"12'-2"

18'-2"16'-6"
15

'-0
"

42
'-0

"

23
'-1

1 
1/

2"

38'-6"

34'-8"
59

'-0
"

30
'-6

 1
/2

"

3'-3"2' 8"'

AV CLO.AAVV LL .
SLOPED CLGGP D G

13'-1"5'-4" x

FOYER
10'-1" CLG

12'-1"16'-11" x

DINING
10'-1" CLG

15'-0""01516'-6"16 xx

LANAI

20'-1"20'-1" x

GARAGE
10'-1" CLG ABV. T.O.SLAB @ HOUSE

4'-10"44'--100"5'-6"5'-6 xxx

PWDRPPWWDDRR
9'-1" CLG9'--1"" CCLGG

12'-7"1" x

KITCHEN
0'-1" CLG

14'-7"16'-11" x

GREAT ROOM
10'-1" CLG

4'-10"44'-1104 104'-8"44'-8"- xxxxxx

PANTRYPPAANNTTRRYYPP RY
9'-1" CLG99'-11" CLGGCC

"""""""

VENT  F/P/
THRU WALL

TO OUTSIDE

AC

19 R @ 7.14"
17 T @ 10.5"

2'
-6

"

7'-0"5'-4" x

PORCH
10'-1" CLG

GG
333

U

1'
-6

"
6"

4" MIN.

S.C.D.

A
A.9

B
A.9

DUAL
LOCKING
DOOR 20'-1"

20
'-0

 1
/2

"

SECOND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

DN19 R @ 7.14"
17 T @ 10.5"

13'-3"10'-4" x

PRIMARY BATH
8'-7" CLG

8'-3"38 "5'-8" x

LAUNDRYYAUN
8'-7" CLGCL

5'-0"11'-7" x

BA 2
8'-7" CLG

12'-1"10'-1" x

LOFT
8'-7" CLG

14'-4"17'-3" x

PRIMARY
BEDROOM

8'-7" CLG

11'-3"11'-0" x

BEDROOM 3
8'-7" CLG

12'-3"11'-8" x

BEDROOM 2
8'-7" CLG

7'-1"10'-4" x

W.I.C.
8'-7" CLG

53
'-0

"

15
'-2

 1
/2

"
34

'-1
0"

18'-2"16'-6"

34'-8"

18
'-0

"
20

'-0
"

15
'-0

"

53
'-0

"

3'-2"13'-6 1/2"13'-11 1/2"4'-0"

34'-8"

2'
-1

1 
1/

2"

B
A.9

A
A.9

440 UNIVERSITY DR.

1031.59 SQ. FT.

  SECOND FLOOR 1287.00 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL LIVING 2318.59 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

  ADU 277.28 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 54.50 SQ. FT.

  LANAI 247.50 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL: (LIVING + GARAGE) 2755.84 SQ. FT.

  FAL: (LIVING + GARAGE + ADU) 3033.12 SQ. FT.

  MAX. FAL: 2800.00 SQ. FT.

THOMAS JAMES HOMES
STANDARD S.F.(LIVING+ ADU + 24)

2619.87 SQ. FT.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

)

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

3 BEDROOMS  / 3.5 BATH +
1 BEDROOM / 1 BATH ADU

BUILDING COVERAGE

  FIRST FLOOR 1039.59 SQ. FT.

  GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

  PORCH 54.50 SQ. FT.

  LANAI 247.50 SQ. FT.

  ADU 54.50 SQ. FT.

  FIREPLACE 8.00 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL (W/O ADU): 1778.84 SQ. FT.

  TOTAL (WITH ADU): 2056.12 SQ. FT.

  MAX. BLDG. COVERAGE 1820.00 SQ.FT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

Page G-1.13



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.5

ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

B
A.9

A
A.9

10 1/2"

ROOF PLAN

ALL ROOFING MATERIAL IS COMPOSITION 

SHINGLE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

POTENTIAL SOLAR ZONE

R
ID

G
E

R
ID

G
E

R
ID

G
E

RIDGE

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

VALLEY

VALLEY

VALLEY

VALL
EY

1’-0” EAVE TYP.

1’-0” EAVE TYP.

1’-0” RAKE 

TYP.

 6” RAKE

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

SLOPE

4 : 12

S
LO

P
E

4 
: 1

2

S
LO

P
E

4 
: 1

2

S
LO

P
E

4 
: 1

2 S
LO

P
E

4 
: 1

2

S
LO

P
E

4 
: 1

2

S
LO

P
E

4 
: 1

2

 **

SETBACK LINE

SETBACK LINE

VALLEY

** AS PER MENLO PARK GUIDELINES, 
18” INTRUSION OF ARCHITECTURAL 

FEATURES, SUCH AS EAVES, IS 
ALLOWABLE INTO ANY YARD OF 
LESS THAN 10’. 3’ INTRUSION OF 

ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES, SUCH 
AS EAVES, IS ALLOWABLE INTO ANY 

YARD OF 10’ OR GREATER. 

Page G-1.14



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.6

FLOOR AREA DIAGRAMS

16'-0"20'-7" x
G1

22'-6"12'-2" 2-2 x
ADU 11A

19'-7"12'-2" 9'-'- x
A

19'-0"4'-4" x
B

34'-0"34' 0"18'-2"18' 2" 44-22 xx
C

3'-6"63'-10"10"" x
G3

16'-0"5'-10" xxx
D

15'-0"5 016'-6"1166 "1 xx
LANAI

4'-6"5'-4" xxx
PORCH 1PO H 1

2'-6"5'-10"0" 2xxx
PORCH 2

2'-0"2 07'-4" 0024 xxx
PORCH 33666"6"68 18 18'-1"8' 1"8 -18 -1 "68' 1"" xxx

ADU 2

4'-6"21'-0" 40"0 4xxxx
G2

FIRST FLOOR AREA DIAGRAM
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

5'-4"51 6666 xx
PPPPPP

55

12'-7"16'-6" x
A

4'-1"412'-6"'---2'-6---12 4'-14 "xx
BB

14'-5"14'-0" 5"14 x
C

15'-3"18'-2" x
D

19'-4"15'-0"- -45' xx
EEEE

4'-1"15'-0""0151555 0""00""0 4xxxxxx
FF

11'-6"13'-7" x
G

3'-6"7'-4" xxxx
H

3'-6"4'-8" xxxxx
I

SECOND FLOOR AREA DIAGRAM
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

FIRST FLOOR AREA
A 238.26 SQ. FT. 12'-2" X 19'-7"

B 82.33 SQ. FT. 4'-4" X 19'-0"
C 617.67 SQ. FT. 18'-2" X 34'-0"
D 93.33 SQ. FT. 5'-10" X 16'-0"

  TOTAL 1031.59 SQ. FT.

GARAGE

G1 329.33 SQ. FT. 20'-7" X 16'-0"

G2 94.50 SQ. FT. 21'-0" X 4'-6"

G3 13.42 SQ. FT. 3'-10" X 3'-6"

  TOTAL 437.25 SQ. FT.

ADU

ADU 1 273.24 SQ. FT. 12'-2" X 22'-6"

ADU 2 4.04 SQ. FT. 8'-1" X 6"

TOTAL 277.28 SQ. FT.

PORCH

PORCH 1 24.00 SQ. FT. 5'-4" X 4'-6"

PORCH 2 15.83 SQ. FT. 5'-10" X 2'-6"

PORCH 3 14.67 SQ. FT. 7'-4" X 2'-0"

TOTAL 54.50 SQ. FT.

SECOND FLOOR AREA
A 207.63 SQ. FT. 16'-6" X 12'-7"

B 51.04 SQ. FT. 12'-6" X 4'-1"

C 201.83 SQ. FT. 14'-0" X 14'-5"

D 277.04 SQ. FT. 18'-2" X 15'-3"

E 290.00 SQ. FT. 15'-0" X 19'-4"

F 61.25 SQ. FT. 15'-0" X 4'-1"

G 156.21 SQ. FT. 13'-7" X 11'-6"

H 25.67 SQ. FT. 7'-4" X 3'-6"

I 16.33 SQ. FT. 4'-8" X 3'-6"

  TOTAL 1287.00 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA LIMIT
 FIRST FLOOR 1031.59 SQ. FT.

 SECOND FLOOR 1287.00 SQ. FT.

 GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

 ADU 277.28 SQ. FT.

 TOTAL 3033.12 SQ. FT.

LIVING + GARAGE 2755.84 SQ. FT.

 MAX. F.A.L. 2800.00 SQ. FT.

BUILDING COVERAGE
 FIRST FLOOR 1031.59 SQ. FT.

 LANAI 247.50 SQ. FT. 16'-6" X 15'-0"

 PORCH 54.50 SQ. FT.

 GARAGE 437.25 SQ. FT.

 ADU 277.28 SQ. FT.

 FIREPLACE 8.00 SQ. FT. 1'-6" X 5'-4"

 TOTAL 2056.12 SQ. FT.

TOTAL W/O ADU 1778.84 SQ. FT.

MAX. BUILDING
COVERAGE 1820.00 SQ. FT. 
C

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

"

"
"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

Page G-1.15



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.7

12
4 12

4

12
4

1212
44

FX

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

8'
-0

" 10
'-1

"
1'

-2
 3

/4
""

8'
-7

"

7'
-6

"

+/
- 2

6'
-3

 1
/2

"

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

8'
-0

"10
'-1

"

1'
-2

 3
/4

"

8'
-7

"

7'
-6

"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

DAYLIGHT PLANE (28'-0" MAX. HT.)

F.F.E.= 74.06 F.F.E.= 74.06

AVERAGE
GRADE= +/- 72.61

28
'-0

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E

19
'-6

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 S
ET

BA
C

K

45°

5'-3"
TO PROPERTY LINET

5'-3"
TO PROPERTY LINEEEEEEE

AVERAGE
GRADE AT RIGHT
SETBACK= +/- 72.41

AVERAGE
GRADE AT LEFT
SETBACK= +/- 72.46

19
'-6

"

45°

2'
-6

"

3'
-0

"
3

0

3'
-000

"0

1'-0"

1'-0"

6"

12
4

12
4

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

7'
-6

"
8'

-0
"

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

1'
-2

 3
/4

"

7'
-6

" 8'
-7

"

8'
-0

" 10
'-1

"

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

1'
-2

 3
/4

"4
8'

-7
"

10
'-1

"

+/
- 2

6'
-3

 1
/2

"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"SCALE: 1/4" 1' 0"

1212
44

12
4

1212
44

TBD TO FENCE LINE

FX

12
4

FX

F.F.E.= 74.06 F.F.E.= 74.06

AVERAGE GRADE= +/- 72.61

4'
-0

"
4

0

4'
-0

"
4

0

4'
-0

"
4

0

3'
-6

"666

3'
-6

"
3

6

3'
-6

"
3

6

3'
-6

"
3

6

ELEVATIONS

ACCENT MATERIAL 
BRICK VENEER

ROOF MATERIAL 
COMPOSITION SHINGLE ROOF

ROOF MATERIAL
COMPOSITION SHINGLE ROOF

BODY COLOR
WOOD FASCIA TRIM

BODY COLOR 
CEMENTITIOUS HORIZONTAL SIDING

BODY COLOR 
CEMENTITIOUS HORIZONTAL SIDING 

ACCENT COLOR 
FIBERGLASS FRONT DOOR

WOOD COLUMN & TRIM

BODY COLOR 
CEMENTITIOUS WINDOW & DOOR TRIM
WOOD BAY WINDOW 
STEEL GARAGE DOOR

BODY COLOR
CEMENTITIOUS WINDOW & DOOR TRIM

ACCENT COLOR 
WOOD PORCH COLUMN

10 1/2”**

WINDOWS
MARVIN ESSENTIAL ALL ULTREX 
WINDOWS TYP. - NO SIMULATED 
DIVIDED LITE

** AS PER MENLO PARK GUIDELINES, 
18” INTRUSION OF ARCHITECTURAL 

FEATURES, SUCH AS EAVES, IS 
ALLOWABLE INTO ANY YARD OF 
LESS THAN 10’. 3’ INTRUSION OF 

ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES, SUCH 
AS EAVES, IS ALLOWABLE INTO ANY 

YARD OF 10’ OR GREATER.

Page G-1.16



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.8

ELEVATIONS

WINDOWS
MARVIN ESSENTIAL ALL ULTREX 
WINDOWS TYP. - NO SIMULATED 
DIVIDED LITE

FX

12
4

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

8'
-0

"10
'-1

"

7'
-6

"8'
-7

"

1'
-2

 3
/4

"

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

8'
-0

" 10
'-1

"

7'
-6

" 8'
-7

"
1'

-2
 3

/4
""

+/
- 2

6'
-3

 1
/2

"

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

14
'-4

 1
/2

"

DW.DWT.O.WDT O WWW

12
4

FX FX

DD

12
4

12
4

F.F.E.= 74.06 F.F.E.= 74.06

FX FX

AVERAGE GRADE= +/- 72.61

12
4

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

6'
-6

"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"
3

0

"

T.O.STAIR
LANDING

3'
-6

"
3

6

3'
-6

"
3

6

3'
-6

"6
3 3'

-6
"6

3 3'
-6

"6
3 3'
-0

""
-

6'
-0

""
-

3'
-6

"

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

1'
-2

 3
/4

"

7'
-6

"

4
8'

-7
"

8'
-0

"10
'-1

"

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

1'
-2

 3
/4

"
1

7'
-6

" 8'
-7

"

8'
-0

" 10
'-1

"

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

12
4

12
4

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

12
4

12
4

12
4

DAYLIGHT PLANE (28'-0" MAX. HT.)

F.F.E.= 74.06F.F.E.= 74.06

AVERAGE
GRADE= +/- 72.61

AVERAGE
GRADE AT RIGHT
SETBACK= +/- 72.41

AVERAGE
GRADE AT LEFT
SETBACK= +/- 72.46

5'-3"
TO PROPERTY LINE

5'-3"
TO PROPERTY LINEEEEEEEE

19
'-6

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 S
ET

BA
C

K

19
'-6

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 S
ET

BA
C

K

+/
- 2

6'
-3

 1
/2

"

28
'-0

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E

45°

3'
-0

"
3

-
"

3'
-0

"
'

45°
4

3'
-0

"
3

0 3'
-6

"
-

"

3'
-6

"
-

"

6"

1'-0"

ROOF MATERIAL 
COMPOSITION SHINGLE ROOF

ROOF MATERIAL
COMPOSITION SHINGLE ROOF

BODY COLOR
WOOD FASCIA TRIM

BODY COLOR 
CEMENTITIOUS HORIZONTAL SIDING 

BODY COLOR 
CEMENTITIOUS 

HORIZONTAL SIDING 

BODY COLOR
CEMENTITIOUS WINDOW & DOOR TRIM

BODY COLOR
CEMENTITIOUS WINDOW & DOOR TRIM

ACCENT COLOR 
WOOD TRELLIS & WOOD POST

** AS PER MENLO PARK GUIDELINES, 
18” INTRUSION OF ARCHITECTURAL 

FEATURES, SUCH AS EAVES, IS 
ALLOWABLE INTO ANY YARD OF 
LESS THAN 10’. 3’ INTRUSION OF 

ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES, SUCH 
AS EAVES, IS ALLOWABLE INTO ANY 

YARD OF 10’ OR GREATER.

10 1/2”**

Page G-1.17



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.9

SECTIONS

* AS PER THE MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL 
CODE (SECTION 16.04.313 FLOOR AREA) 

ATTIC SPACE WHERE THE DISTANCE 
BETWEEN THE TOP OF THE CEILING 

JOIST AND THE BOTTOM OF THE ROOF 
SHEATHING MEASURES LESS THAN 

FIVE FEET (5’) IS EXCLUDED FROM THE 
FLOOR AREA.

** AS PER MENLO PARK GUIDELINES, 
18” INTRUSION OF ARCHITECTURAL 

FEATURES, SUCH AS EAVES, IS 
ALLOWABLE INTO ANY YARD OF 
LESS THAN 10’. 3’ INTRUSION OF 

ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES, SUCH 
AS EAVES, IS ALLOWABLE INTO ANY 

YARD OF 10’ OR GREATER.

DROP ZONE

PANTRYPWDR.DINING

9'
-1

"

6'-8" CLEAR.

CLELEA

14
'-4

 1
/2

"2

3'
-6

"

LOFT PRIMARY
W.I.C.

SECTION A - A 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

T.O.P.T O P

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

8'
-0

" 10
'-1

"
1'

-2
 3

/4
"""

O PO P

8'
-7

"

7'
-6

"

+/
- 2

6'
-3

 1
/2

"

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.S./T.O.C.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.P.

T.O.WDW.

8'
-0

"10
'-1

"

1'
-2

 3
/4

"

8'
-7

"

7'
-6

"

DAYLIGHT PLANE (28'-0" MAX. HT.)

F.F.E.= 74.06 F.F.E.= 74.06

AVERAGE
GRADE= +/- 72.61

28
'-0

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E

19
'-6

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 S
ET

BA
C

K

45°

5'-3"
TO PROPERTY LINEEEEEEE

5'-3"
TO PROPERTY LINEEEEEEE

AVERAGE
GRADE AT RIGHT
SETBACK= +/- 72.41

AVERAGE
GRADE AT LEFT
SETBACK= +/- 72.46

19
'-6

"
FR

O
M

 A
VE

R
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 S
ET

BA
C

K

45°

4'
-7

"

3'
-4

"

3'
-6

"

8'
-7

"

6'
-8

"

T.O.DOOR

T.O.P.

T.O.S.F.

T.O.P.

T.O.SLAB/T.O.C.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.WDW.

F.F.E.= 74.06

GREAT

BEDROOM 3 W.I.C. PRIMARY PRIMARY BEDROOM
BATH

SLOPESLOPE
2" 4"

SECTION B-B
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

GARAGE
ROOM

PANTRY KITCHEN

8'
-0

"
7'

-6
"8'
-7

"
10

'-1
"

1'
-2

 3
/4

"4 T.O.S.F.

T.O.WDW.

T.O.WDW.

8'
-0

"
7'

-6
"

T.O.SLAB/T.O.C.
F.F.E.= 74.06

8'
-7

"
10

'-1
"

1'
-2

 3
/4

"444

T.O.P.

T.O.P.

26
'-3

 1
/2

"

9'
-1

"

FX FX

AVERAGE
GRADE= +/- 72.61

4'
-7

 1
/2

"

2'
-6

 1
/2

"2"
22'

10
'-5

"

8'
-7

"

6'
-8

"

T.O.DOOR

* *

*

*

Page G-1.18



440 UNIVERSITY DR., MENLO PARK
D28M200-TR THOMAS JAMES HOMES

5865 Owens Drive
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-251-7200

1641.044

01-10-2023

NORTH
JOB NO.

DATE

A.10

COLORS & MATERIALS

BODY COLOR 
HORIZONTAL SIDING, WINDOW & DOOR TRIM

ACCENT COLOR 
FRONT DOOR, FRONT PORCH COLUMN &

ACCENT MATERIAL
BRICK VENEER

TRIM

BAY WINDOWS, PANELLING, EAVES, FASCIA, 
GARAGE DOOR, BACK TRELLIS

ROOF MATERIAL 

COMPOSITION SHINGLE

Page G-1.19



44
0 

UN
IV

ER
SI

TY
 D

RI
VE

M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K,

 C
AL

IF
OR

NI
A 

94
02

5

09.09.22

D28 M200 A
TRADITIONAL

KRISTIN LASKY
DAHLIN

T
hi

s
is

an
ex

am
pl

e
of

de
si

gn
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
fo

r
th

is
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

pl
an

an
d

el
ev

at
io

n.
D

et
ai

le
d

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

,f
in

is
he

s
an

d
fix

tu
re

s
ar

e
su

bj
ec

t
to

ch
an

ge
,

on
ho

m
es

pr
io

r
to

sa
le

,
at

an
y

tim
e

w
ith

ou
t

no
tic

e
or

ob
lig

at
io

n.
S

qu
ar

e
fo

ot
ag

es
an

d
lo

t
di

m
en

si
on

s
ar

e
ap

pr
ox

im
at

e
an

d
m

ay
va

ry
in

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

an
d

de
pe

nd
in

g
on

th
e

st
an

da
rd

of
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t

us
ed

,
en

gi
ne

er
in

g
an

d
m

un
ic

ip
al

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

,
or

ot
he

r
si

te
-s

pe
ci

fic
co

nd
iti

on
s.

R
oo

m
si

ze
,

w
al

ls
,

w
in

do
w

s,
do

or
s,

po
rc

he
s

an
d

ba
lc

on
ie

s
va

ry
pe

r
ho

m
e

el
ev

at
io

n
an

d
lo

ca
tio

n.
N

ot
an

of
fe

r
or

so
lic

ita
tio

n
to

se
ll

re
al

pr
op

er
ty

.T
ho

m
as

Ja
m

es
H

om
es

is
a

re
gi

st
er

ed
tr

ad
em

ar
k

of
T

ho
m

as
Ja

m
es

H
om

es
,

LL
C

.©
20

18
T

ho
m

as
Ja

m
es

H
om

es
.A

ll
rig

ht
s

re
se

rv
ed

.C
A

D
R

E
Li

ce
ns

e
#0

20
57

36
7

NOTE: RENDERINGS SHOWN 
ARE FOR ILLUSTRATION 

PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE NOT 
INTENDED TO BE AN ACTUAL 
DEPICTION OF THE HOME OR 

IT’S SURROUNDINGS

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS
(NOT TO SCALE)

HOUSE NUMBERS

TRICORN BLACK
SW 6258

FRONT DOOR
GARAGE DOOR

WINDOW FRAMES: BLACK

ELDORADO STONE
TUNDRA BRICK - CHALK DUST 

GARAGE DOOR
CLOPAY GRAND HARBOR
DESIGN 11, INSULATED

SOLID TOP 11

EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE
8”W X 15.25”H 

FENCE STAIN
SEMI-TRANSPARENT

SPANISH MOSS

GAF ROOF SHINGLES
CHARCOAL

FRONT DOOR
MASONITE - HERITAGE - WINSLOW

FIBERGLASS
1/4 LITE 2 PANEL DOOR

FULL SIDELITE

PURE WHITE
SW 7OO5

SIDING
WINDOW & DOOR TRIM
PANELING, COLUMNS, & TRIM
FASCIA, EAVES, & CORBELS
BACK TRELLIS

Page G-1.20



6
4
x6

0
H
H
: 
8
0

36x52
HH: 80

48x52
HH: 80

3
6
x5

2
H
H
: 
8
0

36x52
HH: 80

18x18
HH: 80

36x52
HH: 80

6
0
x4

6
H
H
: 
8
0

3
6
x3

6
H
H
: 
8

2

36x52
HH: 80

LIVING ROOM

8'-0" CLG

KITCHEN

8-0" CLG

BEDROOM

8'-0" CLG

BEDROOM

8'-0" CLG

GARAGE

8'-0" CLG LOW

DN
18"

DECK

EXPOSED STUDS

DRYWALL (TYP.)

DRYWALL (TYP.)

DRYWALL (TYP.)

13'-3" 1'-11" 5'-5" 1'-11" 11'-5"

1
2
'-1

"
1
2
'-4

"

8
'-2

"

24'-8" 8'-4"

1
1
'-6

"

21'-5"

DRYWALL (TYP.)

TILE

DRYWALL (TYP.)

STONE FIREPLACE / HEARTH

WOOD FLOORINGDRYWALL (TYP.)

8'-0" CLG

8'-0" CLG

8'-0" CLG

8'-0"
CLG

8'-0" CLG

PORCH
DRYWALL (TYP.)

SCALE

PROJECT

APPROVED BY

DATE

SHEET

PREPARED FOR

PROJECT NAME

PLAN TYPE

PROJECT ADDRESS

WORRY FREE
RENOVATIONS

3626 E. PACIFIC COAST
HIGHWAY | 2ND FLOOR
LONG BEACH CA | 90804
T 562.621.9100
F 888.698.2966
WWW.PPMCO.NET

PRECISION PROPERTY
MEASUREMENTS

FLOOR PLAN

3385_BA

06/14/22

THOMAS JAMES
HOMES

440 UNIVERSITY
DRIVE

RESIDENCE

440 UNIVERSITY DRIVE,
MENLO PARK, CA 94025

 of 3

All plans created by Precision Property
Measurement Ltd "PPM" are made exclusively

for landscaping purposes (Cal. Bus. & Prof.
Code §8727). All site plans created by PPM do not
involve the determination of any property line, and as

such do not constitute land surveying
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§8726-8727). In

addition, PPM services and plans do not constitute
civil engineering (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§6702-6704),
and thus should not be used for any studies or activities

defined as civil engineering (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code
§6731). All floor plans created by PPM are intended to
be used as a reference for design and construction and

should not be considered a substitute for the services of
a licensed structural engineer or licensed architect. PPM
makes every reasonable effort to ensure the accuracy of

the information found in our plans. However, every
As-Built drawing inherently contains errors to some
degree. It is the duty of the architect, contractor,

designer or other licensed professional, as a consultant
to the property owner, to determine the suitability of the
As-Built plans prior to construction. Measurements should
be field confirmed before commencing construction. in the

event that an error is found on a plan, PPM's liability is
limited to the amount of the fee paid to PPM.

JS

1

TWH

PV

WH = WATER HEATER

FURN

LOW CASEWORK

FULL HEIGHT CASEWORK

UPPER CASEWORK

CLG

HH

= CEILING HEIGHT

= HEADER HEIGHT

= GAS METER

= WALL HEATER

= TRASH COMPACTOR

= DISH WASHER

= OVEN

= REFRIGERATOR

= RANGE

= DRYER

= WASHER

= WASHER/DRYER COMBO

= ELECTRIC METER

W/D

W

D

REFR

OVEN

DW

TC

= FURNACE

= ELECTRICAL PANEL

= SOLAR COMPONENTS

= TANKLESS WATER HEATER

= FLOOR DRAIN

WS = WATER SOFTNER

1/4" = 1'-0"

Page G-1.21



EX
IS

TI
N
G

1
.4

:1
2

EX
IS

TI
N
G

3
:1

2

EXISTING
5:12

EXISTING
5:12

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EXISTING
5:12

EXISTING
5:12

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EXISTING
5:12

EXISTING
5:12

SCALE

PROJECT

APPROVED BY

DATE

SHEET

PREPARED FOR

PROJECT NAME

PLAN TYPE

PROJECT ADDRESS

WORRY FREE
RENOVATIONS

3626 E. PACIFIC COAST
HIGHWAY | 2ND FLOOR
LONG BEACH CA | 90804
T 562.621.9100
F 888.698.2966
WWW.PPMCO.NET

PRECISION PROPERTY
MEASUREMENTS

ROOF PLAN

3385_BA

06/14/22

THOMAS JAMES
HOMES

440 UNIVERSITY
DRIVE

RESIDENCE

440 UNIVERSITY DRIVE,
MENLO PARK, CA 94025

 of 3

All plans created by Precision Property
Measurement Ltd "PPM" are made exclusively

for landscaping purposes (Cal. Bus. & Prof.
Code §8727). All site plans created by PPM do not
involve the determination of any property line, and as

such do not constitute land surveying
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§8726-8727). In

addition, PPM services and plans do not constitute
civil engineering (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§6702-6704),
and thus should not be used for any studies or activities

defined as civil engineering (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code
§6731). All floor plans created by PPM are intended to
be used as a reference for design and construction and

should not be considered a substitute for the services of
a licensed structural engineer or licensed architect. PPM
makes every reasonable effort to ensure the accuracy of

the information found in our plans. However, every
As-Built drawing inherently contains errors to some
degree. It is the duty of the architect, contractor,

designer or other licensed professional, as a consultant
to the property owner, to determine the suitability of the
As-Built plans prior to construction. Measurements should
be field confirmed before commencing construction. in the

event that an error is found on a plan, PPM's liability is
limited to the amount of the fee paid to PPM.

JS

2

RTU

CHIMNEY OUTLINE

BUILDING FOOTPRINT

= AIR CONDITIONER

= UTILITY BOX

= ROOF DRAIN

= ROOF VENT

= ROOF TOP UNIT

= ROOF TOP HATCH

= DOWNSPOUT

1/4" = 1'-0"

Page G-1.22



NORTHEAST

NORTHWEST SOUTHWEST

SOUTHEAST

SHINGLES
(TYP)

12
5

12
3

12
1.4

12
5 12

5

12
1.4

12
3

12
5

8
'-0

"
7
'-5

"

1ST FLOOR
F.F.E.

BEDROOM
F.C.E.

MAJOR
RIDGE

1
5
'-5

"

8
'-0

"

1
6
'-1

1
"

GARAGE
F.F.E.

GARAGE
F.C.E.

MAJOR
RIDGE

8
'-1

1
"

12
5

BRICK (TYP)

WOOD SIDING
(TYP)

SHINGLES
(TYP)

BRICK (TYP)

WOOD SIDING
(TYP)

WOOD SIDING
(TYP)

BRICK (TYP)

SHINGLES
(TYP)

BRICK (TYP)

WOOD SIDING
(TYP)

WOOD DECK
(TYP)

SHINGLES
(TYP)

NATURAL STONE FINISH
(TYP)

WOOD DECK
(TYP)

NATURAL STONE FINISH
(TYP)

SCALE

PROJECT

APPROVED BY

DATE

SHEET

PREPARED FOR

PROJECT NAME

PLAN TYPE

PROJECT ADDRESS

WORRY FREE
RENOVATIONS

3626 E. PACIFIC COAST
HIGHWAY | 2ND FLOOR
LONG BEACH CA | 90804
T 562.621.9100
F 888.698.2966
WWW.PPMCO.NET

PRECISION PROPERTY
MEASUREMENTS

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

3385_BA

06/14/22

THOMAS JAMES
HOMES

440 UNIVERSITY
DRIVE

RESIDENCE

440 UNIVERSITY DRIVE,
MENLO PARK, CA 94025

 of 3

All plans created by Precision Property
Measurement Ltd "PPM" are made exclusively

for landscaping purposes (Cal. Bus. & Prof.
Code §8727). All site plans created by PPM do not
involve the determination of any property line, and as

such do not constitute land surveying
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§8726-8727). In

addition, PPM services and plans do not constitute
civil engineering (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§6702-6704),
and thus should not be used for any studies or activities

defined as civil engineering (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code
§6731). All floor plans created by PPM are intended to
be used as a reference for design and construction and

should not be considered a substitute for the services of
a licensed structural engineer or licensed architect. PPM
makes every reasonable effort to ensure the accuracy of

the information found in our plans. However, every
As-Built drawing inherently contains errors to some
degree. It is the duty of the architect, contractor,

designer or other licensed professional, as a consultant
to the property owner, to determine the suitability of the
As-Built plans prior to construction. Measurements should
be field confirmed before commencing construction. in the

event that an error is found on a plan, PPM's liability is
limited to the amount of the fee paid to PPM.

JS

3

FINISHED GRADE LINE

FINISHED FLOOR LINE

ROOF PITCH LABEL (RISE/RUN)

X
12

1/4" = 1'-0"

Page G-1.23



Feet
0 10 20

Co
lle

ge
 A

ve

Sa
nt

a 
Cr

uz
 A

ve

University Drive

M
idd

le 
Av

e

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

: 87
7-

38
1-

40
92

R
ED

W
O

O
D

 C
IT

Y,
 C

A
 9

40
65

25
5 

SH
O

R
EL

IN
E 

D
R

IV
E,

 S
U

IT
E 

42
8

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

•
•

11/11/2022

Page G-1.24



Page G-1.25



Page G-1.26



Page G-1.27



Page G-1.28



Page G-1.29



Page G-1.30



THOMAS JAMES HOMES  
255 Shoreline Dr Suite 428, 
Redwood City, CA 94065

440 University Drive 
Project Description 
November 11, 2022 

PARCEL GENERAL INFORMATION 

The parcel located at 440 University Drive is a substandard lot, which is the reason a Use Permit is 
required for the proposed two‐story residence. The R‐1‐U zoning ordinance requires a minimum of 
7,000 sq ft in area, 65 ft in width and 100ft in depth. The depth complies with the zoning ordinance; 
however, the lot area of 5200sf and width of 52ft is less than the required.  

There are 22 trees analyzed including 6 Heritage trees and 2 non protected trees offsite and 14 non 
protected trees onsite. 8 of the 14 non protected trees are proposed to be removed. 5 new trees are 
proposed onsite: 1‐36” Box Chitalpa at the front; 1‐ 24” Box Crape Myrtle and 1‐ 24” Box Western 
Redbud at the rear; and 2‐24”box Japanese Zelkovas at the left side. Tree protection will be provided 
for the trees to remain during construction through fencing as well as construction methods to save 
the trees from being impacted.  

EXISTING HOME TO BE DEMOLISHED  

The existing house is a one story single‐family minimal traditional home built in 1940. The home is 
1130sf including a 260sf garage. 

PROPOSED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE  

The parcel’s block typically consists of homes facing either College Avenue or Middle Avenue. The 
corner lots have been merged with their adjacent lots and then subdivided into 3 parcels that are 
reoriented to face the cross‐street of University Drive. The parcels maintain a 50ft width yet are 
smaller in depth in comparison to the original lots. The homes on these parcels have L shaped 
footprints to create private rear outdoor spaces. In the immediate context along University Drive, the 
neighborhood consists of both 2‐story and 1‐story residences of varying styles including Traditional, 
Transitional, and Spanish. Main design features include horizontal siding, stucco, brick/stone accents, 
gable/shed roofs of either metal, comp shingle or S‐tile materials, decorative shutters, and bay 
windows. Porches with columns define some of the entries creating inviting front elevations. Multiple 
2‐car garage configurations are found including recessed, side facing and front facing. 

Continuing the 2‐story evolvement and using the patterns and aesthetics found in the neighborhood, 
the new home proposed is a 2‐story single family Traditional style residence featuring 3beds/3.5 
baths and a 1bed/1bath attached ADU to appeal to families. A combination of horizonal siding and 
brick are used on the first floor with a smooth panel bay window treatment at the front living space. 
Square columns and a gable roof form distinguishes the front porch and offers a more traditional 
aesthetic. The second‐floor massing steps back from the first story to reduce appearance from the 
street and provide relief along the right and left edges. A front gable provides interest and echoes the 
surrounding gable/shed roof forms in the neighborhood. A front facing 2‐car garage and 2 off street 

EXHIBIT B

Page G-1.31



THOMAS JAMES HOMES  
255 Shoreline Dr Suite 428, 
Redwood City, CA 94065

parking spaces are provided. The garage is slightly setback from the main living space to be less 
prominent. The footprint of the home aligns with the adjacent homes as it uses a similar L shape form 
stepping back on the left side to create usable private yard space.  

A light color palette is proposed to blend well with the neighborhood using an off white for the 
horizontal siding and a matching brick to provide a warm texture change. Minimalist windows with 
black window frames compliment the dark accent color for the garage, front door and shingle roof.  

NEIGHBOR RELATIONS 

Thomas James Homes has reached out to neighbors within 300‐ft. of this property with a copy of the 
site plan, floor plan, elevations and a letter addressing our project. A virtual neighbor meeting was 
held on October 5, 2022 to collect feedback from the immediate neighbors. In addition to mailing 
notices, we have coordinated with two neighbors who attended the meeting and have reached out 
with concerns. Please see below for a summary of responses to neighbor concerns. 

Neighbor at 444 University (left adjacent neighbor) 
Concerns: 1) Requested more information on traffic management during construction and results on 
the asbestos report for demolition of the existing home. 2) Concerned if there was going to be a 
sidewalk installed at the property to continue the existing sidewalk.  
Response: Thomas James Homes responded to the neighbor via email on 11/3/22 to follow up with 
requested information regarding traffic management and the asbestos report. We also confirmed the 
Engineering Department does indeed require a new sidewalk on the property and are proposing that 
improvement in our plans.  

Neighbor at 883 Middle Avenue (Rear neighbor) 
Concerns: 1) Interested in selling her home to TJH. 2) Requested more information on allowable 
fence heights. 3) Concerned the house is too close to the rear of the yard and does not desire the two 
story home close to the shared property line regardless of the compliant setbacks. The Neighbor 
claims the home and trees will affect/block solar gain. 
Response: Thomas James Homes responded to the neighbor via phone multiple times and an email 
on 11/3/22 to follow up with requested information and concerns. We confirmed the proposal is well 
within the allowable setbacks and allowable height per the City municipal code and guidelines. In 
addition, the proposed home is 78ft from the main home on the 883 property. See the attached 
thread for email reference. 

We look forward to adding to the charm and sense of community in Menlo Park and welcome any 
questions the City may have as we go through the Use Permit Application process.  

Best, 

Anna Felver, Planning Manager at Thomas James Homes 

afelver@tjhusa.com | 650. 402.3024 

Page G-1.32



PAGE: 1 of 2 

LOCATION: 440 
University Drive 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2022-00050 

APPLICANT: Thomas 
James Homes 

OWNER: Thomas James 
Homes 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

1. The use permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. The applicant shall be required to apply for a building permit within one year from the date of
approval (by April 4, 2024) for the use permit to remain in effect.

b. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by
Dahlin Group Architecture consisting of 22 plan sheets, dated received January 19, 2023 and
approved by the City Council on April 4, 2023, except as modified by the conditions contained
herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo
Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly applicable to
the project.

d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all requirements of the
Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly applicable
to the project.

e. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and Building
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be placed
underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact locations of
all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes, and other
equipment boxes.

f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall
submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged and
significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted for review
and approval of the Engineering Division.

g. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall
submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering Division. The
Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of grading, demolition or
building permits.

h. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected pursuant to the
Heritage Tree Ordinance and the arborist report prepared by California Tree and Landscape
Consulting, Inc. dated August 30, 2022.

i. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all fees incurred through staff time
spent reviewing the application.

j. The applicant or permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Menlo Park
or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City of
Menlo Park or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul an approval
of the Planning Commission, City Council, Community Development Director, or any other
department, committee, or agency of the City concerning a development, variance, permit, or
land use approval which action is brought within the time period provided for in any applicable
statute; provided, however, that the applicant’s or permittee’s duty to so defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless shall be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the applicant or permittee of any
said claim, action, or proceeding and the City’s full cooperation in the applicant’s or permittee’s
defense of said claims, actions, or proceedings.

2. The use permit shall be subject to the following project-specific conditions:

EXHIBIT C

Page G-1.33



PAGE: 2 of 2 

LOCATION: 440 
University Drive 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2022-00050 

APPLICANT: Thomas 
James Homes 

OWNER: Thomas James 
Homes 

a. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the Applicant shall
revise the elevation drawings to indicate the stair well window will have obscured glass, subject
to review and approval of the Planning Division.

Page G-1.34



City of Menlo Park

440 UNIVERSITY DRIVE
Location Map

Date: 4/4/2023 Drawn By:4,000 CRT Checked By: DMC1: Sheet: 1Scale:

ATTACHMENT B

Page G-1.35



1 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2023-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK APPROVING A USE PERMIT FOR THE DEMOLITION OF 
AN EXISITNG ONE-STORY, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW TWO-STORY, SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENCE ON A SUBSTANDARD LOT WITH REGARD TO MINIMUM 
LOT WIDTH AND AREA IN THE R-1-U (SINGLE FAMILY URBAN 
RESIDENTIAL) ZONING DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received an application requesting to 
demolish an existing one-story, single-family residence, and construct a new two-story 
residence on a substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width and area in the Single 
Family Urban Residential (R-1-U) zoning district (the “Project”) from Thomas James 
Homes (“Owner” and “Applicant”) located at 440 University Drive (APN 071-403-280) 
(“Property”). The Project use permit is depicted in and subject to the development plans 
and project description letter which are attached hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, 
respectively, and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the Single Family Urban Residential (R-1-U) 
district. The R-1-U district supports single-family residential uses; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project complies with all objective standards of the R-1-U 
district; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed Project was reviewed by the Engineering Division and 
found to be in compliance with City standards; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted an arborist report prepared by California Tree 
and Landscaping Consulting, Inc. which was reviewed by the City Arborist and found to be 
in compliance with the Heritage Tree Ordinance and proposes mitigation measures to 
adequately protect heritage trees in the vicinity of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Project, requires discretionary actions by the City as summarized 
above, and therefore the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Public Resources 
Code Section §21000 et seq.) and CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
§15000 et seq.) require analysis and a determination regarding the Project’s
environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, the City is the lead agency, as defined by CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines, and is therefore responsible for the preparation, consideration, certification, 
and approval of environmental documents for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Project is categorically except from environmental review pursuant 
to Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15303 et seq. (New Construction or Conversion of 
Small Structures); and 

ATTACHMENT D

Page G-1.36



Resolution No. 2023-07 

2 

WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and 
held according to law; and 

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on , 
202 , the Planning Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of 
the record including all public and written comments, pertinent information, documents 
and plans, prior to taking action regarding the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MENLO PARK PLANNING COMMISSION HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Recitals.  The Planning Commission has considered the full record before it, 
which may include but is not limited to such things as the staff report, public testimony, and 
other materials and evidence submitted or provided, and the Planning Commission finds 
the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by reference 
into this Resolution. 

Section 2.  Conditional Use Permit Findings.  The Planning Commission of the City of 
Menlo Park does hereby make the following Findings:   

The approval of the use permit for the construction of new two-story residence on a 
substandard lot is granted based on the following findings which are made pursuant to Menlo 
Park Municipal Code Section 16.82.030: 

1. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will,
under the circumstance of the particular case, not be detrimental to the health,
safety, morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing in the
neighborhood of such proposed use, or injurious or detrimental to property and
improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the city because:

a. Consideration and due regard were given to the nature and condition of all
adjacent uses and structures, and to general plans for the area in question
and surrounding areas, and impact of the application hereon; in that, the
proposed use permit is consistent with the R-1-U zoning district and the
General Plan because two-story residences are allowed to be constructed
on substandard lots subject to granting of a use permit provided that the
proposed residence conforms to applicable zoning standards, including,
but not limited to, minimum setbacks, maximum floor area limit, and
maximum building coverage.

b. The proposed residence would include the required number of off-street
parking spaces because one covered and one uncovered parking space
would be required at a minimum, and two covered parking spaces are
provided.

Page G-1.37



Resolution No. 2023-07 

3 

Section 3.  Conditional Use Permit.  The Planning Commission approves Use Permit 
No. PLN2022-00050, which use permit is depicted in and subject to the development plans 
and project description letter, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively.  The Use Permit is conditioned in 
conformance with the conditions attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
as Exhibit C.   

Section 4.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.  The Planning Commission makes the following 
findings, based on its independent judgment after considering the Project, and having 
reviewed and taken into consideration all written and oral information submitted in this matter: 

A. The Project is categorically except from environmental review pursuant to
Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15303 et seq. (New Construction or Conversion
of Small Structures)

Section 5.  SEVERABILITY 

If any term, provision, or portion of these findings or the application of these findings to a 
particular situation is held by a court to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of these findings, or their application to other actions related to the Project, shall 
continue in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the City. 

I, Corinna Sandmeier, Principal Planner and Planning Commission Liaison of the City of 
Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Planning Commission 
Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Planning 
Commission on February 6, 2023, by the following votes: 

AYES: Do, Harris, Riggs, Schindler 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: Barnes, Tate 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said 
City on this 6th day of February, 2023 

______________________________ 
Corinna Sandmeier 
Principal Planner and Planning Commission Liaison 
City of Menlo Park 

Page G-1.38



Resolution No. 2023-07 

4 

Exhibits 
A. Project Plans
B. Project Description Letter
C. Conditions of Approval

Page G-1.39



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
0

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

4
4

0
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

 D
r.

  M
EN

LO
 P

AR
K,

 C
A

PL
AN

N
IN

G
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L 
FO

R
:

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

A
P:

N

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

AL
E

D
ev

el
op

er
 

Th
om

as
 J

am
es

 H
om

es
25

5 
Sh

or
el

in
e 

D
r S

ui
te

 4
28

R
ed

w
oo

d 
C

ity
, C

A 
94

06
5

Te
l: 

 (4
08

) 4
02

-3
02

4

A
rc

hi
te

ct
D

ah
lin

 G
ro

up
 

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e 
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

 9
45

88
Te

l: 
(9

25
) 2

51
-7

20
0 

C
on

ta
ct

: J
ai

m
e 

M
at

he
ro

n
ja

im
e.

m
at

he
ro

n@
da

hl
in

gr
ou

p.
co

m

La
nd

sc
ap

e
Va

n 
D

or
n 

A
be

d 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 In
c.

81
 1

4t
h 

St
re

et
,

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o,
 C

A 
94

10
3

Te
l: 

 (4
15

) 8
64

-1
92

1
C

on
ta

ct
: H

oa
ng

la
n 

N
gu

ye
n

ho
an

gl
an

@
va

la
in

c.
co

m
 

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TE

A
M

 IN
FO

:
A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
A

L:
A.

0
TI

TL
E 

SH
EE

T
A.

1
SI

TE
 A

ER
IA

L 
& 

PH
O

TO
S

AP
1

   
   

  A
R

EA
 P

LA
N

A.
3

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
A.

4
FL

O
O

R
 P

LA
N

S
A.

5
R

O
O

F 
PL

AN
A.

6
FL

O
O

R
 A

R
EA

 D
IA

G
R

AM
S

A.
7

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S

A.
8

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S 

A.
9

SE
C

TI
O

N
S

A.
10

C
O

LO
R

S 
& 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS
R

EN
D

ER
IN

G
 &

 C
O

LO
R

 B
O

AR
D

A
S-

B
U

IL
TS

:
1

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
2

R
O

O
F 

PL
AN

3
EX

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S

C
IV

IL
:

TO
1 

  
TO

PO
G

R
AP

H
IC

 S
U

R
VE

Y

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

:
L1

.1
   

C
AL

LO
U

T/
 L

AY
O

U
T 

PL
AN

L1
.2

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

L2
.1

IR
R

IG
AT

IO
N

 N
O

TE
S 

& 
W

EL
O

 C
H

EC
KL

IS
T

L3
.1

PL
AN

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

 &
 L

EG
EN

D
L3

.2
PL

AN
TI

N
G

 D
ET

AI
LS

L3
.3

TR
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
 &

 N
O

TE
S

SH
EE

T 
IN

D
EX

:

LO
C

AT
IO

N
44

0 
U

N
IV

E
R

S
IT

Y
D

R
.

A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

’S
 P

A
R

C
E

L 
N

U
M

B
E

R
07

1-
40

3-
28

0
PA

R
C

E
L 

A
R

E
A 

- G
R

O
S

S
5,

20
0 

SQ
. F

T.
0.

12
 A

C
ZO

N
IN

G
 D

E
S

IG
N

AT
IO

N
 

R
-1

-U
O

C
C

U
PA

N
C

Y 
G

R
O

U
P 

R
-3

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 T
Y

P
E

 
V-

B

M
A

X
. F

LO
O

R
 A

R
E

A 
LI

M
IT

2,
80

0.
00

 S
Q

. F
T.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
LO

O
R

 A
R

E
A 

LI
M

IT
27

55
.8

4 
 S

Q
. F

T.

FA
L 

(IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 A
D

U
 

E
X

C
E

E
D

A
N

C
E

)
30

33
.1

2 
 S

Q
. F

T.

M
A

X
. B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
V

E
R

A
G

E
1,

82
0.

00
 S

Q
. F

T.
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

VE
R

AG
E

1,
77

8.
84

 S
Q

. F
T.

(5
,2

00
)(.

35
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

V
E

R
A

G
E

(IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

A
D

U
 E

X
C

E
E

D
A

N
C

E
)

20
56

.1
2 

S
Q

. F
T.

M
A

X
. B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T

28
’ 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
26

’-3
 1

/2
” 

FR
O

M
 A

N
G

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
S

E
TB

A
C

K
S

FR
O

N
T 

- S
TR

E
E

T 
(F

T)
 

20
’

FR
O

N
T 

- S
TR

E
E

T-
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 A

T 
G

A
R

A
G

E
 (F

T)
   

   
 2

0’
S

ID
E

 (F
T)

5’
-3

”
R

E
A

R
 (F

T)
 

20
’

PA
R

K
IN

G
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

:
2 

TO
TA

L 
S

PA
C

E
S

 
   

   
   

  M
IN

.G
A

R
A

G
E

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

: 
10

’ X
 2

0’
 P

E
R

 S
PA

C
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

SE
:O

N
E 

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y 

D
ET

AC
H

ED
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E 
O

F 
TO

 B
E 

D
EM

O
LI

SH
ED

.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

SE
:O

N
E 

N
EW

 S
IN

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y 

D
ET

AC
H

ED
 R

ES
ID

EN
C

E 
O

F 
30

33
.1

2 
 S

Q
. F

T.

C
O

D
ES

 A
N

D
 R

EG
U

LA
TI

O
N

S 
G

O
VE

R
N

IN
G

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T:

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

20
22

 C
AL

IF
O

R
N

IA
 C

O
D

ES

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
B

A
C

K
S

FR
O

N
T 

- S
TR

E
E

T 
(F

T)
21

’-8
”

   
   

   
  F

R
O

N
T 

- S
TR

E
E

T-
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 A

T 
G

A
R

A
G

E
 (F

T)
   

   
 2

4’
-8

”
S

ID
E

 - 
R

IG
H

T 
(F

T)
5’

-4
 1

/2
”

S
ID

E
 - 

LE
FT

 (F
T)

8’
-1

 1
/2

”
R

E
A

R
 (F

T)
 

20
’-1

0”

A
LL

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
R

A
C

K
E

D
 O

R
 D

A
M

A
G

E
D

 F
E

AT
U

R
E

S
 A

LO
N

G
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E

 
M

U
S

T 
B

E
 R

E
PA

IR
E

D
 IN

 K
IN

D
.A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

LL
Y,

A
N

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

TS
 W

H
IC

H
A

R
E

 
D

A
M

A
G

E
D

A
S

A 
R

E
S

U
LT

 O
F 

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 W
IL

L 
B

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

TO
 B

E
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
D

.A
LL

 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T 
W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 IN

A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
TH

E
 L

AT
E

S
T 

V
E

R
S

IO
N

 
O

F
TH

E
 C

IT
Y 

S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
 D

E
TA

IL
S

.

A
N

Y 
E

N
C

R
O

A
C

H
M

E
N

T 
P

E
R

M
IT

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 D
IV

IS
IO

N
 IS

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 

A
N

Y 
C

O
N

S
TU

C
TI

O
N

A
C

TI
V

IT
IE

S
, I

N
C

LU
D

IN
G

 U
TI

LI
TY

 L
AT

E
R

A
LS

, I
N

TH
E

 P
U

B
LI

C
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
.

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
SU

M
M

A
RY

FR
O

N
TA

G
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS

44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

.

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
10

31
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  S
EC

O
ND

 F
LO

O
R

12
87

.0
0 

SQ
. F

T.

  T
O

TA
L L

IV
IN

G
23

18
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

  A
DU

27
7.

28
 S

Q
. F

T.

  P
O

RC
H

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  L
AN

AI
24

7.
50

 S
Q

. F
T.

  T
O

TA
L:

 (LI
VI

NG
 +

 G
AR

AG
E)

27
55

.8
4 

SQ
. F

T.

  F
AL

: (
LI

VI
NG

 +
 G

AR
AG

E 
+ 

AD
U)

30
33

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

  M
AX

. F
AL

:
28

00
.0

0 
SQ

. F
T.

TH
O

M
AS

 JA
M

ES
 H

O
M

ES
ST

AN
DA

RD
 S

.F
. (L

IV
IN

G+
 A

DU
 +

 2
4)

26
19

.8
7 

SQ
. F

T.

          

)

. . . . . . . . . . .

3 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
S 

 / 
3.

5 
BA

TH
 +

1 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
 / 

1 
BA

TH
 A

D
U

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E

  F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
10

39
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

  P
O

RC
H

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  L
AN

AI
24

7.
50

 S
Q

. F
T.

  A
DU

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  F
IR

EP
LA

CE
8.

00
 S

Q
. F

T.

  T
O

TA
L (

W
/O

 A
DU

):
17

78
.8

4 
SQ

. F
T.

  T
O

TA
L  (

W
IT

H 
AD

U)
:

20
56

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

  M
AX

. B
LD

G.
 C

O
VE

RA
GE

18
20

.0
0 

SQ
.F

T.
         

... . . . . . .

PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

UNIV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R.

MID
DLE AVE.  

Page G-1.40



SI
TE

44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
1

SI
TE

 A
ER

IA
L 

& 
PH

O
TO

S

1
2

3
4

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

AL
E

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 D
R

.

1 2 43

MIDDLE AVE.

Page G-1.41



Fe
et

0
20

40

College Ave

Santa Cruz Ave

Un
ive

rs
ity

 D
riv

e

Middle Ave

PREPARED FOR:

877-381-4092
REDWOOD CITY, CA 94065
255 SHORELINE DRIVE, SUITE 428
THOMAS JAMES HOMES

CALIFORNIA MENLO PARK
••

Page G-1.42



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
3

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
SH

EE
TS

 F
O

R
 T

R
EE

 D
ET

AI
LS

Th
is

 S
ite

 P
la

n 
co

nt
ai

ns
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
be

yo
nd

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

, L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

, 

44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

.

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
10

31
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  S
EC

O
ND

 F
LO

O
R

12
87

.0
0 

SQ
. F

T.

  T
O

TA
L L

IV
IN

G
23

18
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

  A
DU

27
7.

28
 S

Q
. F

T.

  P
O

RC
H

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  L
AN

AI
24

7.
50

 S
Q

. F
T.

  T
O

TA
L:

 (LI
VI

NG
 +

 G
AR

AG
E)

27
55

.8
4 

SQ
. F

T.

  F
AL

: (
LI

VI
NG

 +
 G

AR
AG

E 
+ 

AD
U)

30
33

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

  M
AX

. F
AL

:
28

00
.0

0 
SQ

. F
T.

TH
O

M
AS

 JA
M

ES
 H

O
M

ES
ST

AN
DA

RD
 S

.F
. (L

IV
IN

G+
 A

DU
 +

 2
4)

26
19

.8
7 

SQ
. F

T.

          

)

. . . . . . . . . . .

3 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
S 

 / 
3.

5 
BA

TH
 +

1 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
 / 

1 
BA

TH
 A

D
U

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E

  F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
10

39
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

  P
O

RC
H

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  L
AN

AI
24

7.
50

 S
Q

. F
T.

  A
DU

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  F
IR

EP
LA

CE
8.

00
 S

Q
. F

T.

  T
O

TA
L (

W
/O

 A
DU

):
17

78
.8

4 
SQ

. F
T.

  T
O

TA
L  (

W
IT

H 
AD

U)
:

20
56

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

  M
AX

. B
LD

G.
 C

O
VE

RA
GE

18
20

.0
0 

SQ
.F

T.
         

. . . . . . . . .

4"
 M

IN
.

S.
C

.D
.

D
U

AL
LO

C
KI

N
G

D
O

O
R

M
IN

. S
ET

BA
C

K

5'
-3

"

MIN. SETBACK

5'
-3

"

MIN. SETBACK

M
IN

. S
ET

BA
C

K

20'-0"

24'-8"

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
VE

N
U

E

44
0 

UN
IV

ER
SI

TY
 D

R.
FF

E 
= 

74
.0

6
SE

E 
C

IV
IL

 S
H

EE
T 

G
P-

1
FO

R
 M

O
R

E 
IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

LA
N

AI

G
AR

AG
E

73
.5

6

73
.7

2

73
.7

2

EL
EC

..
LL

M
ET

ERRTT

G
AS

G M
ET

ER
M

1 
1/

2"2
8'

-1

21'-8"

22'-2"

TT 20'-2"

20'-10"

9'
-2

 1
/2

"
2

5'
-4

 1
/2

"

7'
-8

 1
/2

"
77'

8
1/

2
7

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
TO

 B
E 

D
EM

O
LI

SH
ED

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 W

O
O

D
 D

EC
K

T O
 B

E 
D

EM
O

LI
SH

ED

EX
IS

TI
N

G
N

EI
G

H
BO

R
IN

G
BU

IL
D

IN
G

EX
IS

TI
N

G
N

EI
G

H
BO

R
IN

G
BU

IL
D

IN
G

D
R

IV
EW

AY

EX
IS

TI
N

G
N

EI
G

H
BO

R
IN

G
BU

IL
D

IN
G

52
'-0

"

100'-0"

16
'-3

"

12
'-1

 1
/2

""
-

1
R

. S
ET

BA
C

K)
B

R
(2

N
D

 F
LR

. 
R

(2
N

D
 F

L
12

'-4
 1

/2//2
"

/
(2

N
D

 F
LR

. S
ESE

TB
AC

K)
EEE

20'-1"

20
'-1

"

00

N

MINN SETBACK 22 EE E //

M
4"

MMMMMM

(2

8-88

111

EE
R

. 
R

1SEN. MI

333

00 20'--100

2

2

Y 

M
4"

MM
4"

MMM

AI
LA

N
A

5
4

1/
2

GGG
AASS

N
G

E

MMMMMM7 M
IN

M
4"

MM

E

SSSSSS

4

GG MS /2
"

/

AAA

M
N

. S
ET

BA
C

AA
MM

TB
M

IN
. S

ETT

3

7'
8

1/
2

7

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

TR
EE

 T
O

 R
EM

AI
N

, T
YP

.
,,,,

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 T
R

EE
S

OO
TO

 R
EM

O
VE

, T
YP

.
O

NN

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 T
R

EE
O

C
TO

 R
EM

O
VE

, T
YP

.
O

N
EW

 3
6"

 W
O

O
D

 F
EN

C
E

OOO
FE

6

N
EW

 W
O

O
D

 F
EN

C
E,

OOO
W

SE
E 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

D
W

G
SSS

A

N
EW

 3
6"

 W
O

O
D

 F
EN

C
E

666
E

N
EW

 W
O

O
D

 F
EN

C
E,

WWW
SE

E 
LA

N
D

SC
AP

E 
D

W
G

AA

H
IG

H
ES

T 
PO

IN
T 

N
EA

R
 R

IG
H

T 
SE

TB
AC

K 
FO

R
AV

ER
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 R
IG

H
T 

SE
TB

AC
K 

TO
D

ET
ER

M
IN

E 
D

AY
LI

G
H

T 
PL

AN
E 

= 
72

.5
8

H
IG

H
ES

T 
PO

IN
T 

N
EA

R
 L

EF
T 

SE
TB

AC
K 

FO
R

T TTS
ET

AV
ER

AG
E 

G
R

AD
E 

AT
 L

EF
T 

SE
TB

AC
K 

TO
G

E
GG

EEEEE
D

ET
ER

M
IN

E 
D

AY
LI

G
H

T 
PL

AN
E=

 7
2.

52
MM

R
M

A

LO
W

ES
T 

PO
IN

T 
N

EA
R

 L
EF

T 
SE

TB
AC

K 
FO

R
AV

ER
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 L
EF

T 
SE

TB
AC

K 
TO

D
ET

ER
M

IN
E 

D
AY

LI
G

H
T 

PL
AN

E=
 7

2.
40

2.
40

N
E

 

LO
W

ES
T 

PO
IN

T 
N

EA
R

 R
IG

H
T 

SE
TB

AC
K 

FO
R

F
AV

ER
AG

E 
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 R
IG

H
T 

SE
TB

AC
K 

TOTO
D

ET
ER

M
IN

E 
D

AY
LI

G
H

T 
PL

AN
E 

= 
72

.2
4

H
IG

H
ES

T 
PO

IN
T 

U
N

D
ER

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 F
O

R
SSS

U
AV

ER
AG

E 
N

AT
U

R
AL

 G
R

AD
E 

TO
 D

ET
ER

M
IN

E
AAA

AL
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 H
EI

G
H

T 
= 

72
.6

3

G
A

G
TE

R
GG

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PP
Y

P

N
EW

 A
C

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D
 6

0 
dB

A
000

E
D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
D

AY
 A

N
D

 5
0 

dB
A 

AT
 N

IG
H

T
G

N
EW

 A
C

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D
 6

0 
dB

A
D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E 
D

AY
 A

N
D

 5
0 

dB
A 

AT
 N

IG
H

T

LO
W

ES
T 

PO
IN

T 
U

N
D

ER
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 F

O
R

AV
ER

AG
E 

N
AT

U
R

AL
 G

R
AD

E 
TO

D
ET

ER
M

IN
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

= 
72

.5
9

B

20'-0"

VVTT

8'
-6

"

16'-6"R
KI

N
G

R
KI

N
GGG

AD
U

 P
AR

AD
U

PA
RRR PA

C
EE

SPP

LA
N

D
IN

G
 A

T 
G

R
AD

E 
- F

O
R

NNN
H

AN
D

SC
AP

E,
 S

.L
.D

.
NNN

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 T
R

EE
TO

 R
EM

O
VE

, T
YP

.
N

O
N

-P
R

O
TE

C
TE

D
 T

R
EE

TO
 R

EM
O

VE
, T

YP
.

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 T
R

EE
TO

 R
EM

O
VE

, T
YP

.

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 T
R

EE
S

TO
 R

EM
O

VE
, T

YP
.

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 T
R

EE
TO

 R
EM

O
VE

, T
YP

.

N
O

N
-P

R
O

TE
C

TE
D

 T
R

EE
TO

 R
EM

O
VE

, T
YP

.

Page G-1.43



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
4

FI
R

ST
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

FI
R

ST
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/4
" =

 1
'-0

"

W
H

WW
HH

AC
U

P

DROP ZONEENE ON Z OP RO DRD

20
'-0

"
6'

-4
"

12
'-2

"

18
'-2

"
16

'-6
"

15'-0" 42'-0"

23'-11 1/2"

38
'-6

"

34
'-8

"
59'-0"

30'-6 1/2"

3'
-3

"3
2'

-8
"

'
x

AV
 C

LO
.

AAVV
LL

.
SL

O
PE

D
 C

LGG
P

D
G

16
'-3

"
11166666

-33333
"

11
'-3

"
1111

'3333
"

xxxx

AD
U

AAAAAAAAADDAADDDDDD
U

DD
UUUUUUUUU

10
'-1

" C
LG

11010000
'11

"1
CCCCCC

LLLLLGGGGGGG

5'
-0

"
555'5

-0000
"

55'
-0

"00"
7'

-1
0"

77'
-11

010000
"

7'
-1-1

0"
77777777777777777

xxxxxx

HH
D

U
 B

AT
H

DDDD
UUUUUU

BBBBBBBBAABAAAAAAA
TTATTTTTT

HTHHHHHHH
DD

U
DD

UUU
 B

UU
BABBBBA

TAT
HH

DDDADAAAAAAAADAADDDDAADADDDDDDDDDDDDDADADDD
GGGGG

8'
-9

" C
LG

888'8
99999""

CCCCC
LLLGGG

8888'
-9

8
99"

 C
LLG

13
'-1

"
5'

-4
"

x

FO
YE

R
10

'-1
" C

LG

12
'-1

"
16

'-1
1"

x

D
IN

IN
G

10
'-1

" C
LG

15
'-0

""0
15

16
'-6

"
16

xx

LA
N

AI

20
'-1

"
20

'-1
"

x

G
AR

AG
E

10
'-1

" C
LG

 A
BV

. T
.O

.S
LA

B 
@

 H
O

U
SE

4'
-1

0"
44'

--1
00"

5'
-6

"
5'

-6
xxx

PW
D

R
PPWW

DD
RR

9'
-1

" C
LG

9'
--1

"" CC
LGG

12
'-7

"
16

'-1
"

x

KI
TC

H
EN

10
'-1

" C
LG

14
'-7

"
16

'-1
1"

x

G
R

EA
T 

R
O

O
M

10
'-1

" C
LG 4'

-1
0"

44'
-11

0
4

10
4'

-8
"

44'
-8

"
-

xxxxxx

PA
N

TR
Y

PPAA
NN

TTRR
YY

PP
R

Y
9'

-1
" C

LG
99'

-11
" C

LGG
CC

HH
G

0"0"
5'

-0
555'5

-0
55'

--0
-2

"
-2222

"22"22"
3'3'333333333''333

xxxxxxxxxxx

W
.I.

C
.

WWWWWWWWWWWWW
.CCCCCCCCCCC

WW
.

WWW
I.CICC

.
CCCC

.
9'

-1
" C

LG
9999

111""
CCCCC

L
C

LLGLGGGGG
9999'

-1
9

1"
 

1""
C

LGG
00000"""""

VE
N

T 
 F

/P
/

TH
R

U
 W

AL
L

TO
 O

U
TS

ID
E

AC

19
 R

 @
 7

.1
4"

17
 T

 @
 1

0.
5"

2'-6"

7'
-0

"
5'

-4
"

x

PO
R

C
H

10
'-1

" C
LG

GG 333

DDDDDDD 888 11

U

1'-6"6"

4"
 M

IN
.

S.
C

.D
.

SI
N

K
SSI

NN
KK

BU
R

N
ER

BBBUU
RR

NNN
EEERRRRR

EL
EC

TR
IC

EEELL
EEECC

TTTRRR
CC

C
O

O
KT

O
P 

W
/

CCCC
OOO

OOOO
KKKTT

OOO
PP

WWWW
//

H
O

O
D

, L
IG

H
T

HH
OOO

OOO
DDD

,LL
IGGG

HH
TTT

AN
D

 F
AN

 A
BO

VE
AAANNN

DDD
FFAAA

NN
AABBB

OOO
VVVEE

R
EF

R
IG

ER
AT

O
R

RRRR
EEFFFF

RR
GIGGG

EEERRR
AAAATT

OOOO
RRR

A A.
9

B A.
9

D
U

AL
LO

C
KI

N
G

D
O

O
R

20
'-1

"

20'-0 1/2"

SE
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/4
" =

 1
'-0

"

D
N

19
 R

 @
 7

.1
4"

17
 T

 @
 1

0.
5"

13
'-3

"
10

'-4
"

x

PR
IM

AR
Y 

BA
TH

8'
-7

" C
LG

8'
-3

"3
8

"
5'

-8
"

x

LA
U

N
D

R
YY

AU
N

8'
-7

" C
LG

C
L

5'
-0

"
11

'-7
"

x

BA
 2

8'
-7

" C
LG

12
'-1

"
10

'-1
"

x

LO
FT

8'
-7

" C
LG

14
'-4

"
17

'- 3
"

x

PR
IM

AR
Y

BE
D

R
O

O
M

8'
-7

" C
LG 11

'-3
"

11
'-0

"
x

BE
D

R
O

O
M

 3
8'

-7
" C

LG

12
'-3

"
11

'-8
"

x

BE
D

R
O

O
M

 2
8'

-7
" C

LG

7'
-1

"
10

'-4
"

x

W
.I.

C
.

8'
-7

" C
LG

53'-0"

15'-2 1/2" 34'-10"

18
'-2

"
16

'-6
"

34
'-8

"

18'-0"20'-0"15'-0"

53'-0"

3'
-2

"
13

'-6
 1

/2
"

13
'-1

1 
1/

2"
4'

-0
"

34
'-8

"

2'-11 1/2"

B A.
9

A A.
9

44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

.

10
31

.5
9 

SQ
. F

T.

  S
EC

O
ND

 F
LO

O
R

12
87

.0
0 

SQ
. F

T.

  T
O

TA
L L

IV
IN

G
23

18
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

  A
DU

27
7.

28
 S

Q
. F

T.

  P
O

RC
H

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  L
AN

AI
24

7.
50

 S
Q

. F
T.

  T
O

TA
L:

 (LI
VI

NG
 +

 G
AR

AG
E)

27
55

.8
4 

SQ
. F

T.

  F
AL

: (
LI

VI
NG

 +
 G

AR
AG

E 
+ 

AD
U)

30
33

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

  M
AX

. F
AL

:
28

00
.0

0 
SQ

. F
T.

TH
O

M
AS

 JA
M

ES
 H

O
M

ES
ST

AN
DA

RD
 S

.F
. (L

IV
IN

G+
 A

DU
 +

 2
4)

26
19

.8
7 

SQ
. F

T.

         

)

. . . . . . . . . . .

3 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
S 

 / 
3.

5 
BA

TH
 +

1 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
 / 

1 
BA

TH
 A

D
U

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E

  F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
10

39
.5

9 
SQ

. F
T.

  G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

  P
O

RC
H

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  L
AN

AI
24

7.
50

 S
Q

. F
T.

  A
DU

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

  F
IR

EP
LA

CE
8.

00
 S

Q
. F

T.

  T
O

TA
L (

W
/O

 A
DU

):
17

78
.8

4 
SQ

. F
T.

  T
O

TA
L  (

W
IT

H 
AD

U)
:

20
56

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

  M
AX

. B
LD

G.
 C

O
VE

RA
GE

18
20

.0
0 

SQ
.F

T.
         

. . . . . . . . .

Page G-1.44



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
5

R
O

O
F 

PL
AN

SC
AL

E:
 1

/4
" =

 1
'-0

"

B A.
9

A A.
9

10
 1

/2
"

R
O

O
F 

PL
AN

AL
L 

R
O

O
FI

N
G

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
IS

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 
SH

IN
G

LE
 U

N
LE

SS
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E 
N

O
TE

D
.

PO
TE

N
TI

AL
 S

O
LA

R
 Z

O
N

E

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGER
ID

G
E

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

VALL
EY

VALL
EY

VALL
EY

VALL
EY

1’
-0

” E
AV

E 
TY

P.

1’
-0

” E
AV

E 
TY

P.

1’
-0

” R
AK

E 
TY

P.

 6
” R

AK
E

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2 SL

O
PE

4 
: 1

2

SL
O

PE
4 

: 1
2

SLOPE
4 : 12

SLOPE
4 : 12

SLOPE
4 : 12

SLOPE
4 : 12

SLOPE
4 : 12

SLOPE
4 : 12

 **

SE
TB

AC
K 

LI
N

E

SE
TB

AC
K 

LI
N

E

VA
LL

EY

**
 A

S 
PE

R
 M

EN
LO

 P
AR

K 
G

U
ID

EL
IN

ES
, 

18
” I

N
TR

U
SI

O
N

 O
F 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 
FE

AT
U

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 A
S 

EA
VE

S,
 IS

 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

0’
. 3

’ I
N

TR
U

SI
O

N
 O

F 
AR

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 F

EA
TU

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 
AS

 E
AV

ES
, I

S 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

10
’ O

R
 G

R
EA

TE
R

. 

Page G-1.45



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
6

FL
O

O
R

 A
R

EA
 D

IA
G

R
AM

S

16
'-0

"
20

'-7
"

xG
1

22
'-6

"
12

'-2
"

2
-2

x
AD

U
 11

A

19
'-7

"
12

'-2
"

9'
-

'-
xA

19
'-0

"
4'

-4
"

xB

34
'-0

"
34

'0
"

18
'-2

"
18

'2
"

44
-22

xxC

3'
-6

"6
3'

-1
0"10

""
xG
3

16
'-0

"
5'

-1
0"

xxxD

15
'-0

"
5

0
16

'-6
"

1166
"

1
xx

LA
N

AI

4'
-6

"
5'

-4
"

xxx
PO

R
C

H
 1

PO
H

1 2'
-6

"
5'

-1
0"0"

2
xxx

PO
R

C
H

 2 2'
-0

"
2

0
7'

-4
"

00
2

4
xxx

PO
R

C
H

 33
666"6"6

8
1

8
1

8'
-1

"
8'

1"
8

-1
8

-1
"6

8'
1""

xxx
AD

U
 2

4'
-6

"
21

'-0
"

4
0"0

4
xxxxG
2

FI
R

ST
 F

LO
O

R
 A

R
EA

 D
IA

G
R

AM
SC

AL
E:

 1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

5'
-4

"
5

""
1'

-6
"

-6
"666"666666666666666666666"""""666666666666666666""""""""""""66666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666""6""""""""""""""""""66""6666666666666666"""""""66666666666666666"""""""""""""""""""""""6666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""6666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666""666666666666""""666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""66666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666"""""""""""666666666666666666666666"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""66666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666""

xxFPPPPPPF
55

""""

12
'-7

"
16

'-6
"

xA

4'
-1

"
4

12
'-6

"
'---2'
-6---

12
4'

-1
4

"
xxBB

14
'-5

"
14

'-0
"

5"
14

xC

15
'-3

"
1 8

'-2
"

xD

19
'-4

"
15

'-0
"

-
-4

5'
xxEEEE

4'
-1

"
15

'-0
""0

1555
0""00""0

4
xxxxxxFF

11
'-6

"
1 3

'-7
"

xG

3'
-6

"
7'

-4
"

xxxxH

3'
-6

"
4'

-8
"

xxxxxI

SE
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 A

R
EA

 D
IA

G
R

AM
SC

AL
E:

 1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

FI
R

ST
 F

LO
O

R
 A

R
EA

A
23

8.
26

 S
Q

. F
T.

12
'-2

" X
 1

9'
-7

"

B
82

.3
3 

SQ
. F

T.
4'

-4
" X

 1
9'

-0
"

C
61

7.
67

 S
Q

. F
T.

18
'-2

" X
 3

4'
-0

"
D

93
.3

3 
SQ

. F
T.

5'
-1

0"
 X

 1
6'

-0
"

  T
O

TA
L

10
31

.5
9 

SQ
. F

T.

GA
RA

GE

G1
32

9.
33

 S
Q

. F
T.

20
'-7

" X
 1

6'
-0

"

G2
94

.5
0 

SQ
. F

T.
21

'-0
" X

 4
'-6

"

G3
13

.4
2 

SQ
. F

T.
3'

-1
0"

 X
 3

'-6
"

  T
O

TA
L

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

AD
U

AD
U 

1
27

3.
24

 S
Q

. F
T.

12
'-2

" X
 2

2'
-6

"

AD
U 

2
4.

04
 S

Q
. F

T.
8'

-1
" X

 6
"

TO
TA

L
27

7.
28

 S
Q

. F
T.

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H 
1

24
.0

0 
SQ

. F
T.

5'
-4

" X
 4

'-6
"

PO
RC

H 
2

15
.8

3 
SQ

. F
T.

5'
-1

0"
 X

 2
'-6

"

PO
RC

H 
3

14
.6

7 
SQ

. F
T.

7'
-4

" X
 2

'-0
"

TO
TA

L
54

.5
0 

SQ
. F

T.

SE
CO

ND
 F

LO
O

R 
AR

EA
A

20
7.

63
 S

Q
. F

T.
16

'-6
" X

 1
2'

-7
"

B
51

.0
4 

SQ
. F

T.
12

'-6
" X

 4
'-1

"

C
20

1.
83

 S
Q

. F
T.

14
'-0

" X
 1

4'
-5

"

D
27

7.
04

 S
Q

. F
T.

18
'-2

" X
 1

5'
-3

"

E
29

0.
00

 S
Q

. F
T.

15
'-0

" X
 1

9'
-4

"

F
61

.2
5 

SQ
. F

T.
15

'-0
" X

 4
'-1

"

G
15

6.
21

 S
Q

. F
T.

13
'-7

" X
 1

1'
-6

"

H
25

.6
7 

SQ
. F

T.
7'

-4
" X

 3
'-6

"

I
16

.3
3 

SQ
. F

T.
4'

-8
" X

 3
'-6

"

  T
O

TA
L

12
87

.0
0 

SQ
. F

T.

FL
O

O
R 

AR
EA

 LI
M

IT
 F

IR
ST

 F
LO

O
R

10
31

.5
9 

SQ
. F

T.

 S
EC

O
ND

 F
LO

O
R

12
87

.0
0 

SQ
. F

T.

 G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

 A
DU

27
7.

28
 S

Q
. F

T.

 T
O

TA
L

30
33

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

LI
VI

NG
 +

 G
AR

AG
E

27
55

.8
4 

SQ
. F

T.

 M
AX

. F
.A

.L
.

28
00

.0
0 

SQ
. F

T.

BU
IL

DI
NG

 C
O

VE
RA

GE
 F

IR
ST

 F
LO

O
R

10
31

.5
9 

SQ
. F

T.

 LA
NA

I
24

7.
50

 S
Q

. F
T.

16
'-6

" X
 1

5'
-0

"

 P
O

RC
H

54
.5

0 
SQ

. F
T.

 G
AR

AG
E

43
7.

25
 S

Q
. F

T.

 A
DU

27
7.

28
 S

Q
. F

T.

 F
IR

EP
LA

CE
8.

00
 S

Q
. F

T.
1'

-6
" X

 5
'-4

"

 T
O

TA
L

20
56

.1
2 

SQ
. F

T.

TO
TA

L W
/O

 A
DU

17
78

.8
4 

SQ
. F

T.

M
AX

. B
UI

LD
IN

G
CO

VE
RA

GE
18

20
.0

0 
SQ

. F
T.

 C              

........... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

" " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " "

Page G-1.46



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
7

12
4

12
4

12
4

1212
44

FX

T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
. T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
. 8'-0"

10'-1"
1'-2 3/4""

8'-7"

7'-6"

+/- 26'-3 1/2"

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.W
D

W
.

8'-0"

10'-1"

1'-2 3/4"

8'-7"

7'-6"

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
SC

AL
E:

 1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

D
AY

LI
G

H
T 

PL
AN

E 
(2

8'
-0

" M
AX

. H
T.

)

12
343

1
33

12
333

11
34333

12
34

1

F.
F.

E.
= 

74
.0

6
F.

F.
E.

= 
74

.0
6

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E=

 +
/- 

72
.6

1

28'-0"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE

19'-6"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE AT SETBACK

45
°

5'
-3

"
TO

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

E
T

5'
-3

"
TO

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

EEEEEEE
AV

ER
AG

E
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 R
IG

H
T

SE
TB

AC
K=

 +
/- 

72
.4

1

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E 

AT
 L

EF
T

SE
TB

AC
K=

 +
/- 

72
.4

6

19'-6"

45
°

2'-6"

3'-0" 30

3'-000" 0

1'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

6"

12
4

12
4

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

7'-6" 8'-0"

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

1'-2 3/4"

7'-6"

8'-7"

8'-0"

10'-1"

T.
O

.W
D

W
. T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

1'-2 3/4" 48'-7" 10'-1"

+/- 26'-3 1/2"

R
IG

H
T 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
SC

AL
E:

 1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

SC
AL

E:
1/

4"
1'

0"

1212
44

12
4

1212
44

TB
D

 T
O

 F
EN

C
E 

LI
N

E

FX

12
4

FX

F.
F.

E.
= 

74
.0

6
F.

F.
E.

= 
74

.0
6

AV
ER

AG
E 

G
R

AD
E=

 +
/- 

72
.6

1

4'-0" 40

4'-0" 40

4'-0" 40

3'-6" 666

3'-6" 36

3'-6" 36

3'-6" 36

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S

AC
C

EN
T 

M
AT

ER
IA

L 
B

R
IC

K
 V

EN
EE

R

R
O

O
F 

M
AT

ER
IA

L 
C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 S

H
IN

G
LE

 R
O

O
F

R
O

O
F 

M
AT

ER
IA

L
C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 S

H
IN

G
LE

 R
O

O
F

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
W

O
O

D
 F

A
SC

IA
 T

R
IM

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
 

C
EM

EN
TI

TI
O

U
S 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SI
D

IN
G

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
 

C
EM

EN
TI

TI
O

U
S 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SI
D

IN
G

 

AC
C

EN
T 

C
O

LO
R

 
FI

B
ER

G
LA

SS
 F

R
O

N
T 

D
O

O
R

W
O

O
D

 C
O

LU
M

N
 &

 T
R

IM

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
 

C
EM

EN
TI

TI
O

U
S 

W
IN

D
O

W
 &

 D
O

O
R

 T
R

IM
W

O
O

D
 B

AY
 W

IN
D

O
W

 
ST

EE
L 

G
A

R
A

G
E 

D
O

O
R

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
C

EM
EN

TI
TI

O
U

S 
W

IN
D

O
W

 &
 D

O
O

R
 T

R
IM

AC
C

EN
T 

C
O

LO
R

 
W

O
O

D
 P

O
R

C
H

 C
O

LU
M

N

10
 1

/2
”**

W
IN

D
O

W
S

M
A

RV
IN

 E
SS

EN
TI

A
L 

A
LL

 U
LT

R
EX

 
W

IN
D

O
W

S 
TY

P.
 - 

N
O

 S
IM

U
LA

TE
D

 
D

IV
ID

ED
 L

IT
E

**
 A

S 
PE

R
 M

EN
LO

 P
AR

K 
G

U
ID

EL
IN

ES
, 

18
” I

N
TR

U
SI

O
N

 O
F 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 
FE

AT
U

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 A
S 

EA
VE

S,
 IS

 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

0’
. 3

’ I
N

TR
U

SI
O

N
 O

F 
AR

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 F

EA
TU

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 
AS

 E
AV

ES
, I

S 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

10
’ O

R
 G

R
EA

TE
R

.

Page G-1.47



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
8

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S

W
IN

D
O

W
S

M
A

RV
IN

 E
SS

EN
TI

A
L 

A
LL

 U
LT

R
EX

 
W

IN
D

O
W

S 
TY

P.
 - 

N
O

 S
IM

U
LA

TE
D

 
D

IV
ID

ED
 L

IT
E

FX

12
4

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.W
D

W
.

8'-0"

10'-1"

7'-6"

8'-7"

1'-2 3/4"

T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
. T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
. 8'-0"

10'-1"

7'-6"

8'-7"
1'-2 3/4""

+/- 26'-3 1/2"

LE
FT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/4
" =

 1
'-0

"

14'-4 1/2"

T.
O

.W
D

T
O

WWW
D

W
.

D
W

12
4

FX
FX

DD

12
4

12
4

F.
F.

E.
= 

74
.0

6
F.

F.
E.

= 
74

.0
6

FX
FX

AV
ER

AG
E 

G
R

AD
E=

 +
/- 

72
.6

1

12
4

3'-0"

3'-0"

6'-6"

3'-0"

3'-0" 30

"

T.
O

.S
TA

IR
LA

N
D

IN
G

3'-6" 36

3'-6" 36

3'-6" 6 3

3'-6" 6 3

3'-6" 6 3

3'-0"" -

6'-0"" -

3'-6"

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

1'-2 3/4"

7'-6"

48'-7"

8'-0"

10'-1"

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

1'-2 3/4" 1

7'-6"

8'-7"

8'-0"

10'-1"

T.
O

.W
D

W
. T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

12
4

12
4

R
EA

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
SC

AL
E:

 1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

12
4

12
4

12
4

D
AY

LI
G

H
T 

PL
AN

E 
(2

8'
-0

" M
AX

. H
T.

)

F.
F.

E.
= 

74
.0

6
F.

F.
E.

= 
74

.0
6

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E=

 +
/- 

72
.6

1
AV

ER
AG

E
G

R
AD

E 
AT

 R
IG

H
T

SE
TB

AC
K=

 +
/- 

72
.4

1

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E 

AT
 L

EF
T

SE
TB

AC
K=

 +
/- 

72
.4

6

5'
-3

"
TO

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

E
5'

-3
"

TO
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
EEEEEEEE

19'-6"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE AT SETBACK

19'-6"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE AT SETBACK

+/- 26'-3 1/2"

28'-0"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE

45
°

3'-0" 3-"

3'-0" '

45°4

3'-0" 30

3'-6" -"

3'-6" -"

6"

1'
-0

"

R
O

O
F 

M
AT

ER
IA

L 
C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 S

H
IN

G
LE

 R
O

O
F

R
O

O
F 

M
AT

ER
IA

L
C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 S

H
IN

G
LE

 R
O

O
F

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
W

O
O

D
 F

A
SC

IA
 T

R
IM

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
 

C
EM

EN
TI

TI
O

U
S 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SI
D

IN
G

 

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
 

C
EM

EN
TI

TI
O

U
S 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SI
D

IN
G

 

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
C

EM
EN

TI
TI

O
U

S 
W

IN
D

O
W

 &
 D

O
O

R
 T

R
IM

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
C

EM
EN

TI
TI

O
U

S 
W

IN
D

O
W

 &
 D

O
O

R
 T

R
IM

AC
C

EN
T 

C
O

LO
R

 
W

O
O

D
 T

R
EL

LI
S 

&
 W

O
O

D
 P

O
ST

**
 A

S 
PE

R
 M

EN
LO

 P
AR

K 
G

U
ID

EL
IN

ES
, 

18
” I

N
TR

U
SI

O
N

 O
F 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 
FE

AT
U

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 A
S 

EA
VE

S,
 IS

 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

0’
. 3

’ I
N

TR
U

SI
O

N
 O

F 
AR

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 F

EA
TU

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 
AS

 E
AV

ES
, I

S 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

10
’ O

R
 G

R
EA

TE
R

.

10
 1

/2
”**

Page G-1.48



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
9

SE
C

TI
O

N
S

* A
S 

PE
R

 T
H

E 
M

EN
LO

 P
AR

K 
M

U
N

IC
IP

AL
 

C
O

D
E 

(S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6.
04

.3
13

 F
LO

O
R

 A
R

EA
) 

AT
TI

C
 S

PA
C

E 
W

H
ER

E 
TH

E 
D

IS
TA

N
C

E 
BE

TW
EE

N
 T

H
E 

TO
P 

O
F 

TH
E 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 

JO
IS

T 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

BO
TT

O
M

 O
F 

TH
E 

R
O

O
F 

SH
EA

TH
IN

G
 M

EA
SU

R
ES

 L
ES

S 
TH

AN
 

FI
VE

 F
EE

T 
(5

’) 
IS

 E
XC

LU
D

ED
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E 

FL
O

O
R

 A
R

EA
.

**
 A

S 
PE

R
 M

EN
LO

 P
AR

K 
G

U
ID

EL
IN

ES
, 

18
” I

N
TR

U
SI

O
N

 O
F 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 
FE

AT
U

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 A
S 

EA
VE

S,
 IS

 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

0’
. 3

’ I
N

TR
U

SI
O

N
 O

F 
AR

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 F

EA
TU

R
ES

, S
U

C
H

 
AS

 E
AV

ES
, I

S 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 IN
TO

 A
N

Y 
YA

R
D

 O
F 

10
’ O

R
 G

R
EA

TE
R

.

D
R

O
P 

ZO
N

E

PA
N

TR
Y

PW
D

R
.

D
IN

IN
G

9'-1"

6'-
8"

 C
LE

AR
.

CL
ELE
A

14'-4 1/2" 2

3'-6"

LO
FT

PR
IM

AR
Y

W
.I.

C
.

SE
C

TI
O

N
 A

 - 
A 

SC
AL

E:
 1

/4
" =

 1
'-0

"

T.
O

.P
.

T
O

P

T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
. T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
. 8'-0"

10'-1"
1'-2 3/4"""

O
P

O
P

8'-7"

7'-6"

+/- 26'-3 1/2"

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.S
./T

.O
.C

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.W
D

W
.

8'-0"

10'-1"

1'-2 3/4"

8'-7"

7'-6"

D
AY

LI
G

H
T 

PL
AN

E 
(2

8'
-0

" M
AX

. H
T.

)

F.
F.

E.
= 

74
.0

6
F.

F.
E.

= 
74

.0
6

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E=

 +
/- 

72
.6

1

28'-0"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE

19'-6"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE AT SETBACK

45
°

5'
-3

"
TO

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

EEEEEEE
5'

-3
"

TO
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
EEEEEEE

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E 

AT
 R

IG
H

T
SE

TB
AC

K=
 +

/- 
72

.4
1

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E 

AT
 L

EF
T

SE
TB

AC
K=

 +
/- 

72
.4

6

19'-6"
FROM AVERAGE GRADE AT SETBACK

45
°

4'-7"

3'-4"

3'-6"

8'-7"

6'-8"

T.
O

.D
O

O
R

T.
O

.P
. T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.S
LA

B/
T.

O
.C

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

F.
F.

E.
= 

74
.0

6

G
R

EA
T

BE
D

R
O

O
M

 3
W

.I.
C

.
PR

IM
AR

Y
PR

IM
AR

Y 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
BA

TH

SL
O

PE
SL

O
PE

2"

4"

SE
C

TI
O

N
 B

-B
SC

AL
E:

 1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

G
AR

AG
E

R
O

O
M

PA
N

TR
Y

KI
TC

H
EN

8'-0"7'-6"

8'-7" 10'-1"1'-2 3/4" 4

T.
O

.S
.F

.

T.
O

.W
D

W
.

T.
O

.W
D

W
. 8'-0"7'-6"

T.
O

.S
LA

B/
T.

O
.C

.
F.

F.
E.

= 
74

.0
6

8'-7" 10'-1"1'-2 3/4" 444

T.
O

.P
.

T.
O

.P
.

26'-3 1/2"

9'-1"

FX
FX

AV
ER

AG
E

G
R

AD
E=

 +
/- 

72
.6

1

4'-7 1/2"

2'-6 1/2" 2" 22'

10'-5"

8'-7"

6'-8"

T.
O

.D
O

O
R

*

*

*

*

Page G-1.49



44
0 

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

., 
M

EN
LO

 P
A

R
K

D
28

M
20

0-
TR

TH
O

M
A

S 
JA

M
ES

 H
O

M
ES

58
65

 O
w

en
s 

D
riv

e
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

, C
A 

94
58

8
92

5-
25

1-
72

00

16
41

.0
44

01
-1

0-
20

23

N
O

R
TH

JO
B

 N
O

.
D

AT
E

A.
10

C
O

LO
R

S 
& 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS

BO
D

Y 
C

O
LO

R
 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SI
D

IN
G

, W
IN

D
O

W
 &

 D
O

O
R

 T
R

IM

AC
C

EN
T 

C
O

LO
R

 
FR

O
N

T 
D

O
O

R
, F

R
O

N
T 

PO
R

C
H

 C
O

LU
M

N
 &

AC
C

EN
T 

M
AT

ER
IA

L
B

R
IC

K
 V

EN
EE

R
TR

IM

B
AY

 W
IN

D
O

W
S,

 P
A

N
EL

LI
N

G
, E

AV
ES

, F
A

SC
IA

, 
G

A
R

A
G

E 
D

O
O

R
, B

A
C

K
 T

R
EL

LI
S

R
O

O
F 

M
AT

ER
IA

L 
C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 S

H
IN

G
LE

Page G-1.50



440 UNIVERSITY DRIVE
MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025

09
.0

9.
22

D2
8 

M
20

0 
A

TR
AD

IT
IO

NA
LKR

IS
TI

N 
LA

SK
Y

DA
HL

IN

Thisisanexampleofdesignspecificationsforthisparticularplanandelevation.Detailedspecifications,finishesandfixturesaresubjecttochange,onhomespriortosale,atanytime
withoutnoticeorobligation.Squarefootagesandlotdimensionsareapproximateandmayvaryinconstructionanddependingonthestandardofmeasurementused,engineeringand
municipalrequirements,orothersite-specificconditions.Roomsize,walls,windows,doors,porchesandbalconiesvaryperhomeelevationandlocation.Notanofferorsolicitationto
sellrealproperty.ThomasJamesHomesisaregisteredtrademarkofThomasJamesHomes,LLC.©2018ThomasJamesHomes.Allrightsreserved.CADRELicense#02057367

NO
TE

: R
EN

DE
RI

NG
S 

SH
OW

N 
AR

E 
FO

R 
IL

LU
ST

RA
TI

ON
 

PU
RP

OS
ES

 O
NL

Y 
AN

D 
AR

E 
NO

T 
IN

TE
ND

ED
 T

O 
BE

 A
N 

AC
TU

AL
 

DE
PI

CT
IO

N 
OF

 T
HE

 H
OM

E 
OR

 
IT

’S
 S

UR
RO

UN
DI

NG
S

EX
TE

RI
OR

 R
EN

DE
RI

NG
S

(N
OT

 T
O 

SC
AL

E)

HO
US

E 
NU

M
BE

RS

TR
IC

OR
N 

BL
AC

K
SW

 6
25

8
FR

ON
T 

DO
OR

GA
RA

GE
 D

OO
R

W
IN

DO
W

 F
RA

M
ES

: B
LA

CK

EL
DO

RA
DO

 S
TO

NE
TU

ND
RA

 B
RI

CK
 -

CH
AL

K 
DU

ST
 

GA
RA

GE
 D

OO
R

CL
OP

AY
 G

RA
ND

 H
AR

BO
R

DE
SI

GN
 1

1,
 IN

SU
LA

TE
D

SO
LI

D 
TO

P 
11

EX
TE

RI
OR

 L
IG

HT
 F

IX
TU

RE
8”

W
 X

 1
5.

25
”H

 

FE
NC

E 
ST

AI
N

SE
M

I-T
RA

NS
PA

RE
NT

SP
AN

IS
H 

M
OS

S

GA
F 

RO
OF

 S
HI

NG
LE

S
CH

AR
CO

AL

FR
ON

T 
DO

OR
M

AS
ON

IT
E 

-H
ER

IT
AG

E 
-W

IN
SL

OW
FI

BE
RG

LA
SS

1/
4 

LI
TE

 2
 P

AN
EL

 D
OO

R
FU

LL
 S

ID
EL

IT
E

PU
RE

 W
HI

TE
SW

 7
OO

5
SI

DI
NG

W
IN

DO
W

 &
 D

OO
R 

TR
IM

PA
NE

LI
NG

, C
OL

UM
NS

, &
 T

RI
M

FA
SC

IA
, E

AV
ES

, &
 C

OR
BE

LS
BA

CK
 T

RE
LL

IS

Page G-1.51



64x60
HH: 80

3
6
x5

2
H
H
: 
8
0

4
8
x5

2
H
H
: 
8

0

36x52
HH: 80

3
6
x5

2
H
H
: 
8
0

1
8
x1

8
H
H
: 
8
0

3
6
x5

2
H
H
: 
8
0

60x46
HH: 80

36x36
HH: 82

3
6
x5

2
H
H
: 
8
0

LI
V
IN

G
 R

O
O

M

8
'-0

" C
LG

KI
TC

H
EN

8
-0

" C
LG

B
ED

R
O

O
M

8
'-0

" C
LG

B
ED

R
O

O
M

8
'-0

" C
LG

G
A
R
A
G

E

8
'-0

" C
LG

 L
O

W

D
N

1
8
"

D
EC

K

EX
PO

S
ED

 S
TU

D
S

D
R
YW

A
LL

 (
TY

P.
)

D
R
YW

A
LL

 (
TY

P.
)

D
R
YW

A
LL

 (
TY

P.
)

1
3
'-3

"
1
'-1

1
"

5
'-5

"
1
'-1

1
"

1
1
'-5

"

12'-1" 12'-4"

8'-2"

2
4
'-8

"
8
'-4

"

11'-6"

2
1
'-5

"

D
R
YW

A
LL

 (
TY

P.
)

TI
LE

D
R
YW

A
LL

 (
TY

P.
)

S
TO

N
E 

FI
R
EP

LA
C

E 
/ H

EA
R
TH

W
O

O
D

 F
LO

O
R
IN

G
D

R
YW

A
LL

 (
TY

P.
)

8
'-0

" C
LG

8
'-0

" C
LG

8
'-0

" C
LG

8
'-0

"
C
LG

8
'-0

" C
LG

PO
R
C

H
D

R
YW

A
LL

 (
TY

P.
)

S
C
A
LE

PR
O

JE
C
T

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 B
Y

D
A
TE

S
H
EE

T

PR
EP

A
R
ED

 F
O

R

PR
O

JE
C
T 

N
A
M

E

PL
A
N
 T

YP
E

PR
O

JE
C

T 
A
D

D
R
ES

S

W
O

R
R

Y 
FR

EE
R

EN
O

VA
TI

O
N

S

3
6

2
6

 E
. 
PA

C
IF

IC
 C

O
A
S
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

| 
2

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

LO
N
G

 B
EA

C
H
 C

A
 |

 9
0
8
0
4

T 
5
6
2
.6

2
1
.9

1
0
0

F 
8
8
8
.6

9
8
.2

9
6
6

W
W

W
.P

PM
C

O
.N

ET

PR
EC

IS
IO

N
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
M

EA
SU

R
EM

EN
TS

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N

3
3

8
5

_B
A

0
6
/1

4
/2

2

TH
O

M
A
S
 J

A
M

ES
H
O

M
ES

4
4
0
 U

N
IV

ER
S
IT

Y
D

R
IV

E
R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

4
4
0
 U

N
IV

ER
S
IT

Y 
D

R
IV

E,
M

EN
LO

 P
A
R
K,

 C
A
 9

4
0
2
5

 o
f 
3

A
ll 

pl
an

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
by

 P
re

ci
si

on
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
Lt

d 
"P

PM
" a

re
 m

ad
e 

ex
cl

us
iv
el

y
fo

r 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
 (
C
al

. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

.
C
od

e 
§8

7
2
7
).
 A

ll 
si

te
 p

la
ns

 c
re

at
ed

 b
y 

PP
M

 d
o 

no
t

in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
lin

e,
 a

nd
 a

s
su

ch
 d

o 
no

t 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

la
nd

 s
ur

ve
yi

ng
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e 
§§

8
7
2
6
-8

7
2
7
).
 In

ad
di

tio
n,

 P
PM

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
st

itu
te

ci
vi
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e 
§§

6
7
0
2
-6

7
0
4
),

an
d 

th
us

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

an
y 

st
ud

ie
s 

or
 a

ct
iv
iti

es
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

ci
vi
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e
§6

7
3
1
).
 A

ll 
flo

or
 p

la
ns

 c
re

at
ed

 b
y 

PP
M

 a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 t
o

be
 u

se
d 

as
 a

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 f
or

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

an
d

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
 s

ub
st

itu
te

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
of

a 
lic

en
se

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 e
ng

in
ee

r 
or

 li
ce

ns
ed

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
. 
PP

M
m

ak
es

 e
ve

ry
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ef

fo
rt

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

un
d 

in
 o

ur
 p

la
ns

. 
H
ow

ev
er

, 
ev

er
y

A
s-

B
ui

lt 
dr

aw
in

g 
in

he
re

nt
ly

 c
on

ta
in

s 
er

ro
rs

 t
o 

so
m

e
de

gr
ee

. 
It
 is

 t
he

 d
ut

y 
of

 t
he

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
, 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

,
de

si
gn

er
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

lic
en

se
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

, 
as

 a
 c

on
su

lta
nt

to
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

r,
 t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

su
ita

bi
lit

y 
of

 t
he

A
s-

B
ui

lt 
pl

an
s 

pr
io

r 
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 M

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d

be
 f
ie

ld
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 in

 t
he

ev
en

t 
th

at
 a

n 
er

ro
r 

is
 f
ou

nd
 o

n 
a 

pl
an

, 
PP

M
's
 li

ab
ili
ty

 is
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
fe

e 
pa

id
 t

o 
PP

M
.

JS

1

TW
H

PV W
H

=
 W

A
TE

R
 H

EA
TE

R

FU
R
N

LO
W

 C
A
S
EW

O
R
K

FU
LL

 H
EI

G
H
T 

C
A
S
EW

O
R
K

U
PP

ER
 C

A
S
EW

O
R
K

C
LG H
H

=
 C

EI
LI

N
G

 H
EI

G
H
T

=
 H

EA
D

ER
 H

EI
G

H
T

=
 G

A
S
 M

ET
ER

=
 W

A
LL

 H
EA

TE
R

=
 T

R
A
S
H
 C

O
M

PA
C
TO

R

=
 D

IS
H
 W

A
S
H
ER

=
 O

V
EN

=
 R

EF
R
IG

ER
A
TO

R

=
 R

A
N
G

E

=
 D

R
YE

R

=
 W

A
S
H
ER

=
 W

A
S
H
ER

/D
R
YE

R
 C

O
M

B
O

=
 E

LE
C
TR

IC
 M

ET
ER

W
/D W D

R
EF

R

O
V
EN D
W TC

=
 F

U
R
N
A
C
E

=
 E

LE
C
TR

IC
A
L 

PA
N
EL

=
 S

O
LA

R
 C

O
M

PO
N
EN

TS

=
 T

A
N
KL

ES
S
 W

A
TE

R
 H

EA
TE

R

=
 F

LO
O

R
 D

R
A
IN

W
S

=
 W

A
TE

R
 S

O
FT

N
ER

1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

Page G-1.52



EXISTING
1.4:12

EXISTING
3:12

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EXIS
TIN

G
5
:1

2

EXISTING
5:12

EXISTING
5:12

EXISTING
5:12

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EXISTING
5:12

EXISTING
5:12

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

EX
IS

TI
N
G

5
:1

2

S
C
A
LE

PR
O

JE
C
T

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 B
Y

D
A
TE

S
H
EE

T

PR
EP

A
R
ED

 F
O

R

PR
O

JE
C
T 

N
A
M

E

PL
A
N
 T

YP
E

PR
O

JE
C

T 
A
D

D
R
ES

S

W
O

R
R

Y 
FR

EE
R

EN
O

VA
TI

O
N

S

3
6

2
6

 E
. 
PA

C
IF

IC
 C

O
A
S
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

| 
2

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

LO
N
G

 B
EA

C
H
 C

A
 |

 9
0
8
0
4

T 
5
6
2
.6

2
1
.9

1
0
0

F 
8
8
8
.6

9
8
.2

9
6
6

W
W

W
.P

PM
C

O
.N

ET

PR
EC

IS
IO

N
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
M

EA
SU

R
EM

EN
TS

R
O

O
F 

PL
A
N

3
3

8
5

_B
A

0
6
/1

4
/2

2

TH
O

M
A
S
 J

A
M

ES
H
O

M
ES

4
4
0
 U

N
IV

ER
S
IT

Y
D

R
IV

E
R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

4
4
0
 U

N
IV

ER
S
IT

Y 
D

R
IV

E,
M

EN
LO

 P
A
R
K,

 C
A
 9

4
0
2
5

 o
f 
3

A
ll 

pl
an

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
by

 P
re

ci
si

on
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
Lt

d 
"P

PM
" a

re
 m

ad
e 

ex
cl

us
iv
el

y
fo

r 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
 (
C
al

. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

.
C
od

e 
§8

7
2
7
).
 A

ll 
si

te
 p

la
ns

 c
re

at
ed

 b
y 

PP
M

 d
o 

no
t

in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
lin

e,
 a

nd
 a

s
su

ch
 d

o 
no

t 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

la
nd

 s
ur

ve
yi

ng
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e 
§§

8
7
2
6
-8

7
2
7
).
 In

ad
di

tio
n,

 P
PM

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
st

itu
te

ci
vi
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e 
§§

6
7
0
2
-6

7
0
4
),

an
d 

th
us

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

an
y 

st
ud

ie
s 

or
 a

ct
iv
iti

es
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

ci
vi
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e
§6

7
3
1
).
 A

ll 
flo

or
 p

la
ns

 c
re

at
ed

 b
y 

PP
M

 a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 t
o

be
 u

se
d 

as
 a

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 f
or

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

an
d

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
 s

ub
st

itu
te

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
of

a 
lic

en
se

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 e
ng

in
ee

r 
or

 li
ce

ns
ed

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
. 
PP

M
m

ak
es

 e
ve

ry
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ef

fo
rt

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

un
d 

in
 o

ur
 p

la
ns

. 
H
ow

ev
er

, 
ev

er
y

A
s-

B
ui

lt 
dr

aw
in

g 
in

he
re

nt
ly

 c
on

ta
in

s 
er

ro
rs

 t
o 

so
m

e
de

gr
ee

. 
It
 is

 t
he

 d
ut

y 
of

 t
he

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
, 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

,
de

si
gn

er
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

lic
en

se
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

, 
as

 a
 c

on
su

lta
nt

to
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

r,
 t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

su
ita

bi
lit

y 
of

 t
he

A
s-

B
ui

lt 
pl

an
s 

pr
io

r 
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 M

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d

be
 f
ie

ld
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 in

 t
he

ev
en

t 
th

at
 a

n 
er

ro
r 

is
 f
ou

nd
 o

n 
a 

pl
an

, 
PP

M
's
 li

ab
ili
ty

 is
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
fe

e 
pa

id
 t

o 
PP

M
.

JS

2

R
TU

C
H
IM

N
EY

 O
U
TL

IN
E

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 F

O
O

TP
R
IN

T

=
 A

IR
 C

O
N
D

IT
IO

N
ER

=
 U

TI
LI

TY
 B

O
X

=
 R

O
O

F 
D

R
A
IN

=
 R

O
O

F 
V
EN

T

=
 R

O
O

F 
TO

P 
U
N
IT

=
 R

O
O

F 
TO

P 
H
A
TC

H

=
 D

O
W

N
S
PO

U
T

1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

Page G-1.53



N
O

R
TH

EA
S
T

N
O

R
TH

W
ES

T
S
O

U
TH

W
ES

T

S
O

U
TH

EA
S
T

S
H
IN

G
LE

S
(T

YP
)

1
2

5

1
2

3

1
2

1
.4

1
2

5
1
2

5

1
2

1
.4

1
2

3

1
2

5

8'-0"7'-5"

1
S
T 

FL
O

O
R

F.
F.

E.

B
ED

R
O

O
M

F.
C
.E

.

M
A
JO

R
R
ID

G
E

15'-5"

8'-0"

16'-11"

G
A
R
A
G

E
F.

F.
E.

G
A
R
A
G

E
F.

C
.E

.

M
A
JO

R
R
ID

G
E

8'-11"

1
2

5

B
R
IC

K 
(T

YP
)

W
O

O
D

 S
ID

IN
G

(T
YP

)

S
H
IN

G
LE

S
(T

YP
)

B
R
IC

K 
(T

YP
)

W
O

O
D

 S
ID

IN
G

(T
YP

)

W
O

O
D

 S
ID

IN
G

(T
YP

)

B
R
IC

K 
(T

YP
)

S
H
IN

G
LE

S
(T

YP
)

B
R
IC

K 
(T

YP
)

W
O

O
D

 S
ID

IN
G

(T
YP

)

W
O

O
D

 D
EC

K
(T

YP
)

S
H
IN

G
LE

S
(T

YP
)

N
A
TU

R
A
L 

S
TO

N
E 

FI
N
IS

H
(T

YP
)

W
O

O
D

 D
EC

K
(T

YP
)

N
A
TU

R
A
L 

S
TO

N
E 

FI
N
IS

H
(T

YP
)

S
C
A
LE

PR
O

JE
C
T

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 B
Y

D
A
TE

S
H
EE

T

PR
EP

A
R
ED

 F
O

R

PR
O

JE
C
T 

N
A
M

E

PL
A
N
 T

YP
E

PR
O

JE
C

T 
A
D

D
R
ES

S

W
O

R
R

Y 
FR

EE
R

EN
O

VA
TI

O
N

S

3
6

2
6

 E
. 
PA

C
IF

IC
 C

O
A
S
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

| 
2

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

LO
N
G

 B
EA

C
H
 C

A
 |

 9
0
8
0
4

T 
5
6
2
.6

2
1
.9

1
0
0

F 
8
8
8
.6

9
8
.2

9
6
6

W
W

W
.P

PM
C

O
.N

ET

PR
EC

IS
IO

N
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
M

EA
SU

R
EM

EN
TS

EX
TE

R
IO

R
EL

EV
A
TI

O
N
S

3
3

8
5

_B
A

0
6
/1

4
/2

2

TH
O

M
A
S
 J

A
M

ES
H
O

M
ES

4
4
0
 U

N
IV

ER
S
IT

Y
D

R
IV

E
R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

4
4
0
 U

N
IV

ER
S
IT

Y 
D

R
IV

E,
M

EN
LO

 P
A
R
K,

 C
A
 9

4
0
2
5

 o
f 
3

A
ll 

pl
an

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
by

 P
re

ci
si

on
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
Lt

d 
"P

PM
" a

re
 m

ad
e 

ex
cl

us
iv
el

y
fo

r 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
 (
C
al

. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

.
C
od

e 
§8

7
2
7
).
 A

ll 
si

te
 p

la
ns

 c
re

at
ed

 b
y 

PP
M

 d
o 

no
t

in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
lin

e,
 a

nd
 a

s
su

ch
 d

o 
no

t 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

la
nd

 s
ur

ve
yi

ng
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e 
§§

8
7
2
6
-8

7
2
7
).
 In

ad
di

tio
n,

 P
PM

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
st

itu
te

ci
vi
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e 
§§

6
7
0
2
-6

7
0
4
),

an
d 

th
us

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

an
y 

st
ud

ie
s 

or
 a

ct
iv
iti

es
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

ci
vi
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
(C

al
. 
B
us

. 
& 

Pr
of

. 
C
od

e
§6

7
3
1
).
 A

ll 
flo

or
 p

la
ns

 c
re

at
ed

 b
y 

PP
M

 a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 t
o

be
 u

se
d 

as
 a

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 f
or

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

an
d

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
 s

ub
st

itu
te

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
of

a 
lic

en
se

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 e
ng

in
ee

r 
or

 li
ce

ns
ed

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
. 
PP

M
m

ak
es

 e
ve

ry
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ef

fo
rt

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

un
d 

in
 o

ur
 p

la
ns

. 
H
ow

ev
er

, 
ev

er
y

A
s-

B
ui

lt 
dr

aw
in

g 
in

he
re

nt
ly

 c
on

ta
in

s 
er

ro
rs

 t
o 

so
m

e
de

gr
ee

. 
It
 is

 t
he

 d
ut

y 
of

 t
he

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
, 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

,
de

si
gn

er
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

lic
en

se
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

, 
as

 a
 c

on
su

lta
nt

to
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

r,
 t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

su
ita

bi
lit

y 
of

 t
he

A
s-

B
ui

lt 
pl

an
s 

pr
io

r 
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 M

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d

be
 f
ie

ld
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 in

 t
he

ev
en

t 
th

at
 a

n 
er

ro
r 

is
 f
ou

nd
 o

n 
a 

pl
an

, 
PP

M
's
 li

ab
ili
ty

 is
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
fe

e 
pa

id
 t

o 
PP

M
.

JS

3

FI
N
IS

H
ED

 G
R
A
D

E 
LI

N
E

FI
N
IS

H
ED

 F
LO

O
R
 L

IN
E

R
O

O
F 

PI
TC

H
 L

A
B
EL

 (
R
IS

E/
R
U
N
)

X
1
2

1
/4

" =
 1

'-0
"

Page G-1.54



Fe
et

0
10

20

College Ave

Santa Cruz Ave

Un
ive

rs
ity

 D
riv

e

Middle Ave

PREPARED FOR:

877-381-4092
REDWOOD CITY, CA 94065
255 SHORELINE DRIVE, SUITE 428
THOMAS JAMES HOMES

CALIFORNIA MENLO PARK
••

11
/1

1/
20

22

Page G-1.55



Page G-1.56



Page G-1.57



Page G-1.58



Page G-1.59



Page G-1.60



Page G-1.61



THOMAS JAMES HOMES 
255 Shoreline Dr Suite 428, 
Redwood City, CA 94065

44400 Universityy Drivee Projectt Descriptionn 
January 19, 2023

PARCELL GENERALL INFORMATION
The parcel located at 440 University Drive is a substandard lot, which is the reason a Use Permit is 
required for the proposed two-story residence. The R-1-U zoning ordinance requires a minimum of 
7,000 sq ft in area, 65 ft in width and 100ft in depth. The depth complies with the zoning ordinance; 
however, the lot area of 5200sf and width of 52ft is less than the required. 

There are 22 trees analyzed including 6 Heritage trees and 2 non protected trees offsite and 14 non 
protected trees onsite. 8 of the 14 non protected trees are proposed to be removed. 5 new trees are 
proposed onsite: 1- ; 1- -
Redbud at the rear; and 2- . Tree protection will be provided 
for the trees to remain during construction through fencing as well as construction methods to save 
the trees from being impacted. 

EXISTINGG HOMEE TOO BEE DEMOLISHEDD 
The existing house is a one story single-family minimal traditional home built in 1940. The home is 
1130sf including a 260sf garage.

PROPOSEDD SINGLEE FAMILYY RESIDENCEE 
The either College Avenue or Middle Avenue. The 
corner lots have been merged with their adjacent lots and then subdivided into 3 parcels that are 
reoriented to face the cross-street of University Drive. The parcels maintain a 50ft width yet are 
smaller in depth in comparison to the original lots. The homes on these parcels have L shaped 
footprints to create private rear outdoor spaces. In the immediate context along University Drive, the 
neighborhood consists of both 2-story and 1-story residences of varying styles including Traditional, 
Transitional, and Spanish. Main design features include horizontal siding, stucco, brick/stone accents, 
gable/shed roofs of either metal, comp shingle or S-tile materials, decorative shutters, and bay 
windows. Porches with columns define some of the entries creating inviting front elevations. Multiple
2-car garage configurations are found including recessed, side facing and front facing.

Continuing the 2-story evolvement using the patterns and aesthetics found in the neighborhood, the 
new home proposed is a 2-story single family Traditional style residence featuring 3beds/3.5 baths 
and a 1bed/1bath attached ADU to appeal to families. A combination of horizonal siding and brick are 
used on the first floor with a smooth panel bay window treatment at the front living space. Square 
columns and a gable roof form distinguishes the front porch and offers a more traditional aesthetic. 
The second-floor massing steps back from the first story to reduce appearance from the street and 
provide relief along the right and left edges. A front gable provides interest and echoes the 
surrounding gable/shed roof forms in the neighborhood. The second-floor plate height is lower than
typical 9ft and reduces massing. The window sills at the second floor have been raised to 3 -6 for 

Page G-1.62



THOMAS JAMES HOMES 
255 Shoreline Dr Suite 428, 
Redwood City, CA 94065

privacy while still providing adequate light and ventilation to the living spaces. Additionally, two 
privacy screening trees have been proposed between existing tree canopies at the left stair window.
A front facing 2-car garage and 2 off street parking spaces are provided. The garage is slightly setback 
from the main living space to be less prominent. The footprint of the home aligns with the adjacent 
homes as it uses a similar L shape form stepping back on the left side to create a usable private yard.

A light color palette is proposed to blend well with the neighborhood using an off white for the 
horizontal siding and a matching brick to provide a warm texture change. Minimalist windows with 
black window frames compliment the dark accent color for the garage, front door and shingle roof. 

NNEIGHBORR RELATIONSS 
Thomas James Homes has reached out to neighbors within 300-ft. of this property with a copy of the 
site plan, floor plan, elevations and a letter addressing our project. A virtual neighbor meeting was 
held on October 5, 2022 to collect feedback from the immediate neighbors. In addition, we have 
coordinated with two neighbors who attended the meeting and have reached out with concerns. 
Please see below for a summary of responses to neighbor concerns.

Neighbor at 444 University (left adjacent neighbor)
Concerns: 1) Requested more information on traffic management during construction and results 
on the asbestos report for demolition of the existing home. 2) Concerned if there was going to be a 
sidewalk installed at the property to continue the existing sidewalk. 
Response: Thomas James Homes responded to the neighbor via email on 11/3/22 to follow up with 
requested information regarding traffic management and the asbestos report. We also confirmed 
the Engineering Department does indeed require a new sidewalk on the property and are 
proposing that improvement in our plans. 

Neighbor at 883 Middle Avenue (Rear neighbor)
Concerns: 1) Interested in selling her home to TJH. 2) Requested more information on allowable 
fence heights. 3) Concerned the house is too close to the rear of the yard and does not desire the 
two story home close to the shared property line regardless of the compliant setbacks. The 
Neighbor claims the home and trees will affect/block solar gain.
Response: Thomas James Homes responded to the neighbor via phone multiple times and an email 
on 11/3/22 to follow up with requested information and concerns. We confirmed the proposal is 
well within the allowable setbacks and allowable height per the City municipal code and guidelines.
In addition, the proposed home is 78ft from the main home on the 883 property. See the attached 
thread for email reference.

We look forward to adding to the charm and sense of community in Menlo Park and welcome any 
questions the City may have as we go through the Use Permit Application process. 

Anna Felver, Planning Manager at TThomass Jamess Homes
afelver@tjhusa.com | 650. 402.3024

Page G-1.63



����������	��
�������������������������������������������
��������������������������	������������������	����������

�������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������
��������������������

������ !�"# $%� ��&��'(�)*"+�#�$�,*-+

.����/��0���1���0��2�3��������4

����556768988�55:;<�.=

��:>���������?�����1�������2	��������4

@�:A��������������13����������2�3��������4B������C������1�����2�3��������4B@����������������1���������2�3��������4

DEFGHIJKLM

NEJHOJ�OJJ�KLJ�HPHQLJR�QFSFE�HTJH�UEHV�WXT�YXZT�TJWJTJVQJ�XW�XZT�UTXUXOJR�LXZOJ�EXQH[XV�HO�YXZ�QHV�OJJ
KLJ�RF\JVOFXVO�RXQZ\JVKJR]�̂�H\�UTXSFRFV_�VZ\IJTO�WTX\�XZT�UTXWJOOFXVHE�UEHVO]
Ŵ�YXZ�LHSJ�HRRF[XVO�KX�YXZT�LX\JM�KLJV�̀J�̀XZER�EFaJ�KX�HRbZOK�XZT�UEHVO�KX�TJcJQK�KLXOJ�HRRF[XVO]�̂W
RJOFTJRM�̀J�QHV�QXXTRFVHKJ�H�OZTSJY�XV�YXZT�OFKJ�KX�RXQZ\JVK�HRRF[XVHE�JdFO[V_�IZFERFV_O�FV�KLJ�UEHVO]

eVRJTOKXXR�HVR�VXKJR�KLHK�YXZ�HTJ�XIbJQ[V_�KX�KLJ�QZTTJVK�UTXUXOHE�ZVEJOO�\XRFfQH[XVO�HTJ�\HRJ]
Ŵg̀LJV�QLHV_JO�HTJ�\HRJM�̀J�̀FEE�VX[WY�YXZ]

hJOKM

ijjk�lmnomp

qrstuv�wxysstsz�{ysyzrv|�}uv~�rvs��yxt�uvsty��t�t�tus

����k���k�m�����m�

������vry~��x��|�q�t~r����|��yxs�~��vrr�|���������

��������������� ��¡¢£¤u¥

¦§̈ ©ª«�¬¬¬�©®«̄�°®±²̄³́µ©́ ³¶®́�·́ ³̧ ±́¹

ºryvs�{uvr

��t��r¥ytx�ys��ys»��txr��~vys�¥t~~r��¼t~��t~�yvr�¤us�t�rs~tyx�ys��ts~rs�r���uxrx»��uv�~�r���r�u��~�r�ts�t�t��yx�uv�rs~t~»�~u�¼�u¥�~�r»�yvr�y��vr��r�£�½�r�~�¾ryx~uv¿�vu�rv

wvuzvy¥½���r�}y~tusyx�À�����|�}y~tusyx����u¤ty~tus�u��¢u¥r���tx�rv�£

ÁÂÃÄÅ�ÆÇÈÉÊËÌÍÎ�ÏÐÑÒÓ�ÔÌÇÎÐÑÒÓÕÖ×ÊÈÇØÒÐ×Ù

ÚÛÜÝÅ�ÞÎÑßà�Ê����Ð�Ì×ËÌß���������		
����

�ÃÅ����Ê��ÌÇ�Ìß�ÔÊ�ÌÇ�ÌßÕÍ�ÎÑàÊØÒÐ×Ù

��Å��Ð��ÞÊ�ÌßàÊÇÇ�Ô�ÍÊ�ÌßàÊÇÇÕÍ�ÎÑàÊØÒÐ×Ù��ÞÐ××���ÌÊ�ÌÇ�ÔÍÐ××�ÕÍ�ÎÑàÊØÒÐ×Ù�����ÍÎÈÊ�ÞÎÈÌËÊÑÍ

ÔÒÍÎÈÌËÊÑÍÕÍ�ÎÑàÊØÒÐ×Ù

Ú���Û�ÝÅ��Ì
���È�ÌßàÈÍ��È��Ì�ÇÐ��ÊßÓ�àÌÍ�ËÊÒÓ

�

���������������	��������������������2	����������	�����
��������������������

�������������	�����	������������

�������������������������	��������
�0���89��������������������������
�������89�������������������

���������������������������������������	�����������������
Page G-1.64



������������	
�����

����������
���������
���
��
�������������������
�����������������������
�����

����
�����

���������
�����
�������
��������������������
����������������������
� 

!�����������������������������
�
	�����������������
����������
���������������������
���������� 

��������
���"
��������������������������������������������
������������������������
�����������������

����
����������
��� 

�����#�����$����������
���������$�����
������������
���������������
����
�����������
������
����

��
��������������
�������
����$����������������������� 

%���
����
�����#

&'()*+,-.
���$
��� ���/��/
��0��
������$/

���
���$ ���/
��0��
������$ �1�

234 151 4161

�7���
����������8���
����
����������
���������������8�
��������������������� �

9��:��#�;�	�1#�5455����66<4���=������>
�	
��?��
�	
�@�"���� ���A�����
<
BCDEFGHIJK

LHM�NOM�CFPI�QJNRH�SNRTHMPFUNR�FRV�WHHURXK�YH�JFTH�IFZHR�RNIH�N[�\NOM�SNRSHMRP]�̂P�\NO�FMH�FYFMHK
YH�FMH�QMNQNPDRX�F�RHY�IYN�PINM\�IJFI�YDCC�GH�SNWQCDFRI�YDIJ�IJH�SDI\�WORDSDQFC�SNVH�FRV
XODVHCDRHP]�_JH�QMNQNPHV�JNWH�DP�NTHM�̀ab�[MNW�IJH�MHFM�QMNQHMI\�CDRH�FRV�NTHM�̀cb�[MNW�IJH�CHb
QMNQHMI\�CDRH�FRV�NTHM�cdb�[MNW�\NOM�HeDPURX�MHPDVHRSH]�̂P�YH�FCPN�VDPSOPPHV�QMHTDNOPC\K�IJHMH�FMH�RN
IMHHP�GHDRX�MHWNTHV�FI�IJH�MHFM�QMNQHMI\�CDRH�RNM�IJH�VHRPH�IMHH�SFRNQ\�NfPDIH�GH�DWQFSIHV]

gH�FMH�PUCC�DR�IJH�VHPDXR�QMNSHPP�N[�IJH�QMNhHSI�PN�D[�IJHMH�FMH�OQVFIHP�FRV�SJFRXHPK�YH�YDCC�RNU[\�\NO]�

Page G-1.65



��

Page G-1.66



����������

	

������

���������������������������������� ���!������"�#�$���

%&'(�)�*�()�+'()

,-..�/�����0�#1���2����344��5���2�� ���6�� 7�89.8:

;<.4=�94->?4-9�@�/ABCD�E

FGHIJK�LMLL�INKO�PNQROSTUITSVNT�WTSXTQY

Z���������

Page G-1.67



����������	��
�������������������������������������������
��������������������������	������������������	����������

�������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������
��������������������

������ !�"�!#$�!#%�&�"���'(!#� �''�$�)�'���'�!(��*+#&�$�#'�!"�!#$��#'�#$�$��+"�"%�&+(�'���,���+&�'����#$�-�$,!"�+(��#'�'%�'+�)�+ �'��%�!(��!$$(����$.�/0��'�1�!"'+(20(+3�(

4(+5(! /�����6!'�+#!"�7�8988:�6!'�+#!"�;��+*�!'�+#�+&�<+ ��0,�"$�(�.

=>?@A�BCDEFGHIJ�KLMNO�PHCJLMNOQRSFDCTNLSU

VWXYA�ZJM[\]F̂_�̀LaHSGH[�b_�cdcc�efde�gh

i?A�gjjF�kHCaH[�PFlHCaH[QImJM\FTNLSU

noA�pLj�ZFqH[\FCC�PmIFqH[\FCCQImJM\FTNLSUr�ZLSŜ�sHF]HC�PILSŜQImJM\FTNLSUr�t̂jIJDF�ZJDHGFMI

PNIJDHGFMIQImJM\FTNLSU

VuvwWoYA�xHf�yjDaH[\DÎ�Dj�hHjCL�zF[O�\HI�GFNO

�

{�����������
��������|�������������	�����}�������	��������������������~	����������������
��������������������

����������������������������������

����������	�����

���������
�������������������������������

������������������������������

������������

����������������}���������������������������
�������}��������	����������������

���{�����������������������������������������������������~	����������
�����

�����������

{�����������|������	���������������������������������������������
�����	����������������������

���������������������������� ��|��������������������������������������������|�����¡}�����
�

��������������}����������������������

������������������|��	�������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������

��
��������������������	�����	���������������������������	����������	����

����������	�����

����������¢£¤¥¦

§§̈�©�ªª���«¬�¤��
�������������������������������

������������������������������

������������

Page G-1.68



����������	�
��������������������������	���	�����
����������������������	��

Page G-1.69



���������	
�����������������������	���	�	

�������������������� !"#$%�&'()*

+#$�,,-.-/0//�,10,�23

+(1%45!���/6 7)�5�&'()��%45!���/6 7)�5�&'()*

8'1��9:�8(%!���'(%! !"#$%�&'()*;8:�!#5��+#5�4�$!��'!#5�4�$! !"#$%�&'()*

<==>�?@ABC==CD�EFAGAD

HI?CJ�K=L�M=B�N=OCOCP�LQ�?F�FIA�CAOPIR=B�SAATCPU�VA�?BA�QTWW�OC�FIA�>AQOPC�BAGOAX�YB=ZAQQ�XOFI�FIA�ZOFK
Q=�C=�LY>?FAQ�=B�ZI?CPAQ�F=�FIA�I=SAU�
[�>O>�M=WW=X�LY�XOFI�=LB�FA?S�F=�BAQY=C>�F=�FIA�\LAQT=CQ]Z=CZABCQ�K=L�I?>�?F�FIA�SAATCPU�̂WA?QA�QAA
RAW=X�M=B�FI=QA�BAQY=CQAQ_�

àbcdeb�fgh�E?MAFK�i=CZABC�?R=LF�FIA�ROP�FBLZJQ�=C�FIA�QFBAAFU�i?C�K=L�IAWY�LQ�R?ZJ�=LF�=M�FIA
>BOGAX?Kj
kdlmabld�fgh�HIABA�OQ�?�̂B=NAZF�S?C?PAB�=CQOFA�nXI=�XOWW�BA?ZI�=LF�?F�FIA�RAPOCCOCP�?C>�C=ToK�K=L
XIAC�W?BPAB�FBLZJQ�?BA�ApYAZFA>qD�FIAK�Z?C�?ZZ=S=>?FA�FIOQ�BA\LAQFU�

àbcdeb�frh�HIOQ�OQ�?�RLQK�EFBAAF�OC�FIA�ZOFK�?C>�FIABA�OQ�?�W=F�=M�FB?sZU
kdlmabld�frh�HI?CJ�K=L�M=B�FIA�OCQOPIFU�tLB�FA?S�ZBA?FAQ�?�FB?sZ�S?C?SPACF�YW?C�M=B�?YYB=YBO?FA
?ZZAQQ�=M�FIA�QOFA�YBO=B�F=�Z=CQFBLZT=CU

àbcdeb�fuh�VOWW�FIABA�RA�?�QO>AX?WJ�YB=GO>A>j
kdlmabld�fuh�HIA�ZOFK�ACPOCAABOCP�>AY?BFSACF�OQ�OC>AA>�BA\LOBOCP�?�CAX�QO>AX?WJ�F=�Z=CM=BS�XOFI�K=LB
YB=YABFK�vvv�wCOGABQOFKU�HIOQ�OQ�ApYAZFA>�F=�RA�OC�FIA�RLOW>OCP�PB?>OCP�>B?XOCPQ�OC�=B>AB�F=�BAZAOGA�=LB
RLOW>OCP�YABSOFU�VA�XOWW�?WQ=�QI=X�FIOQ�OC�=LB�ZOGOW�?BA?�YW?C�M=B�>AQOPC�BAGOAXU�EAA�=LB�ZOFK�Z=SSACF
RAW=XU

�

àbcdeb�fxh�y=X�>=�K=L�>AS=�XIAC�FIABA�OQ�?QRAQF=Qj�VIAC�XOWW�XA�I?GA�BAQLWFQ�OM�FIABA�OQ�?QRAQF=Q
?C>�WA?>j�i?C�XA�I?GA�?�Z=YK�=M�FIA�BAY=BFj
kdlmabld�fxh�VA�?ZFL?WWK�I?>�FIA�I=SA�FAQFA>�M=B�?QRAQF=Q�OC�tZF=RABU�HIA�ApOQTCP�I=LQA�X?Q�RLOWF�OC
z{v|U�}=QF�WOJAWK�FIOQ�XOWW�I?GA�?QRAQF=Q�F=�BAY=BFU�y=XAGABD�FIA�=CWK�?QRAQF=Q�M=LC>�X?Q�OC�n~q�HB?CQOFA
YOYAQ�?C>�XABA�BAS=GA>�OSSA>O?FAWKU�[�I?GA�?�?ZIA>�FI?F�WA�AB�F=�K=L�M=B�BAMABACZA�=B�OC�Z?QA�K=L
X?CFA>�F=�BA?ZI�=LF�F=�FIOQ�Z=SY?CK�M=B�S=BA�>AF?OWA>�OCM=BS?T=C�=C�FIAOB�YB=ZAQQ�=M�BAS=G?WU�

�=B�MLBFIAB�OCM=�=C�FIA�>AS=WOT=C�YB=ZAQQ_��AS=WOT=C�OQ�QZIA>LWA>�M=B�?B=LC>��?CL?BK�~|~�U�̂BO=B�F=
QF?BF�=M�>AS=D�FIA�iOFK�=M�}ACW=�̂?BJ�BA\LOBAQ�?�>LQF�Z=CFB=W�YW?C�?C>�AB=QO=C�Z=CFB=W�SA?QLBAQ�FI?F
FIAK�GABOMK�?BA�OCQF?WWA>U��HIA�>AS=WOT=C�FA?S�XOWW�LQA�I=QAQ�F=�Z=CFB=W�FIA�>LQF�>LBOCP�>AS=U��EFB?X
X?>>WAQ�XOWW�BAS?OC�OC�YW?ZA�FIB=LPI�Z=CQFBLZT=C�?W=CP�FIA�YABOSAFAB�=M�FIA�MACZOCP�F=�Z=CFB=W
>OBF]SL>�MB=S�WA?GOCP�FIA�QOFAU

Page G-1.70



����������	�
�����������������������������������������������
�������

�����

������� !�"

#$%&'(�)*+%%&%,�-+%+,$(.�/'(01$(%�2+*&3'(%&+�4&5&6&'%

789:�;�<�:�;�=9:�;

>?@@�A($+0�B*5C.�#D&0$�EFF.�G+*%D0�2($$H.�2I�JK@JL

MN@FO�KF?PQF?K�R�ASTUV'W

XYZ[\]�̂_̂ �̂[̀ ]a�b̀ cdaefg[feh̀f�ifejfck

l$+(%�-'($

A1&6�$W+&*�+%C�+%m�3&*$6�0(+%6W&00$C�n&01�&0�+($�V'%3&C$%0&+*�+%C�&%0$%C$C�6'*$*m�3'(�01$�D6$�'3�01$�&%C&5&CD+*�'(�$%0&0m�0'�n1'W�01$m�+($�+CC($66$CU�oB$60�p$+*0'(qB('H$(

)(',(+Wo�A1$�/+0&'%+*6r�?F??.�/+0&'%+*�I66'V&+0&'%�'3�T'W$�BD&*C$(6U

Page G-1.71



440 University Drive – Exhibit C: Conditions of Approval 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

LOCATION: 440 
University Drive 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2022-00050 

APPLICANT: Thomas 
James Homes 

OWNER: Thomas James 
Homes 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

1. The use permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. The applicant shall be required to apply for a building permit within one year from the date of
approval (by February 6, 2024) for the use permit to remain in effect.

b. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by
Dahlin Group Architecture consisting of 22 plan sheets, dated received January 19, 2023 and
approved by the Planning Commission on February 6, 2023, except as modified by the
conditions contained herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo
Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly applicable to
the project.

d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all requirements of the
Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly applicable
to the project.

e. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and Building
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be placed
underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact locations of
all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes, and other
equipment boxes.

f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall
submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged and
significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted for review
and approval of the Engineering Division.

g. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall
submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering Division. The
Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of grading, demolition or
building permits.

h. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected pursuant to the
Heritage Tree Ordinance and the arborist report prepared by California Tree and Landscape
Consulting, Inc. dated August 30, 2022.

i. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all fees incurred through staff time
spent reviewing the application.

j. The applicant or permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Menlo Park
or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City of
Menlo Park or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul an approval
of the Planning Commission, City Council, Community Development Director, or any other
department, committee, or agency of the City concerning a development, variance, permit, or
land use approval which action is brought within the time period provided for in any applicable
statute; provided, however, that the applicant’s or permittee’s duty to so defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless shall be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the applicant or permittee of any
said claim, action, or proceeding and the City’s full cooperation in the applicant’s or permittee’s
defense of said claims, actions, or proceedings.

2. The use permit shall be subject to the following conditions:

Page G-1.72



440 University Drive – Exhibit C: Conditions of Approval 

PAGE: 2 of 2 

LOCATION: 440 
University Drive 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2022-00050 

APPLICANT: Thomas 
James Homes 

OWNER: Thomas James 
Homes 

a. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the Applicant shall
revise the elevation drawings to indicate the stairwell window will have obscured glass, subject
to review and approval of the Planning Division

Page G-1.73



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Planning Commission

REGULAR MEETING DRAFT EXCERPT MINUTES 

Date: 2/6/2023 
Time: 7:00 p.m. 
Location: Zoom.us/join – ID# 862 5880 9056 and 

City Council Chambers 
751 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 

A. Call To Order

Acting Chair Cynthia Harris called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

B. Roll Call

Present: Andrew Barnes, Linh Dan Do, Cynthia Harris (Acting Chair), Henry Riggs, Jennifer
Schindler, Michele Tate

Staff: Corinna Sandmeier, Acting Principal Planner; Chris Turner, Associate Planner

G2. Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to demolish an existing one-story, single-
family residence, and construct a new two-story, single-family residence on a substandard lot with 
regard to minimum lot width and area in the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning district, 
at 440 University Drive. The project includes an attached accessory dwelling unit (ADU), which is a 
permitted use not subject to discretionary review; determine this action is categorically exempt under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15303’s Class 3 exemption for new construction or conversion of small 
structures. (Staff Report #23-010-PC)  

Associate Planner Chris Turner reported no updates to the published staff report. 

Anna Felver, Thomas James Homes, applicant, spoke on behalf of the project. 

Acting Chair Harris opened the public hearing.  

Public Comment: 

• Elizabeth Houck spoke against the project due to concerns about privacy impacts.

Acting Chair Harris closed the public hearing. 

The Commission discussed stairwell glazing and potential shade impacts. 

Commissioner Riggs moved to approve the item with the addition of obscure glazing on the stairwell. 
Commissioner Schindler seconded the motion. 

ACTION: Motion and second (Riggs/Schlinder) to adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to 
demolish an existing one-story, single-family residence, and construct a new two-story, single-family 
residence on a substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width and area in the R-1-U (Single 

ATTACHMENT E

Page G-1.74

https://zoom.us/join


Planning Commissions Regular Meeting Excerpt Minutes – 440 University Drive 
February 6, 2023 
Page 2 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Family Urban Residential) zoning district, at 440 University Drive with the following modification; 
passes 4-0 with Commissioners Barnes and Tate abstaining. 

Add Condition 2a: Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the 
Applicant shall revise the elevation drawings to indicate the stair well window will have obscured 
glass, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division. 

Page G-1.75



ATTACHMENT F

Page G-1.76



Page G-1.77



Library and Community Services 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-087-CC

Regular Business: Provide direction on the proposed programming 
plan elements for the Menlo Park Community 
Campus  

Recommendation 
City staff recommends that City Council review Menlo Park Community Campus (MPCC) proposed 
programming plan elements that have been developed over the past several months with robust community 
input, including several consultations with a working group of Belle Haven neighborhood residents and 
stakeholders convened by the MPCC ad hoc subcommittee. City staff requests City Council feedback, 
direction, and confirmation of the proposed programming plan elements at this juncture in the planning 
process, and in advance of preparing the MPCC staffing, operations, and more specific programming 
proposal for City Council review and authorization in the context of the upcoming fiscal year 2023-24 budget 
deliberations. 

Policy Issues 
City Council provides policy direction to the city manager regarding services to the Menlo Park community; 
allocates resources to support City services and capital projects; reviews and approves staffing and budget 
proposals; and sets prioritization for the use of City resources to serve the community. City Council has 
identified the MPCC project as one of the City’s top priorities. 

Background 
City Council created the Menlo Park Community Campus ad hoc subcommittee (MPCC Subcommittee) to 
work with City staff and the community on the MPCC project. The MPCC Subcommittee is currently 
comprised of Vice Mayor Taylor and City Councilmember Nash.  

The MPCC Subcommittee convened a working group of Belle Haven neighborhood residents and 
stakeholders (MPCC working group) to support and advise the subcommittee’s work. 

A project webpage was created (Attachment A) to make MPCC project information readily accessible to the 
public, including the option to subscribe (Attachment B) to receive project updates and announcements by 
email or text message. 

On April 12, 2022, the City Council reviewed an informational report containing preliminary operational 
planning milestones and existing City Council policy statements to help provide guidance for the 
prioritization of services in the MPCC (Attachment C.) 

On May 24, 2022, City Council reviewed an informational item containing a report from the MPCC 
Subcommittee and working group with initial programming ideas and recommendations, and a preliminary 
draft resident survey related to programs in the new center (Attachment D.) 

AGENDA ITEM H-1

Page H-1.1



Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

On June 22, 2022, the Library Commission (LC) and Parks and Recreation Commission (PRC) convened a 
joint study session to review operational planning for the MPCC and a report from the MPCC Subcommittee 
and working group with initial programming ideas and recommendations (Attachment E.) 

On September 13, 2022, City Council convened a study session to review MPCC project updates including 
the results of a resident survey to gain insight into residents’ needs and interests related to recreation and 
community programming in the MPCC (Attachment F.) 

On September 28, 2022, the PRC reviewed MPCC project updates and the results of the resident 
recreation and community programs survey (Attachment G.) 

On January 25, 2023, the PRC and LC convened a joint study session to review MPCC programming 
considerations, including a presentation from the Youth Advisory Committee about potential makerspace 
programs (Attachment H.) 

On March 6, 2023, the LC reviewed MPCC programming – library collections (Attachment I.) 

On March 22, 2023, the PRC and LC convened a joint study session to review MPCC proposed 
programming plan elements (Attachment J.) 

Analysis 
The draft MPCC proposed programming plan elements outlined in this report have been developed with 
robust community input over the past several months, including consultation with the MPCC Subcommittee 
and MPCC working group, the LC and PRC, and with insights from a citywide survey of Menlo Park 
residents. Staff is seeking City Council direction to confirm or modify the proposed programming plan 
elements outlined later in this report. Upon receiving City Council’s guidance and direction, these plan 
elements will serve as the foundation for developing a detailed budget proposal for MPCC staffing, 
operations, and programming that will be presented to City Council for review and authorization in the 
context of the upcoming fiscal year 2023-24 budget deliberations. 

The remainder of this report’s Analysis section provides an outline of the MPCC proposed programming 
plan elements. City staff seeks City Council’s guidance and input at this juncture in the planning process, 
including but not limited to the following considerations, in no particular priority order: 
1. Do the proposed programming plan elements outlined in this report align with City Council’s vision and

expectations for programming in the new MPCC facility?
2. Are there additional programming elements City Council would like included in the programming plan?
3. Do the statements about who the MPCC will serve and how programs and services will be prioritized in

the MPCC meet City Council’s expectations for the new facility?

Tentative programming and staffing plan development timeline 
All dates are tentative and subject to change. In addition, it is anticipated that MPCC Subcommittee and 
MPCC working group meetings will also occur at least once per month in April, May and June, and will 
follow a similar sequence of topics and focus areas as outlined below: 
• April 4 – City Council review MPCC proposed programming plan elements
• April 26 – PRC and LC joint meeting at Belle Haven Branch Library – MPCC programming plan, facility

use policies, resident and neighborhood prioritization policy
• May 9 – City Council informational update - Preliminary staffing, operations, and programming plan

proposal

Page H-1.2



Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

• May 15 – LC review programming plan details with focus on public library, youth center, makerspace,
teen zone, senior center, social services

• May 24 – PRC review programming plan details with focus on gymnasium, aquatics center, recreation
programs, facility rentals, athletic field, outdoor racquet sports

• June 1 – City Council budget workshop fiscal year 2023-24. The library and community services and
public works departments’ budgets will include budget proposals for staffing, programming, and
operations in the MPCC facility.

• June 13 – City Council budget public hearing fiscal year 2023-24.
• June 27 – City Council fiscal year 2023-24 budget adoption.

Resident survey - recreation and community programs  
At City Council’s direction, a city wide survey was developed with input from the MPCC Subcommittee and 
working group, PRC, LC, and City Council. The survey opened June 13, 2022 and closed August 10, 2022 
and was distributed in paper and electronic formats, in English and Spanish. The survey had over 900 
respondents. The complete survey results were presented to City Council on September 13, 2022.  

The resident survey provided valuable insight to the Menlo Park community’s needs and desires related to 
recreation and community programs, including the following key takeaways related to MPCC programming. 
The list is numbered for convenience only, in no particular order or priority. 
A. Prioritize the program elements that survey respondents rated with the highest relative importance
B. Include programs that aren’t currently offered on a regular basis, but were rated with high importance by

survey respondents, for example:
• Homework help for children and teens after school
• Job skills / job readiness / job seeker resources and training
• Food insecurity advice and support
• Health care navigation and support
• Social services

C. Prioritize programs and classes that are free or have discounted fees for Menlo Park residents.
D. Deprioritize programs that primarily attract participants from outside Menlo Park, and/or that survey

respondents rated with low relative importance
E. Prioritize casual and drop-in play opportunities for children and families, especially Menlo Park residents

Who the MPCC will serve 
The following statement regarding the intended users of the MPCC facility was developed with input from 
the MPCC Subcommittee and MPCC working group: “Programs and services in the MPCC will reflect and 
prioritize the people for whom this facility is being created: Menlo Park residents, specifically Belle Haven 
neighborhood residents, and in particular, long time Belle Haven residents who relied heavily on the 
services in the previous center. The MPCC facility can and should serve these residents even more 
meaningfully, with even greater priority, and with even more responsiveness, inclusion, and belonging than 
existed in the previous center.” 

Guiding principles 
The following guiding principles for services and programs in the MPCC are derived from statements in the 
City of Menlo Park’s cost recovery policy, and were developed with input from the MPCC Subcommittee 
and MPCC working group: “The City of Menlo Park provides services and infrastructure that contribute to 
quality-of-life for all Menlo Park residents. In so doing, the City strives to balance the resources and 
requirements of each area of the city in an equitable manner for all residents, in all neighborhoods of the 
City. The City of Menlo Park prioritizes social justice in decisions that affect residents’ lives: The fair, just 

Page H-1.3



Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

and equitable management of all institutions serving the public directly or by contract; the fair, just and 
equitable distribution of public services and implementation of public policy; the commitment to promote 
inclusion, fairness, justice, and equity in the formation of public policy; and creating a healthy environment 
and nutritional options in City programs.” 
 
Working group’s general vision for the MPCC facility 
The MPCC working group provided valuable suggestions and insight to a neighborhood-oriented vision and 
aspirations for the MPCC facility. 
• New, different, and fresh approach to programs and services 
• Desire to have a local hiring and procurement preference prioritizing the Bayfront, Citywide, and any 

displaced residents, businesses, staff 
• Public transparency into the MPCC programming and operations budget 
• Ongoing comparison to current and prior community center activities in Menlo Park as well as 

surrounding communities  
• Robust outreach to people lacking technology access or skills, and monolingual Spanish speakers 
• Recognition and awards to people in community who created the vision and dialogue that led to the 

creation of the MPCC. 
 
Working group’s proposed operational and policy elements 
The MPCC working group offered helpful ideas, suggestions, and requests related to the day-to-day 
operational aspects of the MPCC facility. 
• MPCC service counter to provide access and referrals to general city services, assistance, city 

information, community resources/bulletin board 
• Medical training for staff including CPR (cardiopulmonary resuscitation) 
• Attendant for athletic facilities (gymnasium, fitness center, locker rooms) to keep space clean and 

sanitary 
• Roles and rules for public spaces – library, makerspace, etc. 
• Supervision of children, safety standards, noise levels 
• Update relevant policies to prioritize neighborhood-oriented and resident-oriented services and access, 

for example, the athletic field use policy, facility rental policy, cost recovery policy, facility use and 
behavior policy, et al. 

• Neighborhood and citywide priority use of Kelly Park athletic field and tennis courts 
• Re-examine the instructional class fee structure and assess the effectiveness of fee scholarship 

programs with the goal of lowering or removing financial barriers that may prevent some residents from 
accessing the full experience of MPCC programs and services. 

• Focus the MPCC’s services and programs on Menlo Park residents and particularly the local Bayfront 
community (as opposed to renting out or prioritizing access to nonresidents for cost recovery purposes.)
  

Proposed programming plan elements 
What follows are lists of proposed programming plan elements in the MPCC, organized by major service 
delivery categories. The lists are by no means comprehensive, but are intended to reflect the MPCC 
programming needs, desires, and prioritization of Menlo Park residents, especially Belle Haven 
neighborhood residents, as informed by City Council, the MPCC Subcommittee and working group, the LC 
and PRC, and the resident survey. 
 
Library and makerspace 
• Menlo Park residents, especially Belle Haven neighborhood residents, will have priority access to 

Page H-1.4



Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

popular, up-to-date, diverse, educational, informative, inspiring, resourceful, useful, interesting, 
entertaining, and helpful library materials  

• Library materials will focus on and reflect the interests, needs, culture, and history of the Menlo Park
community, especially the Belle Haven neighborhood.

• Browsing collection – focused on neighborhood access and availability
• Storytimes and early literacy support
• Technology access
• Afterschool homework support center
• English language conversation club (for learners of English)
• Librarian help hours (learning library skills and systems, etc.)
• Book discussion groups, including multigenerational clubs
• Teen space - including leisure and social space
• Makerspace - large tables for workstations, 3D printer
• Pottery class including kiln
• Sewing classes including sewing machines
• Wood carving

Aquatics center 
• Aquatics programs will be focused on and will prioritize the needs of Menlo Park residents, especially

Belle Haven neighborhood residents
• Aquatics programs in MPCC will have equivalent quality and variety as programs at Burgess Pool
• Participation fees shall not be used to create barriers to access for Menlo Park residents, especially Belle

Haven neighborhood residents. Some aquatics programs will be offered to residents with no participation
fee or at steeply discounted rates to ensure that financial barriers do not prevent access for residents

• Adaptive swimming for people with disabilities
• Senior pool exercise class
• Lots of free swim time in the more heated pool with ramp
• Inclusion of infant and toddlers-age appropriate activities for all
• Implementation of City Council’s direction for aquatics programs in the recent request for proposals

Athletic facilities 
• Athletic facilities (gymnasium, fitness center, movement studio), programs will be focused on and will

prioritize the needs of Menlo Park residents, especially Belle Haven neighborhood residents
• Athletic facility programs in MPCC will have equivalent quality and variety as programs at Arrillaga

Family Recreation Center and Arrillaga Family Gymnasium
• Participation fees shall not be used to create barriers to access for Menlo Park residents, especially Belle

Haven neighborhood residents. Some athletic facility programs will be offered to residents with no
participation fee or at steeply discounted rates to ensure that financial barriers do not prevent access for
residents

• Strength training for women
• Strength/balance training for seniors
• Gymnastics classes for kids with special needs
• Drop-in play for residents
• League play focused on residents
• Fitness center – safe, state of the art equipment, roomy

Page H-1.5



Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

• Teen fitness offering inclusive of teens with disabilities 
• Movement studio – intentionally designed 
• Functional exercise with cardio 
 
Educational opportunities 
• Educational programs will be focused on and will prioritize the needs of Menlo Park residents, especially 

Belle Haven neighborhood residents 
• Educational programs in MPCC will have equivalent quality and variety as programs at Main Library, 

Arrillaga Family Recreation Center, and other City facilities. 
• Participation fees shall not be used to create barriers to access for Menlo Park residents, especially Belle 

Haven neighborhood residents. Many educational programs will be offered to residents with no 
participation fee or at steeply discounted rates to ensure that financial barriers do not prevent access for 
residents 

• Coding, engineering, science (ongoing classes) 
• Health and nutrition classes for all 
• Basic life skills - budgeting, how to manage money, job seeking (resumes, interview skills, dress for 

success), social awareness 
• College programming 
• Driving school 
• Computer lab 
• Environmental education and impact - storyboards/classes based on MPCC sustainability 
• Bike repair station/classes (example: Live In Peace organization) 
• Cooking classes 
• Teaching garden 
• Adaptive recreation classes including mixed media art, karate, fun fitness, cooking, dance. 
 
Facility reservations 
• Prioritize resident access to facility reservations 
• Prioritize local nonprofit access to facility reservations 
• Event hall (dividable) and prep kitchen 
• Flexible classroom 
• Conference room 
• Makerspace 
• Gymnasium 
 
Instructional classes 
• Classes will be focused on and will prioritize the needs of Menlo Park residents, especially Belle Haven 

neighborhood residents 
• Classes in MPCC will have equivalent quality and variety as classes at Arrillaga Family Recreation 

Center 
• Participation fees shall not be used to create barriers to access for Menlo Park residents, especially Belle 

Haven neighborhood residents. Some classes will be offered to residents with no participation fee or at 
steeply discounted rates to ensure that financial barriers do not prevent access for residents 

• Youth classes (for example, dance, martial arts, STEM education and enrichment, sports camps, 
language acquisition) 

• Adult classes (for example, health/fitness, dance, arts/crafts, tennis/pickleball lessons) 

Page H-1.6



Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Senior center 
• Senior nutrition programs (including daily lunch service and grocery distribution)
• Companionship and social programs
• Door-to-door accessible transportation
• Makerspace - large tables for traditional arts and crafts (pottery class including kiln, sewing classes

including sewing machines, painting, drawing, crafts)
• Intro to Spanish classes
• Technology access and support
• Dance, yoga, chair exercises
• Meditation and mind exercise
• Culture and travel programs
• Social events (Dia de Los Muertos, Thanksgiving, Black History Month celebration, etc.)
• Provide a wide range of support for seniors through collaborations with local nonprofits, educational

partners and businesses (Second Harvest Food Bank, Foothill College, Peninsula Volunteers, etc.)
• Social services / health and wellness support and referral.

Youth center (school age child care) 
• Afterschool youth development programs
• Summer youth development programs
• Beechwood School priority access
• Transportation for students
• A safe and healthy care and learning environment so parents/caregivers can go to work knowing their

children are learning and growing and having fun
• Daily enrichment activities (Arts and crafts, STEM Activities, reading programs, homework assistance,

team building and socialization)
• Weekly enrichment activities (swimming and water play, field trips, cooking projects, featured guests)
• Synergy with classes offered in other areas of the MPCC such as dance class, swimming lessons,

Spanish instruction, homework tutoring and other programs offered to school age youth.

MPCC Subcommittee and working group roster  
City Council created the MPCC Subcommittee (Vice Mayor Taylor and City Councilmember Nash) to work 
with City staff and the community on the MPCC project. The MPCC Subcommittee created a working group 
of Menlo Park residents to support and advise the subcommittee’s work. City staff have met with the MPCC 
Subcommittee and MPCC working group several times over the past several months, and their input has 
been exceptionally insightful and valuable in the development of the proposed programming plan elements. 

The MPCC working group members represent interests such as Bayfront neighborhoods, stakeholder 
constituencies, diverse user ages and abilities, and city commissions. The current roster includes: Rachel 
Bickerstaff, Rose Bickerstaff, Sheryl Bims, Mayrin Bunyagidj, Jacqui Cebrian, David Erhart, Susan Erhart, 
Israel Harris, Jennifer Johnson, Pam Jones, Tim R., Michele Tate, Tracie V., Shontelle W., and Juan 
Salazar. 

Impact on City Resources 
As part of the new center opening, it is anticipated that existing services that are currently housed in interim 
locations will be relocated to the new center; some services that were suspended or reduced during the 
MPCC construction and/or due to pandemic impacts could be restored to pre-construction/pre-pandemic 

Page H-1.7



Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

levels; and some service level enhancements could be necessary or desired in order to operate the center 
in the manner and capacity envisioned by the City Council and the community. The projected cost impacts 
of operating the new center are currently in development, and will be presented to City Council for review 
and authorization in the context of the fiscal year 2023-24 budget deliberations. 

Environmental Review 
This report is focused on proposed operational and programming elements in the MPCC, and is not a 
project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines §§15378 and 
15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. In addition, the City sent electronic notices directly to project email and text 
update subscribers from the project page (Attachment B.) 

Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – Project page: menlopark.gov/communitycampus
B. Hyperlink – Subscription page: menlopark.gov/subscribe
C. Hyperlink – April 12, 2022 City Council agenda: menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-

minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220412-city-council-amended-agenda-
packet.pdf#page=531

D. Hyperlink – May 24, 2022 City Council agenda: menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-
minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220524-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=569

E. Hyperlink – June 22, 2022 PRC and LC joint meeting agenda:
menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-
meetings/agendas/20220622-library-commissiona-and-parks-and-recreation-commission-joint-agenda-
packet.pdf#page=3

F. Hyperlink – September 13, 2022 City Council agenda:
menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-
meetings/agendas/20220913-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=6

G. Hyperlink – September 28, 2022 PRC agenda: menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-
minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-meetings/agendas/20220928-parks-and-recreation-
commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=17

H. Hyperlink – January 25, 2023 PRC and LC joint meeting agenda:
menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2023-
meetings/agendas/20230125-library-and-parks-and-recreation-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3

I. Hyperlink – March 6, 2023 LC agenda: menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-
minutes/library-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230306-library-commission-agenda-
packet.pdf#page=3

J. Hyperlink – March 22, 2023 PRC and LC joint meeting agenda:
menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2023-
meetings/agendas/20230322-parks-and-recreation-commission-and-library-commission-agenda-
packet.pdf#page=5

Report prepared by: 
Natalya Jones, Library and Community Services Supervisor 

Page H-1.8

https://menlopark.gov/communitycampus
https://publicinput.com/hub/Subscriptions/2463
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220412-city-council-amended-agenda-packet.pdf#page=531
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220412-city-council-amended-agenda-packet.pdf#page=531
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220412-city-council-amended-agenda-packet.pdf#page=531
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220524-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=569
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220524-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=569
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-meetings/agendas/20220622-library-commissiona-and-parks-and-recreation-commission-joint-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-meetings/agendas/20220622-library-commissiona-and-parks-and-recreation-commission-joint-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-meetings/agendas/20220622-library-commissiona-and-parks-and-recreation-commission-joint-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220913-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=6
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220913-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=6
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-meetings/agendas/20220928-parks-and-recreation-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=17
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-meetings/agendas/20220928-parks-and-recreation-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=17
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2022-meetings/agendas/20220928-parks-and-recreation-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=17
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230125-library-and-parks-and-recreation-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230125-library-and-parks-and-recreation-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/library-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230306-library-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/library-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230306-library-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/library-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230306-library-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=3
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230322-parks-and-recreation-commission-and-library-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=5
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230322-parks-and-recreation-commission-and-library-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=5
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/parks-and-recreation-commission/2023-meetings/agendas/20230322-parks-and-recreation-commission-and-library-commission-agenda-packet.pdf#page=5


Staff Report #: 23-087-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Rondell Howard, Interim Assistant Community Services Director 
Nick Szegda, Assistant Library Services Director 
Sean S. Reinhart, Library and Community Services Director 

Page H-1.9



Administrative Services 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-070-CC

Regular Business: Receive and file report on labor relations and 
receive public input on upcoming labor 
negotiations with Service Employees International 
Union Local 521 and American Federation of State, 
County and Municipal Employees Local 829  

Recommendation 
Receive and file report on employee compensation and receive public input on upcoming labor negotiations 
with Service Employees International Union Local 521 (SEIU) and American Federation of State, County, 
and Municipal Employees Local 829 (AFSCME.) 

Policy Issues 
This report is prepared in accordance with City Council Procedure #CC-11-0001, public input and outreach 
regarding labor negotiations (Attachment A.) 

Background 
The collective bargaining agreements for non-sworn frontline personnel (SEIU) and non-sworn supervisors 
(AFSCME) both have terms of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023. Pursuant to best labor-management 
practices, it is time to open negotiations on successor agreements. SEIU represents 74 classifications with 
168 full-time positions funded in the fiscal year 2022-23 budget. AFSCME represents 22 classifications with 
approximately 41 full-time, funded positions. 

Analysis 
This report transmits personnel and process information to members of the City Council, the subject 
bargaining units, and the public to inform upcoming labor negotiations with SEIU and AFSCME. If the 
parties cannot agree on a successor agreement, the terms of the existing agreement remain until modified 
pursuant to State-mandated impasse procedures or successful negotiation of a successor agreement. 

Labor contract negotiations are governed by the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA), Government Code 
section 3500. MMBA requires that local agencies meet and confer in good faith regarding wages, hours, 
and other terms and conditions of employment with representatives of recognized collective bargaining 
units. MMBA further requires that the City fully consider proposals made by collective bargaining unit 
representatives before arriving at a determination of policy or course of action. 

Negotiable items with direct costs 
Table 1 provides baseline personnel expense categories for each employee group, including SEIU, 
AFSCME, Menlo Park Police Officers’ Association (POA), Menlo Park Police Sergeants’ Association (PSA), 

AGENDA ITEM H-2

Page H-2.1



Staff Report #: 23-070-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

and unrepresented management and confidential employees to help quantify the financial impacts of 
desired changes by either negotiating party. Confidential employees are generally provided the same 
benefits as AFSCME. All items are open to negotiations.  

Attachment B contains detailed expenditure breakdowns for SEIU and AFSCME. Attachments C and D 
provide web links to the City’s labor agreements and salary schedule. Attachment E provides medical 
benefit plan information and City contributions. The elements of each column in Table 1 are defined in 
greater detail below:  

Full-time equivalents. There are 285.5 authorized full-time equivalents (FTEs) in the fiscal year 2022-23 
budget, not including the five City Councilmembers. FTE is defined as one individual working 40 hours per 
week or receiving a flat salary. A position scheduled to work less than 40 hours per week is shown as a 
fraction of 1.0. For example, a position scheduled to work 30 hours per week is considered 0.75 
FTE. Temporary employees, employees working fewer than 20 hours per week or 960 hours per year, only 
receive benefits mandated by State or Federal law. 

Base pay. Base pay is the pensionable wage for all budgeted FTEs, filled or vacant. Base pay for each 
employee may change due to negotiated cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) or annual merit-based 
performance adjustments.  

Special pays. The City provides special pays to POA and PSA personnel that are added to pensionable 
wages. Examples include longevity, shift differentials, and Police Officer Standards and Training (POST) 
certification. SEIU and AFSCME do not have special pays. 

Table 1: Fiscal Year 2022-23 baseline personnel costs by group 

Group FTEs Base 
pay 

Special 
pays Allowances Retirement 

Health 
and 

welfare 

Other 
fringe 

benefits 
Total 

Represented non-sworn personnel 

SEIU 168 15,276,900 n/a 12,854 3,194,323 3,781,996 778,171 23,044,245 

AFSCME 41 5,497,003 n/a n/a 1,222,259 948,680 276,098 7,944,040 

Subtotal 209 20,773,903 - 12,854 4,416,582 4,730,677 1,054,269 30,988,285 

Represented sworn personnel 

POA 36 4,901,787 453,619 41,259 1,618,122 707,141 236,173 7,958,102 

PSA 9 1,534,167 234,823 9,360 941,103 203,113 78,012 3,000,579 

Subtotal 45 6,435,954 688,442 50,619 2,559,225 910,254 314,186 10,958,680 

Unrepresented 

Confidential 6.5 628,501 n/a n/a 133,468 179,997 37,899 979,865 

Management 25 4,484,762 n/a 155,526 1,212,206 949,152 240,095 7,041,741 

Subtotal 31.5 5,113,264 - 155,526 1,345,674 1,129,149 277,994 8,021,606 

Grand total 285.5 32,323,121 688,442 218,999 8,329,334 6,770,080 1,646,448 49,968,571 

Page H-2.2



Staff Report #: 23-070-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Allowances. Allowances are not pensionable wages and are provided to offset employee costs incurred in 
the exercise in their duties. Example allowances include maintaining uniforms for police officers, and 
providing transportation allowance for unrepresented management personnel, instead of maintaining a 
dedicated City vehicle for their use.  
  
Retirement. Retirement includes CalPERS costs incurred by the employer for the defined benefit pension 
plan. All regular employees represented or unrepresented are enrolled in CalPERS per California Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law Chapter 3 Article 1, and do not earn Social Security credits while working for 
Menlo Park.  
 
Attachment B contains detailed expenditure breakdowns for SEIU and AFSCME. Of particular note are the 
cost differentials between the various pension tiers. As a result of Measure L (November 2010), the City 
amended its contracts with CalPERS to provide a lower pension benefit to employees hired after a certain 
date (Tier 2.)  Statewide changes in CalPERS also took effect January 1, 2013, to introduce a further 
decrease in pension benefits for “New” employees hired on or after the effective date. “New” refers to the 
employee’s tenure in CalPERS, rather than their tenure with an organization. The “New” employees subject 
to this lower benefit are referred to as Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) employees or, at 
times, Tier 3 employees.  
 
Web links to the most current pension actuarial reports are available in Attachments F through I, and 
Attachment J provides a web link to CalPERS’ webpage on PEPRA. The “miscellaneous plan” applies to all 
non-sworn personnel, blending Tiers 1, 2 and PEPRA, and is large enough to require a discrete plan due to 
the number of active and retired members. The three plans titled “safety plan” are segmented based on 
benefit level and are pooled with similar small employers offering the same benefit to sworn personnel. 
 
Health and welfare. Health and welfare primarily reflect cafeteria plan contribution for employees to select a 
medical insurance plan offered by the Public Employee’s Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA), 
administered by CalPERS. In addition to medical, this column includes City-paid dental and vision 
coverages for eligible employees and their dependents.  
 
Other fringe benefits. Other fringe benefits include life insurance, accidental death and dismemberment 
(AD&D) insurance, Medicare and workers’ compensation insurance.  
 
Negotiable items with indirect costs 
In addition to the direct costs outlined above, indirect costs items are also open to negotiation. Either side 
may seek changes in other factors subject to MMBA, such as paid time off (e.g., holidays), tools and 
equipment, employee engagement and retention efforts, and professional development opportunities.  
 
Attachment K provides a web link to a Citywide benefits summary by group, which includes a comparison of 
retirement, health benefits, leaves, special pays, allowances and other fringe benefits. 
 
Roles during labor contract negotiations 
The following provides an overview of major roles in the process to promote understanding of the labor 
contract negotiation process: 
 
City Council. The City Council designates the City’s chief negotiator, authorizes the City’s initial bargaining 
position, considers proposals made by collective bargaining unit representatives through the chief 
negotiator, and ultimately approves a successor agreement. City Council receives data, analysis, and 
recommendations from the city manager and designated City staff. City Council Procedure #CC-11-0001, 
establishes early release requirements for all matters about labor negotiations. Other than approving the 

Page H-2.3



Staff Report #: 23-070-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

successor agreement, the City Council may elect to hold all labor negotiations discussions in closed 
session.  

Chief negotiator. The City retains labor attorney Charles Sakai from Sloan Sakai to advise on personnel 
matters, including on all issues under MMBA and to serve as chief negotiator during labor agreement 
discussions. Mr. Sakai prepares all proposals, counter-proposals, and tentative agreements and is 
authorized to execute tentative agreements consistent with negotiating authority granted by City Council. 
Mr. Sakai also consults the city manager, or designee, on workplace impacts of proposals, counter-
proposals and tentative agreements.  

City manager. The city manager is responsible for the efficient administration of all City services, and 
administration of the City Council approved budget. In the negotiations process, the city manager advises 
City Council and the chief negotiator on management matters subject to MMBA. The city manager also 
advises on recruitment and retention tools, employee engagement, and emerging trends in regional 
workforce management. The city manager designates city staff to support the chief negotiator.  

Designated city staff. Labor negotiations can be a time-intensive process requiring significant preparation, 
coordination, analysis and follow-up work. The city manager typically will assign the assistant city manager, 
administrative services director, human resources manager, and a management analyst to support the 
process. To the greatest extent possible, information about labor negotiations is limited to individuals 
authorized by the city manager, such as how a proposal might impact operations.  

Collective bargaining unit’s chief negotiator. Each bargaining unit identifies a chief negotiator. The City’s 
negotiating team commits to communicating only with the bargaining unit’s chief negotiator unless otherwise 
authorized by the bargaining unit’s chief negotiator.  

Collective bargaining unit negotiating team. Each bargaining unit identifies a negotiating team of active City 
employees to advise their collective bargaining unit’s chief negotiator through the labor contract negotiations 
process. The negotiating team typically meets amongst itself and is also present during all negotiation 
meetings.  

Negotiations calendar and process 
City management will provide City Council with its recommended bargaining position by unit and strategy at 
their April 25 closed session. Time on the City Council’s tentative agenda is reserved for closed sessions at 
each regular meeting after that to ensure City Council agenda capacity for labor negotiation conversations.  

City Council will provide the City negotiator with direction to engage the units under the MMBA requirement 
to negotiate successor agreements with recognized employee groups. The first meeting between the two 
parties typically includes: 
• Introductions
• Ground rules for negotiations
• Future meetings and time constraints
• Discussion of material contained in this report
• Discussion of any additional information requests from the bargaining unit
• Preliminary discussion of interest areas on both sides

At their April 25 closed session, the City’s chief negotiator will provide the City Council with a negotiation 
strategy and initial bargaining authority recommendation. The chief negotiator will brief the City Council in 
closed session as necessary after that. 

Page H-2.4



Staff Report #: 23-070-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

The following calendar identifies key dates that impact negotiation of successor agreements before the 
expiration of current agreements.  
• March 20 – City staff release report on negotiations with SEIU and AFSCME
• April 4 – Members of the public offer their input on the City’s negotiations position for City Council

consideration
• April 25 – City Council meets in closed session, confirms negotiating teams, and provides initial

bargaining authority to chief negotiator
• April 26 through May 26 – City and SEIU, City and AFSCME negotiate successor agreement
• June 1 – Estimated deadline for SEIU and AFSCME membership to ratify tentative successor agreement

for effective date of July 1, 2023
• June 13 – Staff release report for ratified tentative successor agreement with SEIU and AFSCME
• June 27 – Public meeting for City Council consider ratification of a successor agreement with SEIU and

AFSCME effective July 1

Resources available to City Councilmembers 
Attachment L, “Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process produced by the Institute for Local 
Government,“ further describes the roles, process and requirements of labor negotiations. 

Impact on City Resources 
There are no impacts on City resources as a result of receiving input on this issue. The cost of negotiating 
each contract is estimated at approximately $30,000, inclusive of the chief negotiator’s fees and internal 
staff time, at a total estimated cost of $60,000. Additional consulting services may be required depending on 
the scope of negotiation. City Council will meet in closed session to provide direction to the City’s 
negotiating team. The negotiators will meet and confer with the SEIU and AFSCME negotiation teams to 
reach a tentative agreement before the expiration of the current agreements. Once a tentative successor 
agreement is ready for City Council ratification, the fiscal impact of that tentative agreement will be released 
15 days before the City Council vote at a public meeting. 

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the report 15 days prior to the City Council meeting of April 4, 
2023. 

Attachments 
A. City Council Procedure #CC-11-0001
B. 2022-23 baseline expenditures costs for SEIU and AFSCME
C. Hyperlink – City of Menlo Park labor agreements: menlopark.gov/laboragreements
D. Hyperlink – City of Menlo Park salary schedule effective 9/25/2022: menlopark.gov/salaryschedule
E. 2023 SEIU and AFSCME health plan choices and City contributions

Page H-2.5

https://menlopark.gov/Government/Departments/Administrative-Services/Human-Resources/Labor-agreements
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/administrative-services/documents/human-resources/salary-schedule/20220925-menlo-park-salary-schedule.pdf


Staff Report #: 23-070-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

F. Hyperlink – City of Menlo Park miscellaneous plan CalPERS actuarial valuation report as of June 30,
2021: calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-miscellaneous-2021.pdf

G. Hyperlink – City of Menlo Park safety plan Tier 1 CalPERS actuarial valuation report as of June 30,
2021: calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-safety-2021.pdf

H. Hyperlink – City of Menlo Park safety plan Tier 2 CalPERS actuarial valuation report as of June 30,
2021: calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-safety-police-second-tier-2021.pdf

I. Hyperlink – City of Menlo Park safety plan PEPRA CalPERS actuarial valuation report as of June 30,
2021: calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-pepra-safety-police-2021.pdf

J. Hyperlink – PEPRA: calpers.ca.gov/page/about/laws-legislation-regulations/public-employees-pension-
reform-act

K. Hyperlink – Benefits summary by bargaining unit: menlopark.gov/benefitssummary
L. Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process produced by the Institute for Local Government

Report prepared by: 
Marvin Davis, Interim Finance Director 
Brittany Mello, Administrative Services Director 

Page H-2.6

https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-miscellaneous-2021.pdf
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-safety-2021.pdf
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-safety-police-second-tier-2021.pdf
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/actuarial-reports/2021/menlo-park-city-pepra-safety-police-2021.pdf
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/about/laws-legislation-regulations/public-employees-pension-reform-act
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/about/laws-legislation-regulations/public-employees-pension-reform-act
https://menlopark.gov/Government/Departments/Administrative-Services/Human-Resources/Benefits-summary


City of Menlo Park            City Counci l  Pol icy 

Department 
        City Council Page 1 of 1 

Effective Date 
03/02/2011 

Subject 
        Public Input and Outreach regarding Labor Negotations 

Approved by 
City Council 
03/01/2011 

Procedure # 
CC-11-0001

PURPOSE 

To incorporate public input into the labor negotiations process. 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council has expressed a desire to improve public communication and outreach on labor 
relations to the extent reasonably possible. 

POLICY 

A regular business item shall be placed on a Council agenda in advance of formal labor negotiations 
that includes an opportunity for the public to comment.  At least seven days prior to this meeting, 
staff shall post a report that contains relevant information on employee salaries and benefits, as well 
as the methodology used to determine a competitive and appropriate compensation package.  As 
part of this process, a concerted effort shall be made to request public comment on the negotiations 
parameters. 

As a general rule, staff shall engage the services of a labor attorney to participate in formal labor 
negotiations with bargaining units representing permanent employees. 

During labor negotiations, public comment will be provided prior to the entry into closed session to 
discuss labor negotiations, in accordance with State law.  At the conclusion of the closed session, 
the Council shall report out any action taken, including in the record the individual votes taken and 
the characterization of the deliberations.  In addition, at some point in the negotiations process, staff 
shall submit a public report to Council that provides a general status of labor negotiations and that 
allows for public input prior to concluding negotiations. 

Staff shall prepare and make public a staff report, at least fifteen calendar days prior to Council 
consideration of a tentative agreement or implementation resolution for any bargaining unit, that 
provides full details and costing associated with the recommended action, shall schedule the matter 
as a regular business item and shall provide an opportunity for the public to comment. 

ATTACHMENT A

Page H-2.7



Type Total

Salary

Base $14,520,934

Cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) $431,624

Merit $324,342

Salary Total $15,276,900

Allowances

Uniform  -

Auto $12,854

Allowances Total $12,854

Retirement

Employer Share: CalPERS Tier 1 $519,849

Employer Share: CalPERS Tier 2 $108,499

Employer Share: CalPERS PEPRA $721,784

Employee Share: Cal PERS Tier 1 ($246,139)

Employee Share: CalPERS Tier 2 ($66,305)

Employee Share: CalPERS PEPRA ($627,609)

Unfunded: CalPERS Tier 1 $728,028

Unfunded: CalPERS Tier 2 $196,117

Unfunded: CalPERS PEPRA $1,860,098

Retirement Total $3,194,323

Healthcare

Medical $3,444,097

Dental & Vision $337,899

Healthcare Total $3,781,996

Other benefits

Life, ADD, LTD $106,969

Medicare $221,578

Workcomp $449,624

Other benefits Total $778,171

SEIU Total $23,044,245

Table 1: FY 2022-23 budgeted SEIU personnel costs

ATTACHMENT B

Page H-2.8



Type Total

Salary

Base $5,286,882

Cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) $158,606

Merit $51,515

Salary Total $5,497,003

Allowances

Uniform  -

Auto  -

Allowances Total  -

Retirement

Employer Share: CalPERS Tier 1 $308,888

Employer Share: CalPERS Tier 2 $82,651

Employer Share: CalPERS PEPRA $152,197

Employee Share: Cal PERS Tier 1 ($131,295)

Employee Share: CalPERS Tier 2 ($45,343)

Employee Share: CalPERS PEPRA ($119,045)

Unfunded: CalPERS Tier 1 $432,586

Unfunded: CalPERS Tier 2 $149,396

Unfunded: CalPERS PEPRA $392,224

Retirement Total $1,222,259

Healthcare

Medical $864,572

Dental & Vision $84,108

Healthcare Total $948,680

Other benefits

Life, ADD, LTD $38,479

Medicare $79,707

Workcomp $157,912

Other benefits Total $276,098

AFSCME Total $7,944,040

Table 2: FY 2022-23 budgeted AFSCME personnel costs

Page H-2.9



Health Plan Premiums: Bay Area Region

Amounts in green = additional amount available to you to put toward cafeteria options
Amounts in (red) = your out-of-pocket expense  
Cash in lieu = $367 monthly

2023 SEIU – Full-time (40 hour) employees
Health plan

Employee only Employee + 1 Employee +2 or more
Monthly 
premium

After $1019.43 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1921.11 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $2493.94 
City contribution

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $ 1,128.83 $       (109.40) $ 2,257.66 $   (336.55) $ 2,934.96 $   (441.02)

Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $  1,210.71 $      (191.28) $ 2,421.42 $   (500.31) $ 3,147.85 $   (653.91)

Blue Shield Access+ $  1,035.21 $        (15.78) $ 2,070.42 $   (149.31) $ 2,691.55 $   (197.61)

Health Net SmartCare $  1,174.50 $        (155.07) $ 2,349.00 $   (427.89) $ 3,053.70 $   (559.76)

Kaiser Permanente California $     913.74 $  105.69 $ 1,827.48 $     93.63 $ 2,375.72 $     118.22 

Western Health Advantage $   760.17 $  259.26 $ 1,520.34 $   400.77 $ 1,976.44 $    517.50 

PERS Gold $    825.61 $  193.82 $ 1,651.22 $   269.89 $ 2,146.59 $    347.50 

PERS Platinum $ 1,200.12 $        (180.69) $ 2,400.24 $   (479.13) $ 3,120.31 $  (626.37)

ATTACHMENT E

Page H-2.10



Health Plan Premiums: Bay Area Region

Amounts in green = additional amount available to you to put toward cafeteria options
Amounts in (red) = your out-of-pocket expense  
Cash in lieu = $275.25 monthly

2023 SEIU – Part-time (30 hour) employees
Health plan

Employee only Employee + 1 Employee +2 or more
Monthly 
premium

After $764.57 City 
contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1440.83 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1870.46
City contribution

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $ 1,128.83 $        (364.26) $ 2,257.66 $         (816.83) $ 2,934.96 $ (1,064.50)

Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $  1,210.71 $        (446.14) $ 2,421.42 $         (980.59) $ 3,147.85 $  (1,277.39)

Blue Shield Access+ $  1,035.21 $        (270.64) $ 2,070.42 $         (629.59) $ 2,691.55 $    (821.09)

Health Net SmartCare $  1,174.50 $       (409.93) $ 2,349.00 $         (908.17) $ 3,053.70 $         (1,183.24)

Kaiser Permanente California $     913.74 $         (149.17) $ 1,827.48 $ (386.65) $ 2,375.72 $    (505.26) 

Western Health Advantage $   760.17 $       4.40 $ 1,520.34 $ (79.51) $ 1,976.44 $    (105.99)

PERS Gold $    825.61 $         (61.04) $ 1,651.22 $ (210.39) $ 2,146.59 $    (276.13)

PERS Platinum $ 1,200.12 $        (435.55) $ 2,400.24 $         (959.41) $ 3,120.31 $         (1,249.86)

Page H-2.11



Health Plan Premiums: Bay Area Region

Amounts in (red) = your out-of-pocket expense  
Cash in lieu = $183.50 monthly

2023 SEIU – Part-time (20 hour) employees
Health plan

Employee only Employee + 1 Employee +2 or more
Monthly 
premium

After $509.71 City 
contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $960.55 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1246.97
City contribution

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $ 1,128.83 $        (619.12) $ 2,257.66 $        (1,297.11) $ 2,934.96 $ (1,687.99)

Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $  1,210.71 $        (701.00) $ 2,421.42 $        (1,460.87) $ 3,147.85 $  (1,900.88)

Blue Shield Access+ $  1,035.21 $        (525.50) $ 2,070.42 $        (1,109.87) $ 2,691.55 $  (1,444.58)

Health Net SmartCare $  1,174.50 $       (664.79) $ 2,349.00 $        (1,388.45) $ 3,053.70 $         (1,806.73)

Kaiser Permanente California $     913.74 $         (404.03) $ 1,827.48 $ (866.93) $ 2,375.72 $  (1,128.75) 

Western Health Advantage $   760.17 $ (250.46) $ 1,520.34 $ (559.79) $ 1,976.44 $    (729.47)

PERS Gold $    825.61 $      (315.90) $ 1,651.22 $ (690.67) $ 2,146.59 $    (899.62)

PERS Platinum $ 1,200.12 $        (690.41) $ 2,400.24 $       (1,439.69) $ 3,120.31 $         (1,873.34)

Page H-2.12



Health Plan Premiums: Bay Area Region

Amounts in green = additional amount available to you to put toward cafeteria options
Amounts in (red) = your out-of-pocket expense  
Cash in lieu = $367 monthly

2023 AFSCME – Full-time (40 hour) employees
Health plan

Employee only Employee + 1 Employee +2 or more
Monthly 
premium

After $1019.43 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1921.11 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $2493.94 
City contribution

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $ 1,128.83 $         (109.40) $ 2,257.66 $            (336.55) $ 2,934.96 $            (441.02)

Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $  1,210.71 $        (191.28) $ 2,421.42 $            (500.31) $ 3,147.85 $            (653.91)

Blue Shield Access+ $  1,035.21 $          (15.78) $ 2,070.42 $            (149.31) $ 2,691.55 $            (197.61)

Health Net SmartCare $  1,174.50 $         (155.07) $ 2,349.00 $            (427.89) $ 3,053.70 $            (559.76)

Kaiser Permanente California $     913.74 $           105.69 $ 1,827.48 $               93.63 $ 2,375.72 $              118.22 

Western Health Advantage $   760.17 $           259.26 $ 1,520.34 $             400.77 $ 1,976.44 $             517.50 

PERS Gold $    825.61 $           193.82 $ 1,651.22 $             269.89 $ 2,146.59 $             347.50 

PERS Platinum $ 1,200.12 $         (180.69) $ 2,400.24 $            (479.13) $ 3,120.31 $           (626.37)

Page H-2.13



Health Plan Premiums: Bay Area Region

Amounts in green = additional amount available to you to put toward cafeteria options
Amounts in (red) = your out-of-pocket expense  
Cash in lieu = $275.25 monthly

2023 AFSCME – Part-time (30 hour) employees
Health plan

Employee only Employee + 1 Employee +2 or more
Monthly 
premium

After $764.57 City 
contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1440.83 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1870.46
City contribution

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $ 1,128.83 $        (364.26) $ 2,257.66 $         (816.83) $ 2,934.96 $ (1,064.50)

Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $  1,210.71 $        (446.14) $ 2,421.42 $         (980.59) $ 3,147.85 $  (1,277.39)

Blue Shield Access+ $  1,035.21 $        (270.64) $ 2,070.42 $         (629.59) $ 2,691.55 $    (821.09)

Health Net SmartCare $  1,174.50 $       (409.93) $ 2,349.00 $         (908.17) $ 3,053.70 $         (1,183.24)

Kaiser Permanente California $     913.74 $         (149.17) $ 1,827.48 $ (386.65) $ 2,375.72 $    (505.26) 

Western Health Advantage $   760.17 $       4.40 $ 1,520.34 $ (79.51) $ 1,976.44 $    (105.99)

PERS Gold $    825.61 $         (61.04) $ 1,651.22 $ (210.39) $ 2,146.59 $    (276.13)

PERS Platinum $ 1,200.12 $        (435.55) $ 2,400.24 $         (959.41) $ 3,120.31 $         (1,249.86)

Page H-2.14



Health Plan Premiums: Bay Area Region

Amounts in (red) = your out-of-pocket expense  
Cash in lieu = $183.50 monthly

2023 AFSCME – Part-time (20 hour) employees
Health plan

Employee only Employee + 1 Employee +2 or more
Monthly 
premium

After $509.71 City 
contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $960.55 
City contribution

Monthly 
premium

After $1246.97
City contribution

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $ 1,128.83 $          (619.12) $ 2,257.66 $         (1,297.11) $ 2,934.96 $        (1,687.99)

Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $  1,210.71 $          (701.00) $ 2,421.42 $         (1,460.87) $ 3,147.85 $           (1,900.88)

Blue Shield Access+ $  1,035.21 $          (525.50) $ 2,070.42 $         (1,109.87) $ 2,691.55 $           (1,444.58)

Health Net SmartCare $  1,174.50 $         (664.79) $ 2,349.00 $         (1,388.45) $ 3,053.70 $          (1,806.73)

Kaiser Permanente California $     913.74 $          (404.03) $ 1,827.48 $ (866.93) $ 2,375.72 $           (1,128.75) 

Western Health Advantage $   760.17 $ (250.46) $ 1,520.34 $ (559.79) $ 1,976.44 $             (729.47)

PERS Gold $    825.61 $        (315.90) $ 1,651.22 $ (690.67) $ 2,146.59 $             (899.62)

PERS Platinum $ 1,200.12 $         (690.41) $ 2,400.24 $        (1,439.69) $ 3,120.31 $          (1,873.34)

Page H-2.15



LOCAL GOVERNMENT 101 

1400 K Street, Suite 205  •  Sacramento, CA 95814  •  916.658.8208 F 916.444.7535  •  www.ca-ilg.org 

The Institute is grateful to Dr. Rhonda Albey for preparing this piece.  Dr. Albey has worked in 
labor relations for Los Angeles County since 1990. 

Additional Resources 

The Institute has two glossaries to assist 
local officials as they engage with 
constituents, bargaining representatives 
and each other about labor relations and 
public pension issues: 

• Labor Relations Terminology:
http://www.ca-ilg.org/post/labor-
relations-terminology

• Public Pension Terminology:
http://www.ca-ilg.org/post/public-
pension-terminology

Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process 
August 17, 2012 

Under California law,1 when county or city employees 
are represented by a union, the agency must negotiate 
with that union regarding their pay and benefits, 
working hours, and working conditions. This paper 
explains the key elements of that process. 

Roles 

Elected officials determine the agency’s bargaining 
position and consult with staff throughout the 
negotiation process. Agency staff report back to 
decision-makers about the face-to-face negotiations’ 
progress and any impediments to reaching agreement. 

Before Bargaining 

Prior to meeting with the union, the agency’s negotiators will meet with elected officials 
to discuss how to proceed. Having this meeting well in advance of negotiations gives 
elected officials time to consider relevant issues and develop a set of questions.  

Early conversations also give staff time to compile necessary information for decision-
makers. Examples of such information may include: 

• Anticipated increases in current employee expenditures
• Money available for salaries and benefits
• Cost of salary and benefit enhancements
• What comparable employers are paying
• Turnover statistics

Just as elected officials need time and information to make well-informed decisions, staff 
will need time to prepare and provide accurate information. As with any issue, limited 
staff resources may make it advisable to prioritize information requests.  

Conversations about the agency’s initial bargaining position typically take place in closed 
session.2 The agency’s negotiators will share their understanding of what it will take to 

ATTACHMENT L

Page H-2.16

http://www.ca-ilg.org/post/labor-relations-terminology
http://www.ca-ilg.org/post/labor-relations-terminology
http://www.ca-ilg.org/post/public-pension-terminology
http://www.ca-ilg.org/post/public-pension-terminology


 
 
 
Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process 2012 
 

Institute for Local Government   www.ca-ilg.org  2 
 

Expect to be Misquoted 
 
People tend to hear what they 
want to hear.   
 
Someone may say something like 
“I’ll speak to the negotiating 
team,” and mean exactly that – 
they’ll speak to them.   
 
The employees may hear “He/she 
will speak to the negotiating team 
and tell them to give us what we 
want.”   
 
Some strategies for minimizing 
miscommunication are to take 
notes during the discussion and 
not to meet with union 
representatives alone.  

The Process Can Be 
Rough 

 
During the negotiations process, 
the union may organize 
demonstrations and/or phone and 
e-mail campaigns. Discourse may 
become bullying and emotional. 
 
Don’t take it personally – it’s all 
part of the process.  Both sides 
may need to show they are doing 
their job. Union negotiators need 
to show their members that they 
are fighting for them and elected 
officials need to show they are 
working hard for the community. 

reach agreement with the union. The agency’s governing body will then give negotiators 
an initial bargaining position. 
 
During Bargaining 
 
No matter how reasonable the agency’s initial bargaining position is, it is unlikely that 
the union will immediately accept it.  

 
The negotiation process is unpredictable.  The 
agency’s negotiators may have misread the union’s 
priorities and goals. Union representatives may 
have misread the employees’ mood. New issues 
may arise. There may be internal divisions within 
the union. These challenges may make it impossible 
to get agreement within the original parameters 
authorized. 
 
Working with the Agency’s Negotiators. As 
challenges arise, the agency’s negotiators may ask 
for modifications in the bargaining position. This is 
normal in the course of any type of negotiation, as 
each party learns more about the interests of the 
other. Multiple meetings with the negotiating team 
may be necessary. 
 
 

Modifications may not involve increases in total 
expense. An example is moving money from benefits 
to salaries (or vice-versa). Another example is if 
decision-makers have authorized higher increases for 
some position classifications than others, employee 
representatives may ask to even increases out. 
 
Meeting with Union Officials. As negotiations 
continue, the union may seek meetings with individual 
elected official(s) to discuss the agency’s bargaining 
position. As with any group of constituents, an elected 
official can choose to meet with them or not. If an 
elected official does meet with union officials, the 
official should be clear that the official is not speaking 
on behalf of the governing body.   
 
A word of caution about meeting with employees 
without their union representative during labor 

Page H-2.17

http://www.ca-ilg.org/


Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process 2012 

Institute for Local Government   www.ca-ilg.org 3 

An Expired Contract 
is not the Same as 

No Contract 

If the contract has expired 
and agreement has not been 
reached on a new one, the 
agency must maintain the 
status quo until there is a 
new agreement. 

negotiations: such meetings can lead to an unfair labor practice accusation of “direct 
dealing.”3 Avoid any action that makes it appear that the agency is interfering in the 
union’s relationship with the employees it represents. 

If the elected official meets with union representatives, it is helpful to share the 
conversation with the agency’s bargaining representatives. The conversation may provide 
insights that will help the agency’s negotiators move the process forward. 

If Agreement Is Reached 

The agreement still has to be ratified by the rank and file. The union may feel it needs to 
sell the agreement as a victory for its members. The union may post flyers or e-mails 
trumpeting their win over management.  

For their part, elected officials may hear concerns from constituents that the agency is 
spending too much on employee salaries and benefits. Agency officials are well-advised 
to be moderate in their public discourse relating to the agreement. Anything that might be 
construed as bragging about the agency’s victory in the bargaining process may 
jeopardize the agreement.  The employees won’t ratify the agreement if they think it is a 

bad deal or their representatives weren’t 
sufficiently aggressive on their behalf. 

A helpful practice can be a public statement that 
does not validate either extreme, but says 
something to the effect that “We reached a deal to 
provide adequate public services at reasonable 
cost.” 

If Agreement Cannot Be Reached 

What happens if the agency can’t reach an agreement?  There are procedures under state 
law for resolving impasse. A local labor relations resolution may provide further 
guidance on procedures. 

Mediation 
A mediator may be brought in to try and resolve differences 
between the agency and the union. Mediators have no authority to 
impose a settlement, but can be useful in helping the parties look 
at the problem from a new perspective and to move past personal 
differences.  The state Division of Mediation and Conciliation can 
provide a mediator. 

Fact-finding. Whether or not mediation occurs, the union may 
request fact-finding as a next step. With the assistance of the 

Post Agreement Issues 

While the agency will not have to 
negotiate during the term of the 
agreement, issues may arise 
between negotiations that may 
require changes. 

Page H-2.18

http://www.ca-ilg.org/


 
 
 
Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process 2012 
 

Institute for Local Government   www.ca-ilg.org  4 
 

This resource is a service of the Institute for Local Government (ILG) whose mission is to promote good 
government at the local level with practical, impartial, and easy-to-use resources for California 
communities. ILG is the nonprofit 501(c)(3) research and education affiliate of the League of California 
Cities and the California State Association of Counties. For more information and to access the Institute’s 
resources on Local Government 101 go to http://www.ca-ilg.org/localgovt101.  
 
The Institute thanks the following individuals for their review and input into this resource: 

• Holly Brock-Cohn, Human Resources Director, City of Alameda 
• Casey Echarte, Assistant Human Resources Director, City of San Mateo 
• Eraina Ortega, Legislative Representative, Employee Relations & Human Resources, California 

State Association of Counties 
• Delores Turner, Assistant City Manager, Administrative Services Department, City of Emeryville 

 
The Institute welcomes feedback on this resource: 

• Email: rstephens@ca-ilg.org Subject: Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process 
• Fax: 916.444.7535  
• Mail: 1400 K Street, Suite 205 ▪ Sacramento, CA ▪ 95814  

Public Employee Relations Board (PERB), a fact-finding panel is appointed which 
reviews both parties’ proposals, holds hearings and ultimately recommends a settlement. 
 
Unilateral implementation. After exhausting the impasse procedure and holding a 
public hearing, the agency may impose its final financial offer upon the employees. 
Management cannot force the union to accept a whole new contract. 
 
Unilateral implementation cannot be used to impose work rule or operational changes and 
can only be implemented for one year. After that year, or during the year, if the union 
indicates it has a significant change in its position, the agency must bargain again with 
the union to try and reach a mutual agreement. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page H-2.19

http://www.ca-ilg.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org/localgovt101
mailto:rstephens@ca-ilg.org


Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process 2012 

Institute for Local Government   www.ca-ilg.org 5 

References and Resources 

1 California Government Code 3500, known as the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, (MMB) requires negotiation 
in good faith with the recognized employee representative on specified subjects.  It also permits local 
agencies to adopt their own rules and regulations for the governance of labor relations. 
2 See Cal. Gov’t Code § 54957.6, which provides:  

54957.6.  (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a legislative body of a local agency may 
hold closed sessions with the local agency's designated representatives regarding the salaries, 
salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and 
unrepresented employees, and, for represented employees, any other matter within the statutorily 
provided scope of representation. 

However, prior to the closed session, the legislative body of the local agency shall hold an open 
and public session in which it identifies its designated representatives. 

Closed sessions of a legislative body of a local agency, as permitted in this section, shall be for the 
purpose of reviewing its position and instructing the local agency's designated representatives. 

Closed sessions, as permitted in this section, may take place prior to and during consultations and 
discussions with representatives of employee organizations and unrepresented employees. 

Closed sessions with the local agency's designated representative regarding the salaries, salary 
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits may include discussion of an 
agency's available funds and funding priorities, but only insofar as these discussions relate to 
providing instructions to the local agency's designated representative. 

Closed sessions held pursuant to this section shall not include final action on the proposed 
compensation of one or more unrepresented employees. 

For the purposes enumerated in this section, a legislative body of a local agency may also meet 
with a state conciliator who has intervened in the proceedings. 

(b) For the purposes of this section, the term "employee" shall include an officer or an
independent contractor who functions as an officer or an employee, but shall not include any 
elected official, member of a legislative body, or other independent contractors. 

3 See Cal. Lab. Code § 1156;  Ruline Nursery Co. v. Agricultural Labor Relations Bd., 169 Cal. App. 3d 
247, 266, 216 Cal. Rptr. 162, 172 (1985) 

G:\INSTITUTE\Gov 101\Human Resources\Labor Relations Basics 
\Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process_August 2012.docx 

Page H-2.20

http://www.ca-ilg.org/


City Manager's Office 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-088-CC

City Council Intiated Item Direction on advisory body and 
commissioner stipends  

Recommendation 
Provide direction to staff on advisory body and commissioner stipends. 

Background 
On March 28, 2023, Vice Mayor Taylor requested an agenda item for City Council discussion of advisory 
body and commissioner stipends. 

Analysis 
Pursuant to City Council Procedure #CC-20-013 (Attachment A), the City Council may discuss the item and 
ask staff questions regarding preliminary scope, analysis and resource requirements. After discussion, with 
a motion and second, the City Council may take one of the following actions: 
• Direct the city manager to prioritize staff resources to prepare a formal staff report for further City Council

consideration and/or action, or
• Direct the item to an advisory body for preparation of a formal staff report with no additional staff support

required, or
• Direct the city manager to prepare a formal staff report for further City Council consideration as

resources are available, or
• Defer action to the City Council’s annual goal setting process.

Impact on City Resources 
Determined by City Council direction. 

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM I-1

Page I-1.1



Staff Report #: 23-088-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Attachments 
A. City Council Procedure #CC-20-013

Report prepared by: 
Justin I.C. Murphy, City Manager 

Page I-1.2



CC 20200825 

CITY COUNCILMEMBER REQUESTS
City Council Policy #CC-20-013 
Adopted August 25, 2020 

Purpose 

The purpose of this procedure is to provide transparency into requests by individual City Councilmembers that result in the 
use of staff time. The policy applies to all City Councilmembers equally and allows the full City Council to determine how to 
use limited city resources.   

For this procedure, a “City Councilmember request” is defined as a request to use city resources in a manner that exceeds 
the City Council approved budget, priorities, or work plan. This includes requests directed to the city manager, city attorney, 
and all city staff members. This procedure also applies to City Council appointed commissions and committees.  

Requests to add items to a future agenda 

To make a request 
To request consideration of an item at future City Council meetings, City Councilmembers may send the request via 
email to the city manager, with a copy to the Mayor and Vice Mayor, or via email to city.council@menlopark.org. The 
request must be received no later than two (2) business days prior to publication of the meeting agenda.   The request 
will automatically appear under “City Council initiated items” at the end of the City Council’s regular agenda.  

Initial City Council consideration of request 
As an agendized item under “City Council initiated items” the City Council may discuss the item and ask staff questions 
regarding preliminary scope, analysis, and resource requirements. After discussion, with a motion and second, the City 
Council may take one of the following actions: 
 Direct the city manager to prioritize staff resources to prepare a formal staff report for further City Council

consideration and/or action, or
 Direct the item to an advisory body for preparation of a formal staff report with no additional staff support required,

or
 Direct the city manager to prepare a formal staff report for further City Council consideration as resources are

available, or
 Defer action to the City Council’s annual goal setting process.

If the request does not receive sufficient City Council support, the item is not considered further. 

City Council action 
When the staff report is available, the report will be placed under “City Council initiated items” for City Council 
discussion and action at the next City Council meeting, regardless of agenda load management exercised by the 
Mayor, Vice Mayor, and city manager.       

Request to modify operations or for special projects 

To make a request 
To request consideration of a change in operations or for a special project, a City Councilmember may send the request via 
email to the city manager, with a copy to the Mayor and Vice Mayor, or via email to city.council@menlopark.org. The 
request must be received no later than two (2) business days prior to publication of the meeting agenda. The request will 
automatically appear under “City Council initiated items” at the end of the City Council’s regular agenda. 

Initial City Council consideration of request 
As an agendized item under “City Council initiated items” the City Council may discuss the item and ask the city manager 
the preliminary assessment of the scope, analysis, and resource requirements of the request. After discussion, with a 
motion and second, the City Council may take one of the following actions: 
 Direct the city manager to prioritize staff resources to prepare a formal staff report for further City Council consideration

and/or action, or
 Direct the city manager to prepare a formal staff report for further City Council consideration as resources are

available, or
 Defer action to the City Council’s annual budget process.

If the request does not receive sufficient City Council support, the item is not considered further. 

City Council action 
When the staff report is available, the report will be placed under “City Council initiated items” for City Council discussion 

ATTACHMENT A



CITY COUNCILMEMBER REQUESTS 
City Council Policy #CC-20-013 2 
Adopted August 25, 2020 

and action at the next City Council meeting, regardless of agenda load management exercised by the Mayor, Vice Mayor, 
and city manager. 

Emergency and non-agendized items 

Emergency and non-agendized items may be added to an agenda only in accordance with state law.  Emergency items are 
only those matters affecting public health or safety such as work stoppages, disasters and other severe emergencies. 
Adding an emergency item requires a majority vote. Emergency items are very rare. An item that the City Council would like 
to act on after agenda posting is considered a non-agendized item.   

Non-agendized items may be added to the agenda only if the City Council makes findings that (1) the need to consider the 
item arose after the posting of the agenda, and; (2) there is a need to take immediate action at this meeting of the City 
Council. These findings must be approved by a four-fifths vote; if less than five members of the City Council are present, the 
findings require a unanimous vote of those present. 

Emergency and non-agendized items are not be used to bypass the City Councilmember request process above. 

Procedure history 

Action Date Notes

Draft procedure presented July 18, 2020 City Council continued item to August 25, 2020 

Procedure adoption August 25, 2020 
Draft procedure amended at City Council direction. Staff edit 
to clarify definition of a “non-agendized item” 

Page I-1.4



City Manager's Office 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
 
STAFF REPORT  

City Council    
Meeting Date:   4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number:  23-092-CC 
 
Informational Item:  City Council agenda topics: April 18 – May 9, 2023 

 
Recommendation 
The purpose of this informational item is to provide the City Council and members of the public access to 
the anticipated agenda items that will be presented to the City Council. The mayor and city manager set the 
City Council agenda so there is no action required of the City Council as a result of this informational item.  

 
Policy Issues 
In accordance with the City Council procedures manual, the mayor and city manager set the agenda for City 
Council meetings.  

 
Analysis 
In an effort to provide greater access to the City Council’s future agenda items, staff has compiled a listing 
of anticipated agenda items, Attachment A, through May 9, 2023. The topics are arranged by department to 
help identify the work group most impacted by the agenda item.  
 
Specific dates are not provided in the attachment due to a number of factors that influence the City Council 
agenda preparation process. In their agenda management, the mayor and city manager strive to compile an 
agenda that is most responsive to the City Council’s adopted priorities and work plan while also balancing 
the business needs of the organization. Certain agenda items, such as appeals or State mandated 
reporting, must be scheduled by a certain date to ensure compliance. In addition, the meeting agendas are 
managed to allow the greatest opportunity for public input while also allowing the meeting to conclude 
around 11 p.m. Every effort is made to avoid scheduling two matters that may be contentious to allow the 
City Council sufficient time to fully discuss the matter before the City Council. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting.  

 
Attachments 
A. City Council agenda topics: April 18 – May 9, 2023 
 
Report prepared by: 
Judi A. Herren, Assistant to the City Manager/City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM J-1

Page J-1.1



Through May 9, 2023

Tentative City Council Agenda
# Title Department Item type City Council action
1 Adopt Fiscal Year 23-24 Budget Principles ASD Regular Approve

2 Quarterly Personnel Activity Report ASD Informational Receive and file

3 Closed sesssion: Labor ASD, CA Closed Session No action

4
Consider the Planning Commission’s recommendation to approve the vesting tentative map 
extension and adopt a resolution to approve a two-year extension of a vesting tentative map to 
merge the existing SP-ECR/D

CDD Public Hearing Adopt resolution

5 Advisory body annual appointments CMO
Advisory Body Vacancies 

and Appointments
Decide

6 Planning Commission Interviews CMO Special No action

7 First Reading of Zero Emission Landscaping Equipment (ZELE) Ordinance CMO Regular Approve

8 Goal and priority setting follow-up/final report CMO Regular Receive and file

9 Introduction and first reading of Streetaries outdoor dining ordinance CMO Regular First read/intro ordinance

10 Proclamation: May Mental Health Month CMO Proclamation No action

11
Resolution approving the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services Form 130 in order 
to pursue State financial assistance

CMO Consent Adopt resolution

12 Study Session: Reach Codes 2.0 CMO Study Session No action

13 Transmittal of city attorney billing (Feb and Mar 2023) CMO Informational No action

14 Update CC-23-004 to include EQC roles and responsibilities CMO Consent Adopt resolution

15
Amendment to the Belle Haven School field joint-use agreement with Ravenwsood City School 
District

LCS Consent Adopt resolution

16
Appropriate funds related to and supporting the Menlo Park Community Campus project 
microgrid switchgear

LCS Regular Approve

17 Aquatics operator agreement LCS Regular Contract award or amend

18
Menlo Park Community Campus - Preliminary staffing, operations, and programming plan 
considerations

LCS Informational No action

19 Police Department AB 481 annual review and ordinance renewal PD Regular Receive and file, Adopt resolution

20 Police department quarterly update – Q1 January 2023 - March 2023 PD Informational Receive and file

21
Adopt a resolution certifying housing policy compliance required to accept One Bay Area Grant - 
third cycle (OBAG3) funds

PW Consent Adopt resolution

22 Approval of Amendment #2 to the SFCJPA Members Agreement PW Consent No action

23 Proclamation: Recognizing May 2022 as Bike Month PW Proclamation No action

24 Proclamation: Recognizing Public Works Week PW Proclamation No action

25 Provide direction on restarting the Neighborhood Traffic Management Program (NTMP) PW Study Session Direction to staff

26 Provide direction on the Ravenswood Bike Lane Pilot PW Study Session Direction to staff

27 Provide update on quick build project at Menlo Ave/University Dr intersection PW Informational No action

28 Quiet zone study session PW Study Session Direction to staff

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CDD-Community Development
LCS-Library and Community Services

PD-Police
PW-Public Works

ATTACHMENT A



Through May 9, 2023

Tentative City Council Agenda
# Title Department Item type City Council action
29 Review and provide feedback on the draft Capital Improvement Program PW Study Session Direction to staff

30 Willow Oaks Park Improvement Project award of contract PW Consent Contract award or amend

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CDD-Community Development
LCS-Library and Community Services

PD-Police
PW-Public WorksPage J-1.3



Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-089-CC

Informational Item: Update on Belle Haven traffic calming plan 
implementation  

Recommendation 
This is an informational item and does not require City Council action. The report transmits an update on the 
Belle Haven traffic calming plan and related projects. 

Policy Issues 
The development of the Belle Haven Neighborhood traffic calming plan (Plan) and its implementation fulfill 
“Mitigation Measure TRA-3.1” of the mitigation monitoring and reporting program (MMRP) established in the 
Facebook campus expansion project final environmental impact report (FEIR) approved in 2016. This was 
identified as a mitigation measure due to the potential for the Facebook Campus Expansion project to 
exacerbate cut-through traffic in the neighborhood. (The Plan is not a negotiated benefit of the recorded 
development agreement for the project.) At the request of the City Council, this MMRP requirement is 
included in the City’s capital improvement program and considered part of staff’s baseline work.  

Background 
On August 20, 2019, the City Council approved the final Plan and adopted Resolution No. 6492 to remove 
on-street parking for intersection bulbouts. In June 2020, temporary traffic calming measures within City 
jurisdiction were installed. Additionally, schematic design plans on third party agency right-of-ways were 
submitted to the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) for improvements along Ivy Drive 
(Hetch Hetchy pipelines) and Caltrans for improvements along Willow Road (State Route 114) in October 
2020 for initial review. 

On March 23, 2021, staff presented to the City Council a set of revisions to the previously approved 
implementation process as a result of the unexpected COVID-19 pandemic, which centered on data 
collection and a neighborhood-wide community survey. A hyperlink of the staff report is provided in 
Attachment A. 

Analysis 
On September 21, 2021, the City Council approved a final modified plan. A hyperlink of the staff report is 
provided in Attachment B. The final adopted plan includes the following elements (Attachment C): 
• Speed feedback signs – retain the permanent measure on Chilco Street
• Bulbouts – proceed with permanent installation on Newbridge Street and Terminal Avenue
• Speed humps – install three speed humps on Chilco Street between Hamilton Avenue and Newbridge

Street and one on Newbridge Street between Hollyburne Avenue and Sevier Avenue
• Neighborhood signs – install neighborhood welcome signs on Newbridge Street, Hamilton Avenue and

AGENDA ITEM J-2

Page J-2.1



Staff Report #: 23-089-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Chilco Street 
• Ivy Drive improvements – continue to coordinate with SFPUC to permanently install crosswalks and

median nose modifications at intersections between Chilco Street and Carlton Avenue
• Willow Road and Newbridge Street signal modifications – continue to coordinate with Caltrans to install

signal improvements, including a dedicated left turn phase and select right turn on red restrictions

The final plan was developed based on public review, City Council direction, and coordination with SFPUC 
and Caltrans. The review process from these third parties included multiple rounds of comments on 
conceptual designs, presentation to the SFPUC Project Review Committee meeting in November 2020, and 
multiple field meetings with Caltrans. 

Since the September 21, 2021 City Council meeting, staff worked with Meta to complete final design of 
improvements (October 2021 through September 2022) and have been coordinating with Caltrans and 
SFPUC to receive authorization to complete all of the improvements outlined in the adopted plan. Delays 
reaching agreement with these third party agencies have extended the timeframe for implementation of the 
plan.  

The City submitted an encroachment permit to Caltrans in June 2022 and have had multiple rounds of 
coordination and comment from Caltrans that are nearing resolution. Staff anticipates receiving that permit 
by the end of April 2023.  

After receiving final design approval from the SFPUC in September 2022, the SFPUC prepared a licensing 
agreement and consent letter, which was finalized in February 2023. The licensing agreement establishes 
the policies and guidelines for all infrastructure constructed by the City on the SFPUC ROW. The 
agreement covers more than just the current set of improvements and no construction on SFPUC ROW is 
permitted without the agreement. The consent letter, the equivalent of an encroachment permit for SFPUC, 
will permit contractors to construct the improvements on Ivy Drive. The licensing agreement is circulating for 
signatures now and should be fully executed by the end of April. 

Schedule 
The remaining schedule to implement the plan is as follows: 
• April 2023. Complete permitting with Caltrans.
• April – May 2023. Meta bids the project and brings on a contractor.
• June or July 2023 through October 2023. Construction will be prioritized along Ivy Street and Terminal

Avenue during the summer months to limit impacts on children traveling to and from school at Belle
Haven Elementary.

Construction notifications 
Staff will provide the following notifications in English and Spanish for construction: 
• Email to individuals who have expressed interest on the project page
• Postcards to blocks/homes where there will be immediate construction impacts
• A-frames placed along key corridors
• Citywide weekly digest
• City weekly construction news
• Share materials with local institutions, including the Belle Haven Child Development Center, Belle Haven

Library, Belle Haven Elementary and Beechwood School

Page J-2.2



Staff Report #: 23-089-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Related project coordination 
In addition to the improvements being implemented by the Plan, there are several other improvements the 
City is working on along Willow Road. For the last year, staff have been coordinating with Caltrans on the 
repaving of Willow Road (State Route 114). Specifically, staff developed an alternate pavement marking 
plan that includes high visibility crosswalks and buffers for the existing bike lanes. In February 2023, 
Caltrans accepted the City’s proposed pavement marking plan and will be implementing the new striping as 
the weather allows. 

In June 2022, the City submitted a grant to the California Active Transportation Program (ATP) to fund 
additional safety crossing enhancements and physical separation for the bike lane (called a Class IV or 
separated bikeway) along Willow Road from Bayfront Expressway to Durham Street (where bicycle lanes 
end). The City was not successful with this grant and received a debrief in February 2023. The City was 
encouraged to apply in a future round (typically every other year). The ATP grants are incredibly competitive 
and the California Transportation Commission staff did not flag any significant issues with the City’s grant 
proposal, just a need to strengthen the application as it relates to the grant criteria.  

Staff will explore applying to either the next ATP cycle or to other grant sources. One upcoming grant 
opportunity may be the San Mateo County Transportation Authority Measure A & W Highway Program, 
which provides funding for multimodal improvements on state routes, including U.S. 101, SR 82 (El Camino 
Real), SR 114 (Willow Road), and SR 84 (Bayfront Expressway). 

In addition to these City-led efforts, the City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) for San Mateo 
County has been conducting a Community-based Transportation Plan (CBTP) for southeast San Mateo 
County for the last several years. Originally started in 2019, this plan was substantially delayed by the 
pandemic. The CBTP (Attachment D) is intended to provide a local exploration of regional transportation 
needs and was informed through both a stakeholder group, including City staff, and public engagement 
including a presentation to the Complete Streets Commission March 10, 2021. C/CAG will be bringing an 
item to City Council to support the adoption of this plan in the next several months.  

Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact on City resources. 

Environmental Review 
This informational update is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in 
the environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – March 23, 2021, City Council staff report: menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-

and-minutes/city-council/2021-meetings/agendas/20210323-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=386
B. Hyperlink – September 21, 2021, City Council staff report:

Page J-2.3

https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2021-meetings/agendas/20210323-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=386
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2021-meetings/agendas/20210323-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=386


Staff Report #: 23-089-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2021-
meetings/agendas/20210921-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=166  

C. Adopted Belle Haven traffic calming plan 
D. Hyperlink – C/CAG Southwest San Mateo County CBTP: ccag.ca.gov/wp-

content/uploads/2023/03/SoutheastSanMateo_CBTP_2-9-2023_FINAL_Optimized_FullAppendix.pdf 
 
Report prepared by: 
Kevin Chen, Senior Transportation Engineer 
 
Report reviewed by:  
Hugh Louch, Assistant Public Works Director - Transportation 

Page J-2.4

https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2021-meetings/agendas/20210921-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=166
https://menlopark.gov/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2021-meetings/agendas/20210921-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf#page=166
https://ccag.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/SoutheastSanMateo_CBTP_2-9-2023_FINAL_Optimized_FullAppendix.pdf
https://ccag.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/SoutheastSanMateo_CBTP_2-9-2023_FINAL_Optimized_FullAppendix.pdf


Belle Haven 
Neighborhood 
Traffic 
Calming
Plan

August 2018

W
IL

LO
W

 R
OA

D 

Terminal Ave

Hamilton Ave

BAYSHORE FREEWAY

D
el

 N
or

te
 A

ve

Bieb
er Ave Plum

as Ave

CHILCO
 STREET

H
ill Ave

M
od

oc Ave

Alm
anor Ave

IVY DRIVE

H
en

de
rs

on
 A

ve
W

in
de

rm
er

e 
Av

e

H
ol

ly
bu

rn
e 

Av
e

Se
vi

er
 A

ve

M
ad

er
a 

Av
e

Ca
rlt

on
 A

ve

W
in

de
rm

er
e 

Av
e

O
ak

la
nd

 A
ve

W
ill

ow
 R

d

Sa
ra

to
ga

 A
ve

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 A
ve

Ja
rv

is 
Av

eH
en

de
rs

on
 A

ve

O’Brien Dr

Alberni St

Van Buren Rd

Bay Rd

Ri
ng

w
oo

d 
Av

e

Te
ha

m
a 

Av
e

So
no

m
a 

Av
e

Pierce Rd

Sandlewood St

Al
m

an
or

 A
ve

M
en

lo 
Oak

s D
r

Belle Haven 
Elementary 

School

Menlo Park 
Senior Center

Beechwood School

Be
rk

el
ey

 A
ve

Market Pl

IVY DRIVE

Hamilton Ave

NEWBRIDGE STREET

2 2 2 2

2

1

1

1

2

2

11

3

4

9 12

2
2

2
2 11

6

13

13

2
22

8

2

10

6

6

13

Be
rk

el
ey

 A
ve

Legend

Updated School Signage1

2 Marked Crosswalk

3 Yellow Centerline

Sharrow4

5

6 Speed Hump

Raised Crosswalk7

8 Speed Feedback Sign

9 Blank Out Sign*

New Sidewalk10

11 Bulbout**

12 Left Turn Arrow

Raised Intersection13

14 Gateway TreatmentEdge Line Stripe

**Will require removal of localized on-street parking spaces (~ 2-4 spaces per location)*No right turn blank out sign will activate concurrent with Northbound left turn

Neighborhood SignMedian Nose

September 2021

turn      **Includes removal of localized on-street parking spaces (~2-4 spaces per location)

Wkdy: 4 - 6 p.m.

Note:
1. City responsible for Terminal Ave. bulbouts implementation at Plumas Ave. and Hill Ave.

ATTACHMENT C

Page J-2.5



Library and Community Services 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number:  23-090-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Belle Haven School redesign update – Ravenswood 

City School District  
 
Recommendation 
This is an informational item and does not require City Council action. City staff recommends that the City 
Council review this update related to Ravenswood City School District’s (District)proposed redesign of the 
Belle Haven School, including a proposed configuration of interim classrooms (portables) on the field and 
tennis court area during project construction (Attachments A, B and C.)   

 
Policy Issues 
City Council sets policy and goals and provides direction to staff regarding municipal projects and services 
to the Menlo Park community; and authorizes joint-use agreements between the City and external agencies. 

 
Background 
Belle Haven School is owned and operated by District. The school is centrally located in the Belle Haven 
neighborhood at 415 Ivy Drive, and includes approximately 1.6 acres of green space with a field, walking 
path, youth baseball diamond and tennis court which are accessible to the public when not in use by the 
school. 
 
The City of Menlo Park (City) and District jointly maintain and share access to the Belle Haven School’s field 
area through a joint-use agreement executed in 2001 (Attachment D.) The agreement’s current term is for 
25 years, ending the last day of calendar year 2026, then automatically extending from calendar year to 
calendar year thereafter unless one of the parties gives notice of termination by December 31 of any year, 
at which point the agreement would terminate at the end of the following calendar year. 
 
On June 7, 2022, District voters approved Measure I to provide capital funding for improvements to District 
facilities. With the resulting bond proceeds, District has begun the process to design a major renovation of 
the Belle Haven School campus facilities and field area. 
 
On February 22, District staff provided a presentation to the Parks and Recreation Commission (PRC) of 
preliminary options to redesign the field area on the north side of the school campus, with the intent to make 
that area more accessible and beneficial to the Belle Haven neighborhood (Attachment A.) The PRC offered 
questions and feedback about various elements of the preliminary redesign options including community 
access to the tennis court, youth baseball field and gymnasium; community engagement in the design 
process; natural and artificial turf options; water use for irrigation; and the project budget. 
 
On March 14, City Council received an informational update about District’s proposed redesign of the Belle 
Haven School field area, which referenced a January 2024 construction start date. Shortly after this 
informational update, the District notified staff of the need to install interim classrooms (portables) on the 

AGENDA ITEM J-3

Page J-3.1



Staff Report #: 23-090-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

school field area in summer 2023 to provide for a January 2024 construction start date. The following 
section provides additional background and updates.  

Analysis 
Project website and timeline 
District has created a project website about the Belle Haven School redesign project that includes 
background documents, preliminary design plans, community engagement opportunities and project 
timeline information (Attachment A.) District’s current project timeline is to install interim classrooms 
(portables) on the school field area in summer 2023, begin construction on school building renovations in 
January 2024, complete the school building renovations in summer 2025, and begin construction on 
renovations to the field area as soon as possible after the school building renovations are completed. 

Interim classrooms (portables) on school field area 
Community feedback led the District to minimize the construction duration. To accommodate the shortest 
possible construction duration, District is planning to temporarily relocate all student instruction to interim 
classrooms (portables) on the school field area (Attachment B.) To minimize disruption to instruction during 
the school year, District is proposing setting up the interim classrooms during summer 2023 and keeping 
them in place until summer 2025. During that time, the field area and tennis court would not be accessible. 
After the school construction is complete and students move back into the permanent classrooms, District 
plans to begin improvements on the field area as soon as possible. District has prepared and is in the 
process of mailing a letter to Belle Haven neighborhood households describing the construction project’s 
features and proposed timeline (Attachment C.) 

Potential amendment to the joint-use agreement 
City and District staff are working together to develop a draft amendment to the joint-use agreement 
(Attachment D) for City Council and District board of education review and authorization. The amendment 
would suspend certain agreement terms during the construction period when the field area is not accessible 
to the City, for example by suspending the City’s contributions to the costs of maintenance to and water for 
irrigating the field area. Other elements of the agreement would remain in effect, such as the City’s access 
to and maintenance of the public access “tot lot” playground area at the corner of Ivy Drive and Chilco 
Street. City staff anticipates presenting a draft amendment to City Council for review and authorization April 
25, and to District’s board of education April 27. 

Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact on City resources. 

Environmental Review 
This informational report is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in 
the environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. In addition, District has provided and is planning several opportunities for 
community input to the design process, including the PRC presentation February 22, in-person community 

Page J-3.2



Staff Report #: 23-090-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

workshops at Belle Haven School April 19 and July 6, a virtual workshop June 15, and a follow-up in-person 
presentation to the PRC tentatively June 28. District also has prepared and is in the process of mailing a 
letter to Belle Haven neighborhood households describing the construction project’s features and timeline. 

 
Attachments 
A. February 22 District presentation to PRC – Belle Haven School redesign  
B. Proposed locations of interim (portable) classrooms during construction 
C. District letter to Belle Haven households 
D. Joint use agreement 
E. Hyperlink – District’s Belle Haven School redesign webpage: ravenswoodschools.org/Choose-

Ravenswood/Facilities/Belle-Haven-Redesign  
 
Report prepared by: 
Sean S. Reinhart, Library and Community Services Director 

Page J-3.3

http://www.ravenswoodschools.org/Choose-Ravenswood/Facilities/Belle-Haven-Redesign
http://www.ravenswoodschools.org/Choose-Ravenswood/Facilities/Belle-Haven-Redesign


Belle Haven Elementary 
Reimagined

February 22nd, 2023
City of Menlo Park - Parks and Recreation Commission

ATTACHMENT A

Page J-3.4



Executive Summary

2

• We are working on the design for a $50m reimagined Belle Haven, the first 

major campus upgrade since the 1960s.

• The initial design calls for six new classrooms, modernizing 18 classrooms, a 

new student supports building, a new full sized gym, and a new playground.

• The focus of today is the possibility to consider possible changes to the field 

to the north of the school to make that space even more accessible and 

beneficial to the Belle Haven community.

• We are planning on renovating the school classrooms beginning January 

2024 and would not begin major work on the field area until Summer of 2026. 

During construction the field is (likely) to be needed as swing space. 

Page J-3.5



Current Site
There are a number of issues with our current site that we are hoping to address with our revised design

3

Issues we’ve heard from the community

• It is difficult to access the field. There is no clear

community entrance to the field and no designated

seating on the field.

• Relatively limited shade on the field (and none on the

blacktop).

• A slightly awkward overlap between the baseball field

and tennis courts, and an unusually shaped field.

• A field that uses over millions of gallons of water

annually.

• The current gym is located far from the community

entrance to the field and is under-sized. Accessing the

gym also gives access the core campus.

• Publicly inaccessible black-top space behind the

school. Page J-3.6



Preliminary Campus Design
Our proposed initial design addresses many of the issues that we’ve heard with the site

4

Focus of today’s 

conversation

Page J-3.7



Preliminary Campus Design
We are not presenting final designs – more options for conversation

5

• While the campus designs are settling into place, the designs for the field are

in earlier stages

• The goal of these designs is to show pieces in place without focusing on the

many aspects that will come in the final design (such as additional trees)

• This area is the last to be built; while we need to submit some preliminary

designs with the campus, we will have significantly more time to finalize the

design for this space

Page J-3.8



Preliminary Campus Design: Option 1
Our initial plan called for a new gym, additional parking, a community picnic area, a renovated turf field, a 
bio-swale divisor

6

New full size basketball 

gym with a community 

entrance (to the north) 

and a school entrance 

(to the south)

On site parking lot – not 

shown is the solar 

panels and publicly 

accessible EV chargers 

we plan on adding

Community picnic and 

recreation area with lots 

of trees 

New play area (brown) 

and PV structure 

(yellow)

Newer basketball courts, 

a mini-pitch, and 

greenspace

Expand the field by 

removing an older play 

structure 

Page J-3.9



Preliminary Campus Design: Option 2
An alternative design could keep the tennis court and the tennis court

7

Keep the tennis court…

… shrink the parking lot

Keep a small 

baseball field

Page J-3.10



Preliminary Campus Design: Option 2
A third alternative design could add a community benefit building (e.g. a health clinic) on the northwest 
corner

8

Community 

Benefit Space

Add a community benefit 

space (lose or relocate 

the picnic grove)

The building could utilize 

a mid-sized parking lot

Page J-3.11



Next Steps
Until construction begins of the field (and classrooms) begins in January of 2024, we can continue to tweak 
the designs

9

• 2/23 - Board approves sequencing 

plan 

• Early March - Submit initial design 

to DSA

• January, 2024 – Begin school site 

construction

• Summer, 2026 – Conclude building 

construction, begin work on black 

top and fields

• Fall-Summer, 2026-27 – Work on 

fields blacktop 

Timeline Ways to Get Involved

• Learn more on our website: http://www.ravenswoodschools.org/Choose-

Ravenswood/Facilities/Belle-Haven-Redesign

• Join one of our three upcoming in-person and online community events

• Join us at tri-weekly in-person office hours

• Give feedback through our (anonymous) on-line form

• Come to one of our bi-weekly board meetings at 2120 Euclid (this 

project is discussed there monthly) 

• We’ll be back at the Parks Commission this Spring

• Email Will to set-up a time to talk through the project or timeline

We’ve also done one Belle Haven-wide mailer and plan on doing another 

one – the project has also been covered in multiple newspaper articles

Page J-3.12

http://www.ravenswoodschools.org/Choose-Ravenswood/Facilities/Belle-Haven-Redesign
http://www.ravenswoodschools.org/Choose-Ravenswood/Facilities/Belle-Haven-Redesign


OPT2
RAVENSWOOD CITY
BELLE HAVEN ES INTERIM CLASSROOMS

ATTACHMENT B

Page J-3.13



Dear Neighbors -

We continue to work on our $50m set of renovations to Belle Haven Elementary School, the first
and largest Measure I funded project. The project includes building seven brand new
classrooms and modernizing eighteen existing ones. We are also attempting to add more
spaces for the community. This includes a new publicly accessible gym on the west of the
campus, a reconfigured blacktop, a new playground, and renovated fields on the campus.
Across the site there will be significantly more trees, shade, and new green spaces.

Based on community feedback, we have identified three options for the field to the north of the
campus (each of which includes an expanded soccer field):

1) Community picnic grove with full sized parking;
2) Existing tennis court with partial parking;
3) Community health clinic with mid-sized parking.

These options and the site overall plan are depicted on the back page. If you are interested in
joining the vote on one of the options, please visit our website (https://tinyurl.com/BHredesign)
or scan the QR code above.

We expect that major site construction will begin as early as January 2024 and run for ~18
months. There will be a few additional months needed for work on the fields and blacktop.
Construction will be contained entirely on the site, although there will be greater levels of
construction traffic and disruption during that period.

Community feedback led us to try to make the construction duration as short as possible. To
accommodate that, we are moving the entire school to temporary classrooms on the field.
To minimize disruption to the school, we are proposing setting the classrooms up this summer
and keeping the temporary classrooms in place until the summer of 2025. During that time, the
field and the tennis courts will not be accessible. Once students are able to move back into
classrooms, we will begin improvements on the field as soon as possible.

We encourage you to learn more about the design, construction schedule, and to provide
feedback on our field options. Visit our website to learn more about the project and
opportunities to join online and in-person info sessions, or to give direct feedback on the
plan.

All the best,

Gina Sudaria
Ravenswood City School District Superintendent
gsudaria@ravenswoodschools.org

ATTACHMENT C

Page J-3.14

https://tinyurl.com/BHredesign


Belle Haven Elementary Site Layout

Belle Haven Elementary Field Options
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Picnic grove with full parking Tennis with partial parking Community health clinic.

Page J-3.15



Estimados Vecinos -

Continuamos trabajando en nuestro conjunto de renovaciones de $50m a la Escuela Primaria
Belle Haven, el primer proyecto y el más grande de la Medida 1. El proyecto incluye la
construcción de siete nuevas aulas y la modernización de dieciocho existentes. También
estamos intentando agregar más espacios para la comunidad. Esto incluye un nuevo
gimnasio de accesible al público en el oeste del campus, un pavimento reconfigurado, un
nuevo patio de recreo y canchas renovadas en el campus. En todo el sitio habrá
significativamente más árboles, sombra y nuevos espacios verdes.

En base a los comentarios de la comunidad, hemos identificado tres opciones para la cancha al
norte del campus (cada uno de los cuales incluye un campo de fútbol ampliado):

1) Picnic comunitario con estacionamiento de tamaño completo;
2) Cancha de tenis existente con estacionamiento parcial
3) Clínica de salud comunitaria.

Estas opciones y el plan general del sitio se muestran en la página posterior. Si está interesado
en unirse a la votación sobre una de las opciones, visite nuestro sitio web
(https://tinyurl.com/BHredesign) o escanee el código QR de arriba.

Esperamos que la construcción de sitios importantes comience en Enero de 2024 y se
prolongue durante ~18 meses. Habrá algunos meses adicionales necesarios para el trabajo
en los campos y pavimento. La construcción estará contenida completamente en el sitio,
aunque habrá mayores niveles de tráfico de construcción y perturbación durante ese período.

Los comentarios de la comunidad nos llevaron a tratar de hacer la duración de la
construcción lo más corta posible. Para acomodar eso, estamos trasladando toda la
escuela a aulas temporales en el campo. Para minimizar la interrupción en la escuela,
proponemos establecer las aulas este verano y mantener las aulas temporales en su lugar
hasta el verano de 2025. Durante ese tiempo, el campo y las canchas de tenis no serán
accesibles. Una vez que los estudiantes puedan regresar a las aulas, comenzaremos las
mejoras en la cancha lo antes posible.

Le animamos a que aprenda más sobre el diseño, el calendario de construcción y que
proporcione comentarios sobre nuestras opciones de campo. Visite nuestra página web para
obtener más información sobre el proyecto y las oportunidades para unirse a sesiones
de información en línea y en persona, o para dar comentarios directos sobre el plan.

Mejores Deseos,

Gina Sudaria
Superintendente del Distrito Escolar de Ravenswood
gsudaria@ravenswoodschools.org

Page J-3.16

https://tinyurl.com/BHredesign


Escuela Primaria Belle Haven Plano del Sitio

Escuela Primaria Belle Haven Opciones de campo
Opción 1 Opción 2 Opción 3
Picnic comunitario con Cancha de tenis existente Clínica de salud comunitaria.
estacionamiento de tamaño con estacionamiento parcial.
completo.

Page J-3.17



BELLE HAVEN SCHOOL 
JOINT USE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 11 th day of December , 

2001, by and between the Ravenswood School District ("District"), the City of 

Menlo Park ("City") and the Community Development Agency of the City of 

Menlo Park ("CDA'') upon the following terms and conditions: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Section 10902 of the California Education Code authorizes 

public agencies to enter into agreements for the purpose of organizing, 

promoting and conducting programs of community recreation; and 

WHEREAS, Section 10910 of the California Education Code provides that 

the governing body of any school district may use or grant the use of any of the 

buildings or grounds of the school district to any other public authority for the 

organizing, promoting and conducting of community recreation; and 

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the above-named public authorities 

have jurisdiction over the same territory, which includes the authority to organize, 

promote and conduct community recreation programs; and 

WHEREAS, it is to the advantage of the City for the City to use the District 

facilities and to the advantage of the District for the City to maintain District 

facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the District and the City promote the joint use of recreation 

facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the District and the City agree to work together to look for 

other opportunities to partner in the promotion of maximizing recreational 

programs for the benefit of the community; and 

1 

ATTACHMENT D

Page J-3.18



WHEREAS, at the Belle Haven School ("Site") there currently exists 

improvements, as more particularly shown in Exhibit A, hereto ("Existing 

Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS the parties desire to upgrade the Existing Improvements and 

other portions of the Site by removing the existing baseball field and building a 

tennis court in its place, laying new sod, installing a new irrigation system for the 

new sod, constructing a new baseball field soccer field, a learning garden with 

outdoor classrooms, a play area, relocating three (3) basketball courts, and 

doing landscaping improvements throughout the Site, all as more particularly 

shown in Exhibit B, hereto ("Future Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS, CDA has agreed to pay for the Future Improvements, as 

more particularly set forth below; and 

WHEREAS, the City warrants that the CDA has the authority to and the 

City warrants that the CDA will carry out its obligations under this Agreement; 

and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree and the District therefore determines that 

this Agreement will not interfere with the educational program or activities of any 

school or class conducted upon the real property or in any building subject to this 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement agree to take all reasonable 

precautions to prevent disruption to the community and safety risks to children in 

connection with this Agreement and the District therefore determines that this 

Agreement will neither unduly disrupt the residents in the surrounding 

neighborhood nor jeopardize the safety of the children of the school district. 

2 

Page J-3.19



I ', . 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. FUTURE IMPROVEMENTS. Contingent upon Board of the CDA 

approving a contract for construction, the CDA shall construct the Future 

Improvements at the Site as generally shown on attached Exhibit B, at the cost 

and expense of the CDA. 

1.1 The CDA shall pay up to One Million Five Hundred Thousand 

Dollars ($1,500,000.00) toward the construction of the Future 

Improvements, which shall include all soft costs including, but not 

limited to costs for project management, professional services, 

construction permits, etc. 

1.2 The City and/or the CDA shall have the sole control of the 

construction of the Future Improvements, including, but not limited 

to, the bidding process, the negotiation and award of related 

contracts, and the supervision of contracted work. The CDA shall 

indemnify and hold the District harmless from any liability and injury 

to any person or property that arises during construction of the 

Future Improvements, including, but not limited to, any and all 

construction claims associated with the construction of the Future 

Improvements (e.g., contractor claims, overrun costs, etc.). 

1.3 All construction work contemplated in connection with this 

Agreement shall be completed in compliance with all applicable 

City, County, State, and Federal laws, rules and regulations, for 

which compliance the CDA is solely responsible. 

1.4 CDA shall use its best efforts to obtain bids, commence 

construction, and complete the Future Improvements within a 

reasonable period of time. During construction, the CDA may make 

changes to the Future Improvements at its sole discretion, subject 

to consultation with the District, in order to meet budgetary 

concerns, so long as said changes total an amount less than or 

equal to the cost of fifteen (15) percent of the cost of the Future 

Improvements. If any proposed changes are substantial, i.e., if 

3 

Page J-3.20



they total an amount greater than fifteen (15) percent of the cost of 

the Future Improvements, the CDA may make such changes only if 

the District agrees to the changes in writing. It is the intent of the 

District and the CDA to relocate the basketball courts, lay the sod 

and the new irrigation system for the baseball field and soccer 

field and construct the tennis court and tot lot prior to the other 

future improvements in order to meet the budget. 

1.5 The CDA may construct the Future Improvements while school is in 

session. If work is constructed while school is in session, the 

construction shall be phased in order to reduce any inconvenience 

and avoid any danger to the Site. Upon completion of all the Future 

Improvements contemplated by this Agreement, such Future 

Improvements as so constructed shall become and remain the 

property of the District free of any claim thereon by the City and the 

CDA, except as hereinafter provided. 

2 . USE. The City and District shall have joint use of the tennis court, 

baseball field, soccer field and tot lot which shall be fenced and referred to as the 

"Use Area", and in connection therewith, the parties agree that the Use Area 

shall be used as follows: 

2.1 Use Area: Exclusive Use. The District shall have exclusive control 

of the Use Area (excluding the tot lot) during "Normal School 

Hours," which are currently Mondays through Fridays from 8:00 

a.m. to 3:30 p.m. The District will notify the City one year in 

advance of any change in the Normal School Hours during the 

course of this Agreement. The City shall have exclusive control of 

the Use Area for scheduled league events during the weekends, 

holidays and after normal school hours, and any other times during 

which school is not in session. 

2.2 Use Area: Joint Use. The City and the District shall have joint use 

of the Use Area during all weekends, holidays, after normal school 

4 

Page J-3.21



> L 

hours, and any other times during which school is not in session 

throughout the school year and when there are no City scheduled 

league events. The area shown as the tot lot shall be available for 

joint use by both the District and the City at all times. 

2.3 Cooperation and Communication on Scheduling. It is the intent of 

the District and the City to avoid scheduling conflicts, to promote 

the widest reasonable range of usage of the Use Area by all the 

school children and citizens of the community, and to permit each 

party access to the Use Area when not in use by the other parties. 

To that end, the parties shall cooperate in good faith in scheduling 

events for the Use Area and on communicating the various needs 

and desires of the respective parties for the use of the Use Area. 

2.4 The parties agree that during the times in which they are making 

and coordinating their respective schedules during the time they 

have joint use of the Use Area, the activities for children on District 

property will be given priority over programs for adults. 

3. MAINTAINANCE; COSTS. 

3.1 The District and the City shall each be responsible for fifty (50) 

percent of all costs associated with providing water for irrigation to 

the Use Area, as improved by the Future Improvements. In the 

event the City declares that water rationing is required, the District 

shall only be responsible for payment of fifty (50) percent of the 

water usage for the allocated water amounts as set by the City. 

3.2 The City shall, at its sole expense, provide regularly scheduled 

maintenance of the baseball field, soccer field, tennis court and tot 

lot, as improved by the Future Improvements, and keep the same 

in as good an order, condition and repair as when constructed, 

reasonable wear and tear excepted. Both the District and the City 

shall assume shared clean up responsibilities in connection with 

their use of the Future Improvements and land subject to this 

Agreement. Costs for repair over and above normal maintenance 

5 

Page J-3.22



shall be appropriated to the responsible agency at the time the 

damage occurred. 

3.3 The City shall, at its sole expense, provide regularly scheduled 

maintenance of the Play Area/Tot Lot within the fenced area, as 

improved by the Future Improvements, and keep the same in as 

good an order, condition and repair as when constructed, 

reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

3.4 The District shall, at its sole expense, provide regularly scheduled 

maintenance of the asphalted areas, learning garden, and 

landscaping in and around the Site and keep the same in as good 

an order, condition and repair as when constructed, reasonable 

wear and tear excepted. 

4. MISCELLANEOUS. 

4.1 The District shall maintain, at its sole expense, fire and property 

damage insurance on the Future Improvements in an amount not 

less than the replacement cost value. Said insurance shall be 

evaluated as per the District's normal schedule to determine if there 

should be a change in the amount of coverage. The District shall 

promptly repair, restore and replace all or any portion of the Future 

Improvements destroyed or damaged by fire or other catastrophe. 

The proceeds from said insurance shall be used for said purposes, 

but if the proceeds are insufficient to repair, restore or replace the 

Future Improvements to a condition substantially the same as when 

first constructed, then the District and the City (and/or the CDA) 

shall each bear one-half of the difference between the insurance 

proceeds and the cost of the necessary repair, restoration or 

replacement of the Improvements within the Use Area. 

4.2 (a) The District shall indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless 

from any injury to any person which occurs as a result of the 

negligence of the District, its officers, employees or agents in the 

performance of this Agreement. (b) The City shall indemnify, 

defend and hold District, its officers, employees and agents, 

6 

Page J-3.23



harmless from any and all loss, damage or injury to any person or 

property which occurs as a result of the negligence of the City, its 

officers, employees or agents in the performance of this 

Agreement. (c) The CDA shall indemnify, defend and hold the 

District, its officers, employees, and agents harmless from any and 

all loss, damage, or injury to any person or property which occurs 

as a result of the negligence of the Agency, its officers, employees 

or agents in the performance of this Agreement. (d) In the event of 

concurrent negligence, liability for any claims, suits, or actions 

arising out of this Agreement shall be apportioned between the 

Parties under the established California rules of comparative 

negligence. 

4.3 City's right to use the Use Area under this Agreement shall extend 

for a period of twenty five (25) years, beginning on the date the 

Agreement is executed and ending on the last day of calendar year 

2026. This Agreement shall automatically extend from calendar 

year to calendar year thereafter unless the party(ies) give(s)notice 

to the other party(ies) of the termination this Agreement by 

December 31 of any year, at which point the Agreement will be 

terminated at the end of the following calendar year. 

4.4 All of the provisions of this Agreement shall extend to, be binding 

upon, and inure to the · benefit of the successors, assigns, and 

successors-in-interest of the parties hereto. 

4.5 If any term, covenant, condition, restriction or reservation in this 

Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 

void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provision shall remain 

in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 

invalidated. 

4.6 This Agreement may be amended, modified or terminated at any 

time only by the mutual consent in writing of the parties hereto. 

4. 7 The aforementioned indemnity provisions shall survive the 

termination of this Agreement. Each party shall maintain all 

7 

Page J-3.24



insurance coverage necessary to enable it to fulfill the indemnity 

provisions herein. 

4.8 Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this 

Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that provision unless 

such party acknowledges, in writing, that it is waiving that provision. 

4.9 Prohibited activities on District property. (a) Prohibitions. No 

alcohol, smoking, drugs, or dogs or other animals (other than 

seeing eye dogs), shall be permitted upon or within any of the 

District property covered by this Agreement while the property is 

being used by the City, or during the course of any activities or 

programs sponsored by the City. The City shall also make 

reasonable efforts to have these prohibitions observed by members 

of the general public, and will, at the request of the District or at its 

own initiation, adopt suitable ordinances if such action is deemed 

necessary and appropriate for enforcement purposes. (b) 

Excessive use. The City will limit or restrict the activities under its 

own control to avoid undue stress or damage to the District 

property covered by this Agreement. 

4.10 Notices. Any notices given to the other party under this Agreement 

shall be in writing and shall be either personally delivered to the 

other party or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

addressed to the other party as follows: 

To the City: 

To the District: 

City of Menlo Park . 

Attention: City Manager 

701 Laurel Street, 

Menlo Park , CA. 94025 

Ravenswood City School District 

Attention: Superintendent 

2160 Euclid Avenue 

East Palo Alto, CA 94303 

8 

Page J-3.25



IN WITNESS WHEREOF District, City and CDA have caused this 

Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officials as of the day and 

year first above written. 

Date: 

Date: 

9 

District: Ravenswood School District 

By: 

I~: Chief Business Officer 

Attest~A~ 

City: City of Menlo Park 

By: 

Its: cryt lf7&T 
Attest: ~~ 0. /;~ 

CDA: Community Development Agency 

of the City of Menlo Park 

By: 

Its: ~tie-01tczfr 
Attest: ~.Ci,~ 

Page J-3.26



DATE: 

SCALE: 

DRAWN BY: BLW 

DRAWING NA•IIEc.·---~ 
DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 
SURVEYED BY: ___ _ 

t:, 
APPROVED: D,. 

RUBEN R. ..a.~ OF ENGIIEERalG 6BMCES ~ 
CITY OF IEM.O PARK ~ 

40998 ~ i 
DATE R.C.E. £ EXPIRES 

NO. BY OATIS 

EXHIBIT A: EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS 

I 0 
ARK 

CITY OF MENLO PARK 
ENGINEERING DIVISION 

701 LAUREL STREET, MENLO PARK, CA 94025-3483 

PHONE (650) 856-3420 FAX (650) 858-3478 

SUB-CONSULTANT CONSULTANT 
IELVN LIE ASSOaAlES • ASl.A II= l»IJSCAFE AllOl1ICIS • RANaS 
SO PACIIC AVE. SAN RANCl5CO 
~ 94119-2569 l4l5l44Hl'l88 

BELLE HAVEN SCHOOL SHEET 

OF SHEETS 
PROJ. NAME 

BELLEHAVEN SCHOOL 

Page J-3.27



., ~~--

\ 

: l -J'-', Y', L__/ --,u ~ :v D LJ hS u : I 

10 Yi :( : I '<'-\. '\' I I w 2-,J LJI I I 11 I : \,) ', 
~ I I I I I I ~ J ' I b I I I I I '' _____ I '~ 

i --== - i . I I : I :: i I L-c_<, I .'-----1 : -,~ 11 l"--1 :! ' I ----7 '<~y~ 
Is ltl I I I I I I It J t : I It I ti\ iJ I I J• JI 

1
-·~- 0 _~-' \) 

_________ ,,.,.,~\ : I I I I I It I t c----,--; I I I I t j It .f : 1 t I t t 
=-=.:; c.;:,v, □·. -r-----------------1 _____ I _____ I :::i l __ li __ i' 1---==--.! '=-===:---1------1 [ _____ J :.:1 ___ it __ :;,_! L __ l!_ _____ I L_.:: ______ I ___________ ..,.., -

I I · I =-~ =~" . __J ~u - Cf-LCQ STREET 
-------~~-~-\--=::-'(;;:/ . ,, ... A---,-> ®®~;-®G®®~®®®·®· ~\: 

City of Menlo Park 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

,---. ___ ,, r J7~- - n --- - l U\' 
J-----1 r~ 7 ' n u - \:~- ~-

- \\·; /n ,, i~~ BJEEEE 
7~.---71~ 0;:. LJ O O ~~ '::::-::::. 0 0 000 

7 __ J I g \ . _ ~::::-:::~ . I 1 @ 
--- ---·---7 ~ \. I I (; .-PILOT6ARDENAREA . 0 M 

I 

... J ! ~ . 1· I . ~~ ~p~~N6 4 ,<:;\Cl 

~~~ I L • ·-"·~- -~~ Q a. 
I 

0
~ '_,/ NJr1 \Cl 11',( <. ... -

-::::. ....... ,, 
I 

I 
I 

' 

~ ~- RIJNNIN6TRAGK_11 ~ \Ely Ir) I' II/,~, c'./J 
---------r1 d O r~-_J · ~™ ~- . . 0 

! o!/ !/ Jl 
I ' • GATE · /__/ / • \5/ r ~ ; /): / 0 
I ~, _._______ . / 7 ; ''. ~ 

t2, 

~,.; ;(--~-~;! f ....___ ,-

' .... ~ . t/2 i / ...._........... ..__'-.... ....... \. ---

: 0_. ~ =''~~ ~ / ~~ ...J ~ . / ·-;::.··/ 8J ·_ . l'_--- r---• ....... ] : . I ~ .· l--J; -•M-. ,·--..:;/) 1/ r . 
J f~i-ovoo,c:>oo·--- ·•. -.. -,,: :-1-:~ 

I r-- I I AL.MANOR AVEt-lJE --=~ - -------- - I.______ --~-... "> ' 
I ~-( ' ' 7' ' ,-----~ ~- ~ -......,/1; /11; /J-

~

IO 11 .-·r ~/ I I n:_L __ J; ! (_~ -;r--·-·--: .,:r ,~-- .~-----. -0s / 1/ _'(// ;/"rs~~:-r 0 
I n (7 I / -- ..... --.. o '~--.... ./..._ 1/ --..._ I I I I I // / - -.. -.. ..._., "'- !• -.. , 

I I I f/2 // I ' -... =-::-- I/ 
1 II ... / / I I -.. • -.. ... / -....._ I 

\ 
___ j !_____________ ! Ir;,// I / (1 -~ ----~, --•--:c.::="' - j;-~ '- , 

II t/ I ·1 ~ . If'•-....._ ~ . J'-- oi..J----------, Ii 1;,---,/ JI I -..... -........_-. 

K ,1~~)---- ~.1/1 -....._ -~-- I I ~ 30 60 

EXHIBIT B: FUTURE IMRPOVEMENTS 

BELLE HAVEN SCHOOL 
1,t:1..VN LEE ASSOCIAlES . ASI.A 11e lJ'H:>SCAl'E AROfTECTS . PlAN8S 
T,50 PACflC AVE. SAN IIL\NCISCO 
CAI.FORWI 941)9-2569 (415144Hl'lll8 

Date: 11-06-01 

Page J-3.28



Library and Community Services 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-093-CC

Informational Item: Update on Kelly Park athletic field synthetic turf and 
track renovation project  

Recommendation 
No action is requested related to this informational item at this time. City staff recommends that the City 
Council review this informational update about the proposed Kelly Park athletic field synthetic turf and track 
renovation project.  

Policy Issues 
City Council provides policy direction to the city manager regarding services to the community; allocates 
resources to support City services and capital projects; reviews and approves master plans; and sets 
prioritization for the use of City resources to serve the community. 

Background 
Kelly Park’s athletic field and track facility was last renovated in 2010, and features a synthetic turf field, 
rubberized track and exercise stations. The turf, track, and exercise stations have reached the end of their 
serviceable life span and need replacement. Funding for the replacement of the facility was included in the 
five-year capital improvement program for fiscal year 2022-23 and 2023-24.  

The Menlo Park Community Campus (MPCC) project adjacent to Kelly Park began construction in 2021 and 
is scheduled for completion in 2024.  

The City has contracted with Callander Associates to provide design plans to remove and replace the Kelly 
Park athletic field, track, and exercise stations with like features on a timeline to generally coincide with the 
MPCC opening.  

Analysis 
Scope of work 
The scope of work for the proposed project includes removing and replacing the existing synthetic turf and 
rubberized track. Striping, markings and relocation of fitness stations, and irrigation laterals overlapping the 
work are also included in the proposed scope of work. Due to the proximity of the new MPCC building, it is 
recommended to relocate the exercise stations an alternative location along the track, and to remove the 
underutilized long jump sand pit and replace with infill plantings. The proposed project also includes 
installation of a new 20-foot-high soccer netting system located on the eastern edge of the field between the 
soccer goal and the track to protect the MPCC building and outdoor space from misdirected soccer balls.  

Attachment A includes illustrations of the proposed project improvements. 

AGENDA ITEM J-4

Page J-4.1



Staff Report #: 23-093-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Alternate striping configuration – not recommended 
Staff reached out to current field users in fall 2022 for input regarding the proposed field renovations. 
Representatives from the American Youth Soccer Organization (AYSO) local region 109 proposed to City 
staff an alternative striping configuration to accommodate their organization’s specific needs. (Attachment 
A, striping option 2.) City staff does not recommend implementing AYSO’s proposed striping reconfiguration 
for several reasons. The proposed alternative striping would yield a slightly larger overall area of striping; 
however, it also would result in a skewed field in relation to the track and turf layout which creates several 
challenges. The proposed skewed striping would only provide a four-foot minimum setback from the corner 
of the field in relation to the track, whereas the current, non-skewed striping would preserve a seven-foot 
minimum setback from the track. Additionally, irrigation sprinklers would need to be relocated to 
accommodate the skewed configuration, which would increase the project’s cost and would delay the 
project’s completion timeline by approximately three months due to the need to develop additional design 
modifications.  

Tentative project timeline 
The project's tentative timeline targets the completion of construction activities in 2024 to generally coincide 
with the projected opening of the MPCC.  
• April 4 – City Council receive informational report about the project
• May/June - Additional stakeholder outreach including casual park users, MPCC Subcommittee and

working group, Parks and Recreation Commission
• July – Design documents finalized
• August – Construction bidding period
• September – City Council award of construction contract
• November – Construction begins
• February 2024 – Construction complete

Impact on City Resources 
Based on the design plans developed to date, preliminary project construction costs are estimated at $1.8 - 
2 million, which includes removing and replacing the Kelly Park synthetic turf athletic field, track, and 
exercise stations with like feature, and related site work. The five-year capital program included $500,000 
for the project in fiscal year 2022-23, and anticipated another $1.2 million in fiscal year 2023-24 that would 
be considered as part of the City Council’s upcoming budget deliberations.  

If the City Council were to direct staff to make substantive modifications to the project, for example by 
implementing AYSO’s proposed alternative striping configuration, or altering the configuration or features of 
the project, additional funding and/or staff resources would be necessary. City staff will provide updated 
design plans and cost information to City Council with the award of construction contract tentatively in 
September 2023. 

Environmental Review 
The project is categorically exempt under §15301 – Class 1 and §15304 – Class 4 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. Kelly Park’s athletic field, track, and exercise stations are considered 
exempt because the project involves operation, maintenance, replacement or reconstruction of facilities and 
minor alterations to land that the state has determined not to have a significant effect on the environment. 

Page J-4.2



Staff Report #: 23-093-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. . 

Attachments 
A. Illustrations of proposed project features

Report prepared by: 
Mike Owyang, Associate Engineer 
Sean S. Reinhart, Library and Community Services Director 

Page J-4.3



KELLY PARK TRACK AND FIELD REPLACEMENT
22034_CommunityMtgGraphics.indd

March 22, 2023

P R E L I M I N A R Y  P L A N  -  S T R I P I N G  O P T I O N  1  ( E X I S T I N G )

REPLACE SYNTHETIC TURF

M
PC

C
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

0’ 10’ 20’ 40’

RESURFACE TRACK
RES

Replace Existing Fitness 
Equipment with New 

Assisted Row/Push-Up Bars 
(similar to existing)

Secondary Soccer 
Field, Blue Striping, 
Typ., 48 yd x 70 yd
(matches existing)

Primary Soccer Field, 
White Striping, Typ.,

 70 yd x 110 yd
(matches existing)

Remove Existing 
Fitness Station

MPCC Project Edge

Install New Goal Netting

Relocate Bollards

Expand Existing Fitness Area 
and Install New Equipment:
• Plyometrics Platforms and

Ab/Crunch/Leg Lift Bench
(similar to existing)

• Parallel Bars and Pull-Up/
Dip Bars (new types of

ATTACHMENT A

Page J-4.4



KELLY PARK TRACK AND FIELD REPLACEMENT
22034_CommunityMtgGraphics.indd

March 22, 2023

REPLACE SYNTHETIC TURF

M
PC

C
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

0’ 10’ 20’ 40’

RESURFACE TRACK
RES

Replace Existing Fitness 
Equipment with New 

Assisted Row/Push-Up Bars 
(similar to existing)

Secondary Soccer 
Field, Blue Striping, 
Typ., 48 yd x 75 yd

Primary Soccer Field, 
White Striping, Typ.,

 75 yd x 110 yd

Remove Existing 
Fitness Station

MPCC Project Edge

Install New Goal Netting

Relocate Bollards

Expand Existing Fitness Area 
and Install New Equipment:
• Plyometrics Platforms and

Ab/Crunch/Leg Lift Bench
(similar to existing)

• Parallel Bars and Pull-Up/
Dip Bars (new types of

P R E L I M I N A R Y  P L A N  -  S T R I P I N G  O P T I O N  2

Page J-4.5



KELLY PARK TRACK AND FIELD REPLACEMENT
22034_CommunityMtgGraphics.indd

March 22, 2023

S Y N T H E T I C  T U R F  A N D  T R A C K  S U R F A C I N G

SYNTHETIC TURF
WITH CORK INFILL

TRACK SURFACING
TOP COAT OVER EXISTING PAVED BASE

Page J-4.6



KELLY PARK TRACK AND FIELD REPLACEMENT
22034_CommunityMtgGraphics.indd

March 22, 2023

F I T N E S S  E Q U I P M E N T

AB CRUNCH / LEG LIFT ASSISTED ROW / PUSH-UP PARALLEL BARS

PLYOMETRICS PULL-UP / DIP

Page J-4.7



KELLY PARK TRACK AND FIELD REPLACEMENT
22034_CommunityMtgGraphics.indd

March 22, 2023

S O C C E R  B A L L  G O A L  N E T T I N G

GOAL NETTING
20 FEET TALL

Page J-4.8



Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  4/4/2023 
Staff Report Number: 23-094-CC

Informational Item: Update on West Bay encroachment agreement for 
work near Bedwell Bayfront Park 

Recommendation 
This is an informational item and does not require City Council action. 

Policy Issues 
Encroachment permits are issued by the director of public works. §13.18.020 of the City’s Municipal Code 
states that “No person shall perform any work, construct any facility, make any excavation or fill any 
excavation, store materials and/or vehicles in or upon any real property in which the City has an interest, 
whether by title, easement, right of way, license or otherwise, without first obtaining an encroachment 
permit to do so from the Public Works Director.”  

Background 
On December 6, 2022, City Council authorized the city manager to execute an agreement with West Bay 
Sanitary District (WBSD) regarding the provision of recycled water service within Menlo Park Municipal 
Water service area. The delivery of recycled water consists of two primary elements. The first element of 
the project is the Flow Equalization Recovery Facility (FERRF) Levee Improvements project, which will 
improve levees around the property to protect the site against 50-year sea level rise projections and remove 
the interior portions of the site from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 100-year 
floodplain. The second element consists of building a Recycled Water Facility on this site to serve the 
Bayfront area of Menlo Park. The City Council received clarification on the project site location selection, 
environmental impact report (EIR), public engagement of the project, mitigations, cost impacts to the 
customers of Menlo Park Municipal Water, impacts from construction at Bedwell Bayfront Park, and 
coordination with other projects and OneShoreline. The City Council discussed providing information and 
outreach related to project construction in both English and Spanish. 

On February 3, 2023, WBSD contacted the City of Menlo Park to execute an encroachment permit 
agreement for the WBSD FERRF Improvements at Bedwell Bayfront Park. The project location is shown on 
Attachment A. WBSD intends to increase levee elevations along its boundaries with the Bay with a 
proposed ecotone levee and sheet piling. In doing so, WBSD will raise the grade at the vehicular entrance 
of the FERFF located to the southwest of the property and at the trail northeast of the property at Bedwell 
Bayfront Park. The improvements include sheet piles, grading and drainage within City property.  

WBSD’s permit from the Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC) is anticipated to be 
considered April 6. Recent storms have also resulted in damage to the existing levees surrounding the 
FERRF, so obtaining permits and advancing construction is extremely time sensitive to protect the levees 
from further erosion and the facility from future flooding and sea level rise.  

AGENDA ITEM J-5

Page J-5.1



Staff Report #: 23-094-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Analysis 
WBSD is proposing to place approximately 3,700 linear feet of shoreline protection around the existing 
FERRF. The proposed shoreline protection project involves installing sheetpile walls around the entire 
facility and raising the grade of the perimeter berms by approximately 5 feet, in order to remove the site 
from the current 100-year flood zone and protect it against future sea level rise. In addition, the proposed 
project includes placing bay fill for nature-based shoreline protection elements, including (1) constructing an 
ecotone levee along the northern perimeter and over approximately 1.12 acres of existing tidal habitats, and 
(2) installing oyster reef structures on the mudflats near the northernmost point of the project site. To offset
impacts to existing habitats, the proposed project will also setback a portion of the northern perimeter levee
to create 0.65 acres of new tidal marsh habitat. The ecotone levee is intended to provide migration space
for the tidal marsh habitats as sea level rises. The project includes installation of new public access
amenities - one bench and an interpretive sign – at the adjacent Bedwell Bayfront Park to create an
overlook area of the Bay. WBSD intends to construct drainage improvements that include a swale and twin
storm drain 18-inch diameter piping. The drainage system will be installed to capture run off from the trail
and be conveyed through the raised grade and outfall to Westpoint Slough to the north.

To construct the proposed improvements within the City property, WBSD must apply for an encroachment 
permit and execute an encroachment permit agreement. The encroachment permit agreement (Attachment 
B) will grant WBSD the right to install and maintain the proposed improvements in the encroachment area.
The encroachment permit and agreement are issued and enforced by the public works director. The
agreement also requires coordination and outreach to address any potential construction issues on the park
users, including a temporary detour for a portion of the perimeter trail during some stages of construction
(see Attachment A). Per the City Council request December 6, WBSD plans to conduct outreach with
materials in English and Spanish regarding construction activity. Project-specific conditions for work hours,
requirements for truck haul routes, and notifications will be required of WBSD as conditions of the
encroachment permit.

Impact on City Resources 
WBSD is required to pay encroachment permit review fees, which cover the staff time associated with 
reviewing the project and issuing the permit and encroachment agreement.  

Environmental Review 
This informational update is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines §§15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in 
the environment. 

On December 18, 2020, WBSD filed a Notice of Availability of the FERRF Levee Improvements and 
Bayfront RWF draft EIR for public review and comment; the draft EIR covers the first phase of 
improvements (the levee improvements and Bayfront RWF and related pipelines.) The comment period 
ended February 1, 2021. Comments were received, addressed, and the EIR was certified May 12, 2021. 
The construction of the Bayfront RWF facility was appropriately studied and there have been no changes to 
the project or its circumstances, or new information available, which would trigger a requirement for a 
subsequent EIR under CEQA Guidelines §15162. Accordingly, no further CEQA documentation is 
warranted. 

Page J-5.2



Staff Report #: 23-094-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Project location  
B. Encroachment permit agreement 
 
Report prepared by: 
Edress Rangeen, Associate Engineer  
 
Report reviewed by: 
Ebby Sohrabi, Senior Civil Engineer  
Tanisha Werner, Assistant Public Works Director - Engineering 

Page J-5.3



Page J-5.4

ATTACHMENT A

Lorraine
Text Box

Lorraine
8.5x11_portrait

Lorraine
Snapshot

Lorraine
Polygon

Lorraine
Polygon

Lorraine
Polygon

Lorraine
Text Box
FERFF Facility

Lorraine
Text Box
Bedwell Bayfront Park

Lorraine
Callout
Construction Zone

Lorraine
Callout
Construction Zone

Lorraine
Callout
Proposed Alternative ADA Access Route

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Text Box
LEGEND              Construction Zone within Park              Restricted Access (Private Property)              Alternative Route Path of Travel

Lorraine
Rectangle

Lorraine
Rectangle

Lorraine
Arrow

Lorraine
Text Box
Proposed Public Access to Shoreline During Construction

Lorraine
Text Box
03/17/2023

Lorraine
Text Box
001079

Lorraine
Text Box
1

Lorraine
Text Box
NOTES1. Contractor can open up access in the construction zones when there area is safe for pedestrians and there are no active construction activities. Flaggers to direct traffic when site is active.     



OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

City of Menlo Park  
Attn: City Clerk 
701 Laurel St. 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

The undersigned declares this instrument to be exempt 
from Recording Fees (Govt. Code § 27383) and 
Documentary Transfer Tax (Rev. & Tax. Code §11922). 

(Space above this line reserved for 
Recorder's use only) 

ENCROACHMENT MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION OF PRIVATE 
IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY 
THIS ENCROACHMENT MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT, dated this ___day of April, 2023, 
issued by the City of Menlo Park, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City", to 
West Bay Sanitary District, fee title owner(s) (the “Permittee”) of the real property commonly 
known as Bedwell Bayfront Park, Menlo Park, CA 94025 for the use of, maintenance, and 
repair of the West Bay Sanitary District Levee surrounding the Flow Equalization and 
Resource Recovery Facility (FERFF), as more particularly detailed in Exhibit A (the 
“Facility”), within the public right-of-way (the “ROW”) in the City of Menlo Park.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Permittee is proposing to install the Facility within City ROW, as depicted on 
Exhibit B (the “Encroachment Area”), and incorporated into this Encroachment 
Maintenance Agreement and the associated Encroachment Permit; and   

WHEREAS, the Facility has been reviewed, and meets the satisfaction of, all necessary 
City Departments including approval from the Director of Public Works as set forth in Menlo 
Park Municipal Code Chapter 13.18; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the City is issuing an Encroachment Permit 
addressing the liability, and maintenance of said Facility prior to the commencement of its 
construction as required pursuant to Chapter 13.18 of the Menlo Park Municipal Code. 

CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Limited Grant of Right to Use of Right of Way. Subject to the terms and conditions of this
agreement, Permittee is granted a right to maintain the Facility in the Encroachment Area.
Permittee shall not perform any work, construct any facility, make any excavation or fill any
excavation, store materials and/or vehicles in the public right of way, except for the Facility,
which shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with the plans and specifications

Page J-5.5

ATTACHMENT B



OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2

set forth in Exhibit A.  Such work shall be performed only in the Encroachment Area as set 
forth in Exhibit B. The rights granted herein shall be deemed non-exclusive and revocable 
by City, and the City reserves the right to enter and continued use of the Encroachment 
Area for any public purposes. 

As a material condition to this agreement, Permittee acknowledges title to the 
Encroachment Area shall at all times remain with the City and waives all right to contest that 
title.  

As a condition precedent to Permittee’s right to construct in the public right of way, this 
permit must first be signed by the Permittee, notarized, and recorded with the County 
Recorder of the County of San Mateo. Any recording fee shall be paid by Permittee, if not 
exempt.  

2. Construction, Maintenance and Repair.  Permittee shall be responsible for any and all
maintenance and repair of the Facility and the ROW in the vicinity of the Facility and shall
keep the Facility and the ROW in good condition and repair, to the satisfaction of the City, at
all times. Once FEMA certification is obtained, West Bay shall maintain the levees per the
requirements of that certification. Permittee shall repair, replace and restore in kind any
private property or improvements to the extent attributable to its installation, maintenance,
repair or removal of the Facility at its sole expense and with the approval of City. Any and all
site restoration and clean-up shall be done by a licensed and insured
contractor.  Construction and maintenance shall conform to Menlo Park Municipal Code
section 13.18.110, and shall be performed in compliance with any standard specifications or
details promulgated by the City for construction in the right of way.

Signage for park users will be provided by permittee around the construction zones that 
may impact foot traffic set forth in Exhibit B. All other pathways will be accessible during the 
construction. In addition, Flaggers will be available to direct the foot traffic. The primary 
work will take place on West Bay Sanitary District property. Contractor mobilization will be 
minimal as the majority of the levee material is on site. The Permittee’s Contractor will be 
required to obtain an Encroachment Permit from the City.  

Permittee shall comply with all applicable laws related to the construction, maintenance, or 
removal of the encroachment or any action or omission in connection with any rights or 
obligations under this permit, including prevailing wage laws when applicable, for work 
performed under this permit.  

3. Permits Required. In accordance with Menlo Park Municipal Code section 13.18.050,
Permittee acknowledges that the rights granted under this Agreement shall not be in effect
and shall be subject to any requirement that Permittee first obtain any necessary permits
required by law, including but not limited to any Planning Permits or Building Permits.

4. Breach; Termination; Removal of Facility. Upon abandonment or revocation, Permittee
shall, unless otherwise directed by the City and at no cost to the City, return City property to
its pre-permit condition within the time specified in the notice of revocation or prior to the
date of abandonment. In the event that Permittee fails to abide by the terms of this
Agreement after fifteen (15) days’ written notice, the City may repair the Facility and/or right
of way, or, remove the Facility and restore the right of way at the Owner’s cost.  Upon 30-
day notice, and an opportunity to respond, the City may add to the tax bill of the benefited
property any past-due financial obligation owing to the City by way of this covenant,

Page J-5.6



OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2  

described in Section 7 of this Agreement. If a bond or security deposit is required under 
Menlo Park Municipal Code section 13.18.140, the City may apply such to costs incurred.  

 
5. Liability, Insurance, Indemnity.  Permittee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
City, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and servants (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) 
from any and all claims, damages, costs, suits, or actions of every name, kind, and 
description, arising out of or related to: (a) this encroachment permit or its approval; (b) any 
use, construction, encroachment, maintenance, act, or omission by the Permittee or 
Permittee’s agents, employees, representatives, or contractors on City Property or having 
an impact on City’s facilities or structures; (c) the presence of the Facility or permitted 
improvements; (d) rerouting or reconstruction of any existing utilities; or (e) impacts on 
utilities caused by the Facility.  The duty of the Permittee to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless, as set forth herein, shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of 
the California Civil Code, provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed to 
require the Owner to indemnify the City, its subsidiary agencies, their officers, agents, 
employees and servants against any responsibility to liability in contravention of Section 
2782 of the California Civil Code.  
 
Permittee shall obtain, and during the term of this permit, shall maintain a policy of general 
liability insurance from an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of 
California in an insurable amount of not less than 2 million ($2,000,000) per occurrence and 
4 million dollars ($4,000,000) aggregate, in a policy form of Insurance Services Office (ISO) 
Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed 
operations, or equivalent coverage. The insurance policies shall remain in full force during 
the life of the permit, and shall not be canceled or not renewed without thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the City from the insurance company. The City and its officials, employees, 
contractors, agents and volunteers shall be named as additional insureds.  All insurance 
shall be primary and non-contributory.  Permittee hereby grants a waiver of subrogation in 
favor of the Indemnitees which any insurer of Permittee may acquire by virtue of payment of 
any loss.  Costs of defense shall be outside the policy limits. The Permittee shall have its 
current general liability insurance policy on file with the City, including an Additional Insured 
Endorsement. 
 
6. Relocation of Utilities.  Permittee shall remove or relocate, without cost or expense to the 
City, any facility when made necessary (as determined by City in its sole discretion) by any 
lawful change in grade, alignment, or width of any street, including, the construction, 
maintenance, or operation of any other City underground or above-ground facilities. Said 
removal or relocation shall be completed within ninety (90) days of notification by the City; 
provided that if removal or relocation cannot reasonably be accomplished within ninety (90) 
days, then permittee shall commence such removal or relocation within such ninety (90) 
days and thereafter continue the same diligently until completion thereof. If Permittee 
intends to abandon a facility located above ground in the public right-of-way, Permittee must 
provide written notice of its intention to abandon and must remove the facility within ninety 
(90) days thereafter.  

 
7. Covenant to Run with Land of Permittee. The covenants and conditions in this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, indemnification of the City, shall run with the land 
commonly known as West Bay Sanitary District project located at 1700 Marsh Road, 
Menlo Park, California / APN 055-400-010, with legal description as set forth in Exhibit C 
(the “Property”) and shall both burden the Property and bind and inure to the benefit of the 
City and Owner and their respective successors and assigns.  

Page J-5.7



OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2

8. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be
an original, but all counterparts shall constitute one instrument.

Attachments:   
Exhibit A           Plans and Specifications for Facility 

Exhibit B           Site Plan / Encroachment Area 

Exhibit C           Property Legal Description 

ISSUED BY CITY OF MENLO PARK: 

Nicole H. Nagaya, Public Works Director Date 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND ACCEPTED BY PERMITTEE: 

Sergio Ramirez, General Manager Date 
West Bay Sanitary District  

-NOTARIZATION REQUIRED- 
 

Page J-5.8



OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2  

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 
COUNTY OF ____________________  
 
On ______________________, before me, ______________________________, Notary Public,  
 
personally appeared ___________________________________________________________,  
 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
________________________________________________ 

Place Notary Seal Above                    Signature of Notary Public 
 

Page J-5.9



OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2

Exhibit A - Plans and Specifications for Facility (page 1) 

Exhibit A - Plans and Specifications for Facility (page 2) 

Page J-5.10



7 

OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2

Exhibit B - Site Plan / Encroachment Area 

Page J-5.11



OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2

Exhibit C - Property Legal Description 

Page J-5.12



9 

OAK #4877-1830-7098 v2

Page J-5.13


	20230404 City Council regular agenda
	E1-20230404 CC-National Poetry Month
	E2-20230404 CC-Earth Day
	F1-20230404 CC-Minutes
	F2-20230404 CC-2023 street resurf
	1-SR - 2023 Street Resurfacing Project Bid
	2-Att A Street resurf agree

	F3-20230404 CC-Caltrain Middle cross agree
	1-SR_Middle UC-Caltrain SA
	2-Att A_Final Service Agreement Menlo Park-3.29.23
	3_Att B_Approved Middle Crossing Concept

	G1-20230404 CC-440 University appeal
	1-SR 440 University Appeal
	2-ATT A - Draft CC Resolution
	2-ATT A - Draft CC Resolution
	3-ATT A Exhibit A - Project Plans v2
	4-ATT A Exhibit B - Project Description Letter
	5-ATT A Exhibit C - Conditions of Approval

	6-ATT B - Location Map
	7-ATT D - PC Approved ResolutionV2
	8-ATT E - Draft 2-6 PC Minutes
	9-ATT F  - 440 University Avenue appeal letter

	H1-20230404 CC-MPCC programming
	H2-20230404 CC-Labor SEIU AFSCME
	1-SR-SEIU-AFSCME public input on labor negotiations
	Att A - CC-11-0001 Public input on labor negotiations
	Att B - SEIU-AFSCME baseline personnel costs
	Att E - SEIU-AFSCME Health Plan Contributions
	Att L - Understanding the Labor Negotiations Process

	I1-20230404 CC-Advisory body stipend
	1-SR Advisory body stipend
	2-Att A CC-20-013-City Council requests

	J1-20230404 CC-CC agenda topics
	1-SR Agenda topics
	2-Att A topics

	J2-20230404 CC-Belle Haven traffic calm plan
	1_SR-BHTC schedule info item
	2-Att C_final plan

	J3-20230404 CC--BH RCSD update
	1-SR Belle-Haven-School-redesign-update-RCSD_20230404
	2-Att-A_presentation_proposed-belle-haven-school-field-redesign_RCSD
	3-Att-B_Belle Haven School proposed interim classrooms 20230315
	4-Att-C_District-letter-to-belle-haven-households
	5-Att-D_Joint-use-agreement-Belle-Haven-School-field_RCSD_2001

	J4-20230404 CC-Kelly Park update
	1-SR update-kelly-park-field-renovation
	2-Att-A_illustrations-proposed-project-featuresV2

	J5-20230404 CC-Bedwell Bayfront Park encroach agree
	1-SR Bedwell Bayfront Park encroach agree
	2-Att A location map
	3-Att B agreement


